Public Document Pack

JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

Council Chamber,
Thursday :
4.00 pm Havering Town Hall,
27 July 2023
Romford

COUNCILLORS:

LONDON BOROUGH OF BARKING & LONDON BOROUGH OF

DAGENHAM WALTHAM FOREST

Muhib Chowdhury Catherine Deakin

Michael Pongo

Paul Robinson

LONDON BOROUGH OF HAVERING ESSEX COUNTY COUNCIL

Pat Brown Marshall Vance

Christine Smith

Julie Wilkes

LONDON BOROUGH OF REDBRIDGE EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL

Kaz Rizvi

Sunny Brar (Observer Member)

Beverley Brewer (Chairman)

Bert Jones

CO-OPTED MEMBERS:

lan Buckmaster, Healthwatch Havering
Emma Friddin, Healthwatch Redbridge
Manisha Modhvadia, Healthwatch Barking &
Dagenham

For information about the meeting please contact:
Anthony Clements
anthony.clements@oneSource.co.uk 01708 433065



http://lbbdstaff/

Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee, 27 July 2023




Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee, 27 July 2023

Protocol for members of the public wishing to report on meetings of the London
Borough of Havering

Members of the public are entitled to report on meetings of Council, Committees and Cabinet,
except in circumstances where the public have been excluded as permitted by law.

Reporting means:-

¢ filming, photographing or making an audio recording of the proceedings of the meeting;

e using any other means for enabling persons not present to see or hear proceedings at
a meeting as it takes place or later; or

e reporting or providing commentary on proceedings at a meeting, orally or in writing, So
that the report or commentary is available as the meeting takes place or later if the
person is not present.

Anyone present at a meeting as it takes place is not permitted to carry out an oral commentary
or report. This is to prevent the business of the meeting being disrupted.

Anyone attending a meeting is asked to advise Democratic Services staff on 01708 433076
that they wish to report on the meeting and how they wish to do so. This is to enable
employees to guide anyone choosing to report on proceedings to an appropriate place from
which to be able to report effectively.

Members of the public are asked to remain seated throughout the meeting as standing up and

walking around could distract from the business in hand.
{ bz 5

Waltham Forest

Essex County Council

» Havering Redbridge

i LONDOM BOROUGH

London Borough of

Barking&Dagenham

Ibbd.gov.uk



Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee, 27 July 2023

NOTES ABOUT THE MEETING
1. HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Joint Committee is committed to protecting the health and safety of
everyone who attends its meetings.

At the beginning of the meeting, there will be an announcement about what
you should do if there is an emergency during its course. For your own
safety and that of others at the meeting, please comply with any
instructions given to you about evacuation of the building, or any other
safety related matters.

2. CONDUCT AT THE MEETING

Although members of the public are welcome to attend meetings of the Joint Committee,
they have no right to speak at them. Seating for the public is, however, limited and the
Joint Committee cannot guarantee that everyone who wants to be present in the meeting
room can be accommodated. When it is known in advance that there is likely to be
particular public interest in an item the Joint Committee will endeavour to provide an
overspill room in which, by use of television links, members of the public will be able to see
and hear most of the proceedings.

The Chairman of the meeting has discretion, however, to invite members of the public to
ask questions or to respond to points raised by Members. Those who wish to do that may
find it helpful to advise the Clerk before the meeting so that the Chairman is aware that
someone wishes to ask a question.

PLEASE REMEMBER THAT THE CHAIRMAN MAY REQUIRE ANYONE WHO ACTS IN
A DISRUPTIVE MANNER TO LEAVE THE MEETING AND THAT THE MEETING MAY BE
ADJOURNED IF NECESSARY WHILE THAT IS ARRANGED.

If you need to leave the meeting before its end, please remember that others present have
the right to listen to the proceedings without disruption. Please leave quietly and do not
engage others in conversation until you have left the meeting room.



Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee, 27 July 2023

AGENDA ITEMS
1 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman will announce details of the arrangements in case of fire or other
events that might require the meeting room or building’s evacuation.

2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF SUBSTITUTE
MEMBERS (IF ANY) - RECEIVE.

3 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS
Members are invited to declare any interests in any of the items on the agenda at this
point of the meeting. Members may still declare an interest in an item at any point
prior to the consideration of the matter.

4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 4)

To agree the minutes of the previous meeting on 18™ April 2023 as a correct record
and authorise the Chairman to sign them.

5 COMMUNITY COLLABORATIVE HIGHLIGHT OVERVIEW (Pages 5 - 24)
Report and appendices attached

6 ONEL HEALTH UPDATES (Pages 25 - 102)
Report and appendices attached

7 CHC POLICIES (Pages 103 - 182)

Report and appendices attached

Anthony Clements
Clerk to the Joint Committee



This page is intentionally left blank



Public Documpent Pack Agenda Item 4

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
18 April 2023 (4.00 - 6.15 pm)
Present:
COUNCILLORS

P Brown, C Smith, C Deakin, J Wilkes, P Robinson, K Rizvi, M Vance, B Brewer, B
Jones, R Sweden

Also present:
lan Buckmaster
28 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman reminded members of the actions to be taken in case of an
emergency.

29 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF SUBSTITUTE
MEMBERS (IF ANY) - RECEIVE.

Apologies were received from Councillors Brar, Lumsden and Chowdhury.
30 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

There were no disclosures of interests.
31 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the meeting held on 10" January 2023 were agreed as a
correct record and signed by the Chairman.

32 BHRUT AND NELFT TRUST UPDATE
The Committee received updates on the various trusts.

Members noted there had been no patients waiting more than 18 months
and that some back door services had been put on hold due to the strikes.

Officers explained to members that there had been long wait time in A&E
with specific concerns around mental health assessments and the number
of free beds to manage day to day pressures better. Members were pleased
to note that 68% of staff would recommend working for NELFT.

Members noted that an increase of agency staff had led to an overspend of
£11.7million.

Page 1



Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny 2M

Committee, 18 April 2023

33

34

35

The Committee noted that 38 mental health patients had been waiting for
more than 36 hours with communication to staff on who was waiting and
what they were waiting for to get better with efforts to keep patients away
from A&E where possible by going through other pathways which are more
suited ot their needs.

It was explained to members that during the strikes, roughly 4500
appointments had been cancelled in total with people re-booking having a
knock-on effect to future availability.

The Committee noted the report.
BHRUT CQC INSPECTION
The BHRUT CQC inspection was presented to the Committee.

Members noted that the inspection took place at King George’s Hospital and
had been carried over from a suspended inspection after winter 2022. It was
noted by the Committee that some services had been rated ‘requires
improvement’ with the main concerns around wait times. Wait times had
started to decrease. It was explained that the overall rating of ‘requires
improvement’ was due to safety concerns with actions to be implemented to
reduce pressures with confidence that those actions would improve the
rating.

The Committee noted the report.
URGENT TREATMENT CENTRES

The Committee were presented with a report of Urgent Treatment Centres
from PELC.

Members were displeased to note that all sites had been rated as
‘inadequate’. Members noted that the time of arrival to all 4 sites had been
monitored with a new ICA model developed to deliver to standard. It was
also noted that the BHR system for urgent and emergency care programme
board had been developed and a new medical director was in post. It was
explained to the Committee members that team restructures had been
implemented just prior to the CQC inspection and there had been a steady
increase of performance across all 4 sites.

The Committee noted the report.
PRIMARY CARE ENHANCED ACCESS

The Committee were presented with a report with information in PC
Enhanced Access.

Members noted that last summer there had been patient engagement with
over 38,000 responses which findings shared with all PCNs. The Committee

Page 2



Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny 3M
Committee, 18 April 2023

experienced technological issues and could not hear the presenting officers
so it was agreed that questions would be collated and passed back to them
after the meeting.

The Committee noted the report.

Chairman

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Agenda Iltem 5

Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

OUTER NORTH EAST LONDON JOINT HEALTH
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 27 JULY 2023

Subject Heading: Community Collaborative Highlight
Overview
Report Author: Luke Phimister, Committee Officer,

London Borough of Havering

Policy context:
Officers will give details.

Financial summary: No financial implications of the covering
report itself.

‘ SUMMARY ‘

Officers will give details on a number of areas of relevance to the Joint Committee.

‘ RECOMMENDATIONS ‘

1. That the Joint Committee scrutinises the information presented and makes
any recommendations or takes any other action it considers appropriate.

Page 5



Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 10 January 2023

‘ REPORT DETAIL ‘

Information will be presented on the community collaborative. Further details are
given on the attached presentation.

‘ IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS ‘

Financial implications and risks: None of this covering report.
Legal implications and risks: None of this covering report.
Human Resources implications and risks: None of this covering report.

Equalities implications and risks: None of this covering report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None.

Page 6



:. »s’. North East London

o5, o Health & Care
“ “ Partnership

Community Collaborative
Overview Highlight Report

June 2023

Sally Adams - Director for the Community Collaborative Programme



NEL Context Community Collaborative

The North East London Integrated Care System
NEL Community Collaborative sits o
alongside four other NEL
collaboratives (acute care, primary
care, mental health, and Voluntary
Community Social Enterprises (VCSE)
organisations) within NEL’s integrated
care system.

Delivery and f_.t '-. Seven place-based partnerships

_51 ) ) improvement v\
G e o Nel=[-T=l=]—]—] ==
&ross multiple places, with a shared \ VCSE parters
[o) . .. .
purpose and effective decision-making S e et
. Merral Health Carmuri . BHRLT
arrangements, to: Coliabortion —\ R cobercns | LssmngDeabiny | ( hein ) (VOSE| Pmmam L,
o and joint planning : ELFT
« reduce unwarranted variation |\ Supporsd by ststegic ensblers a G and place: LT
and inequality in health _
duary . o I
outcomes, access to services
and experience; and o < Integrated Care Integrated Care | _
Prioritization, resource allocafion, Board Partnership A understanding health and wellbeing

" needs and setting an overall strategy

oversight and assurance ~

« improve resilience by, for
example, providing mutual aid.

Working with and for the people of North East London




NEL Community Collaborative Purpose

Operating Plan deliverables

The Community Collaborative is a collaboration of Providers including system NHS
Community Provider, Voluntary Sector, Clinical Leads etc. to tackle and deliver
services to address inequalities in the community.

The Community Collaborative has been established to support a partnership approach
to reducing variation in community health services, and identify opportunities to share
learning across partners alongside other system-wide ambitions.

The main focus of Community Collaborative is also to improve system resilience.

ch taking a partnership approach, we have agreed on the principles, initial workplan
and strategic aims for the collaborative and are now transitioning from development to

plementation of the operating model for the NEL Community Collaborative.
Workshops have taken place with providers to explore key principles.

The current community programme of work has evolved, and throughout its
developmental phase, there has been a continuation of key programmes e.g. Virtual
wards, long covid recovery, urgent community response, community waiting lists
baselines and other aspects of the Community Health Service (CHS) national
operating plan.

The Collaborative Programme Board (CPB) directly oversees a number of projects and
programmes within Community Healthcare in North East London. Of these projects
reporting into CPB, some form a programme of work that is managed or delivered
directly by NEL-wide ICB staff resources whilst others are delivered within Place with
ICB resources reporting on this work either within NEL or to NHSE. The Board reports
into a Collaborative Steering Committee where key strategic decisions are made in
partnership with ICS leads.

Principles

Through relationships across health and social care partners, this will
increase collaboration, enhance partnership working and innovation to
share best clinical and professional practices with each other and deliver
high quality services.

The primary relationship of Community Health Service (CHS) Providers is
with “Place”:

* Inthe NEL context this means place level

+ This reflects the model of service delivery, which is in a patient’s
own home or very close to it and which requires close collaboration
with acute care, primary care, social care and children's’ services

Collaboration across all CHS providers at an ICS level should be focused
on:

* Areas where there are clear population health needs that are best
supported at an ICS or multi-borough level, including multi-borough
work with local authority partners where agreed with partners

* Achieving common standards (agreed with partners) to reduce
unwarranted variations and address inequalities in health outcomes,
access to services and experience, this would include advice and
encouragement to adopt effective digital technologies

* Improving resilience by, for example, providing mutual aid to support
fragile services



Delivery & Initial governance structure

Common ways of working governing our approach:

+ Commitment to resident engagement and co-production
at all levels

+ Clinical Leadership - Relevant clinical leadership at all levels

* Qutput /delivery & impact focused Forward plans & PMO
approach and clearly agreed strategy or ToR held for all
projects /programmes/ task and finish groups

+ Test and Scale — Joined up working to test and scale
* Matrix working core both vertical and horizontal

* Dafd Using Population health management to underpin
deftyery — currently in development community dashboard for
NED with key data sets

=
o

Key things to note

* Around 20+ million SDF budget Ageing Well, Long
Covid, Virtual Wards, Digital other ad-hoc in-year etc.

e Community Contracts — 400+million, 50 providers

* Interfaces — Planned Care, Primary Care, VCS, Acute

* Enablers — Collaborative Digital Strategy key to
development of services in addition to this is data demand
and capacity, waiting lists etc.

Integrated Care Board Provider Trust Boards

ICB Population Health & Integration Committee

7 x Place-based Partnership

Community Collaborative sub-Committee :
sub-Committees

Functions: Membership:

« Key decisions including strategy & financial strategy ¢ Provider Trusts include

« Delivery assurance of NEL wide programmes clinical leadership

» Accountability for delegated responsibilities » Service users /carers
» Widerreps LA/Place

7 x Place-based Partnership delivery

Community Collaborative Programme Board - of NEL wide programmes

Functions:

Membership: ﬁ

|
+ Decisions on day-to-day delivery of strategy « Wider provider representation I |
* More granular delivery assurance & problem-  and stakeholder representation |

solving across place/primary | |

» Monitoring of NHSE funded programmes
delivery and finance

care/providers and ICB

Transformation Programmes

ICS wide time-limited programmes / networks where action is required for national I
| mobilization across the 7 places to improve outcomes, performance, quality, value or
equity, new models of care — All ICBs responding to national requirements

Delivery of NEL wide programmes at place |

BCYP Community
Proactive Care (Anticipatory Care) & Fuller
Wider Ageing Well - Social Care

Enhanced Health and Care

Community Health Collaborative Quality, Performance and Finance input to transformation programmes

UEC linked Programmes ¢ Virtual Wards « UCR and Remote Monitoring

Post Covid Recovery in Community

CHS including Place Social Care Digital Transformation

End of Life and Palliative Care / Cancer interfaces

Functions: CHS outcomes framework development

Data and Bl analytics/ Digital

Demand, capacity and sustainability
CHS mapping

.Mobilization of national directive / Digital

Membership: ﬁ

* NEL corporate functions: PMO/ BI / Performance / Quality /
Workforce / Finance / Contracting / Comms & engagement
« Provider representation

https://future.nhs.uk/CommunityHealthServices




Ongoing National CHS LTP priority commitments across 2023/24 —

Operating Plan Links

Growth and development of
integrated neighbourhood teams to
support our most vulnerable and
complex patients to stay at home and
access care in the community

(Fuller Stocktake)

Putting people in control of their own
care through more personalisation

(Government Mandate to the NHS,
22/23)

Putting in place a community-based
falls response service in all systems
for people i.e. who have fallen at
home including care homes

(NHS Winter Letter)

TT obed

Ensuring that patients receive
personalised care tailored to their
individual needs

(NHS Standard Contract 22/23)

Deliver an additional 2,500 Virtual
Ward (VW) beds, effectively utilised
both in terms of addressing the right

patient cohort and optimising
referrals.

(NHS Winter Letter)

Actively consider establishing an
Acute Respiratory Infection (ARI) hub
to support same day assessment

(NHS Winter Letter)

Comply with the new statutory duty
for ICBs to commission palliative and
end of life care services in response

to population needs, drawing upon

NHSE statutory guidance.

(Palliative and end of life care:
Statutory guidance for integrated
care boards (ICBs)

Shift more care to the community, including safe
and convenient care at home or close to home,
through developing the capacity and capability of
community health services, integrated
neighbourhood teams and new models of care
(NHS England operating framework)

Strengthen the hands of the people we serve
through the comprehensive model of personalised
care including supporting people to have
increased choice and control over their care
based on what matters to them as well
(NHS England operating framework)

Please register first on NHS futures

https://future.nhs.uk/CommunityHealthServices


https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/next-steps-for-integrating-primary-care-fuller-stocktake-report/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/long-read/going-further-on-winter-resilience-plans/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/long-read/going-further-on-winter-resilience-plans/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/long-read/going-further-on-winter-resilience-plans/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/palliative-and-end-of-life-care-statutory-guidance-for-integrated-care-boards-icbs/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/palliative-and-end-of-life-care-statutory-guidance-for-integrated-care-boards-icbs/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/palliative-and-end-of-life-care-statutory-guidance-for-integrated-care-boards-icbs/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/operating-framework/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/operating-framework/

Priority Workplan for Community 23/24 NEL Community Collaborative Further work

Operating Plan deliverables Governance
« Delivering a reduction in CHS waiting times to pre-covid pandemic levels or *  The Community Collaborative Operating Model is currently being
better implemented.

» Delivery of the Ageing Well Programme working with partner organisations
(UCR, Proactive Care/ Anticipatory Care, Wider Ageing Well initiatives Inc.
Enhanced Care Homes) * Theinitial 2023-24, workplan has been developed and continues to evolve

» Delivery of Virtual Wards aspiration and links to wider UEC delivery plans to deliver the requirements set out by NHSE (further details included on

the following slide and in Appendix A).
* Oversight of Covid pathways as these move into BAU where relevant (Pulse
Oximetry, Long Covid, remote monitoring)

Review of key areas of work

«  However, a number of key areas that continue to be in discussion and
remains in progress. These include:

Seflice quality and resilience
. ﬁaking best use of community bed capacity and improving resilience to
panter / Covid pressures

- Mork with Workforce Leads from the ICS to address common recruitment
and retention issues through innovative employment and training approaches

* Increase resilience in fragile services e.g. dietetics

* Babies, Children and Young People(BCYP) services interfaces including the
development of new pathways

Strategy and development

o Agreeing the scope for the Collaborative (CHS) partners as it matures to
deliver transformation across community services and the resources
required to allow effective delivery

o Clarification of the accountability for current community based care
programmes

o Scope of the Collaborative in future strategy and planning rounds

» Develop a vision and strategy for CHS within the ICS and agree a CHS o Improve transparency of resource availability and allocation across

Outcomes Framework
* CHS Deep Dive

* Engage in end-to-end pathway planning through clinical networks and other
provider collaboratives

NB. There are identified dependencies with place/collaboratives and clinical

collaboratives / place

Further clarification of the roles and responsibilities of the resources at
ICB/Collaboratives and Place and the interdependencies between the
teams, functions and other Programmes of work across the ICB

networks that may affect initial workplan as the system develops



Community Collaborative Current Priority Work Areas

« Continue to strengthen governance process
» Develop co-production with providers and voluntary sector
« Strengthen patient leadership and service user inclusion

¢T obed

* Virtual wards stock take and deep dive
* Digital solutions for virtual ward operations

« Babies, Childrens and Young People, Speech and Language
Therapy waiting times review

* Develop scope for community services mapping exercise



This page is intentionally left blank



*es%e’. North East London m
*0 X s+ Health & Care NELFT

'-- “. Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

The North East London Mental Health, Learning
Disability and Autism Collaborative

July 2023

GT abed

m East London
North East London NHS Foundation Trust



Introduction to the Mental Health Learning Disability and Autism Collaborative

 The North East London Mental

Health, learning Disability and m NELFT m + m

Autism Collaborative is a East London

partnership between NEL ICB, North East London NHS Foundation Trust NHS Foundation Trust
ELFT, NELFT, and the seven N— 7
place-based partnerships in Y

close collaboration with Local authorities
s&pvice users and carers, ™ . and other place-

D . Communities, Our aim based :
cgmmunities, local people with lived | B e
agthorities, primary care, the experience and To work together to improve
voluntary and community service users outcomes, quality, value and equity
sector and other services. for people with, or at risk of, mental

Carers, friends, health problems and/or learning
 The aim of the collaborative is £ an,d disability and autism in North East
) people offering London Primary care and

to work together to improve support other NHS
outcomes, quality, value and providers
equity for people with, or at
risk of, mental health Service users and carers across NEL co-designed this image as a way to help describe
problems and/or learning the collaborative

disability and autism in North
East London.



Adult mental health service user priorities

* We have worked together through the NEL MHLDA

Collaborative to support lived experience leaders 1. Put what matters to service users and carers front and centre so that people
to design and facilitate a NEL mental health with lived experience of mental health conditions have an improved quality of life,
summit in September 2022 to define the priorities with joined-up support around the social determinants of health

for the NEL Integrated Care Strategy. The seven 2. Enable and support lived experience leadership at every level in the system so
priorities identified by service users and carers that service users and carers are equally valued for their leadership skills and

are now front and centre in the NEL Integrated experience as clinicians, commissioners and other professionals

Care Strategy and Joint Forward Plan. 3. Embed and standardise our approach to peer support across NEL so that it is

valued and respected as a profession in its own right, and forms part of the multi-

« We have championed lived experience leadership disciplinary team within clinical teams and services

awkey members of the NEL MHLDA Collaborative 4. Improve cultural awareness and cultural competence across NEL so that
mmittee. We have now formally recruited four people with protected characteristics feel they are seen as individuals, and that
I&ed experience leaders to be members of the staff are not making assumptions about them based on those characteristics
(,'Hmmittee, alongside three deputies. We are the 5. Providing more and better support to carers so they feel better cared for
only Collaborative or place-based Committee to themselves, more confident and able to care for others, and are valued for the

have such extensive lived experience leadership knowledge and insights they can bring

baked into our governance in NEL, and perhaps in 6. Improve people’s experience of accessing mental health services, including
the country. people’s first contact with mental health services, reducing inequality of access
and improving the quality of communication and support during key points of

transition
* We have a long way to go, but our championing of o
/. Understand and act upon local priorities for mental health, through data and

lived experience leadership and people . iy .

e hi q Id simol engagement with communities to understand the needs, assets, wishes and
participation in everything we do would simply not aspirations of our borough populations, and the unmet needs and inequalities
have been pOSSIble without NELFT and ELFT facing Specific groups

working together




Children and young peoples’ mental health service user priorities

Fairness - “| want the same chances at life as my peers no matter how difficult my journey has been”
- “I want to be actively engaged and supported to get involved and see changes that | have influenced”
Equality - “ want the same experience of care and range of support regardless of where | live or go to school”

Joined up care - “| want professionals to work together so that | tell my story once and be involved in deciding what support will suit
me and my family’s goals and needs”

Easy access to services - “| want to be able to see all support available to me, my family and friends in one place” / —
Different types of help - “| want to access support in different ways that suits me and my goals, including helping me to recognise the 41[ ABouT 30
early signs of an issue” " MEe ANp
v%”.%e
Peopl@wvho help me - “I want to be able to access different support from different people, including those with lived experience, ' s
wherg%nd where | need it <& ZO 0 M ,
= - “I want to feel like professionals care as | move between different stages of my life” 2L f? FfFM 818 2022 S N
oo
Language - “| want professionals to use language that makes sense to me, and stop the acronyms!” ,‘_‘ ‘ i00=15 g9%

Culture - “ want professionals to know about my culture and to respect my culture”

Choice, control and support - “l want to be able to decide how my family are involved in my support, and they might also need
support”

* Through a series of coproduction events with children and young people (CYP) and carers called All About Me for the Benefit of Everyone,
young people have identified a set of clear priorities for health and care services, and have defined the outcomes they wish to achieve (see
above).

* The latest event, held on the 29 April 2023 at the London Stadium, asked CYP how they want to be involved in leading change in mental
health services. Overwhelmingly, CYP told us that they want to participate actively in improvement projects and initiatives, and not just act
in an advisory capacity. Our first coproduction steering group met on 8 June 2023 to identify clear opportunities for CYP to get involved.



Working collaboratively across the system and within places

The North-East London Mental Health Learning Disability & Autism Collaborative - -
structure includes: The MLDA Collaborative Strategy has four main elements:

* Ajoint committee of the ICB, NELFT and ELFT, carrying responsibility for the
functions associated with the Mental Health Investment Standard, and other NHS

mental health and learning disability & autism funding, with accountability to Prioritising what matters to
deliver the NHS Long Term Plan, with delegated responsibilities from the ICB and service users and carers
the two trusts
*  Supported by an MHLDA Collaborative Programme Board and Executive Group,
which will bring executives from partners together to lead, develop and deliver the
Collaborative programme, with a PMO in place to coordinate key functions Delivering place based
priorities for mental health
. nging with place based mental health partnerships: within NEL wide allocation > reﬂec(:jtlng the _needsf, |a55‘|3t5
a#d planning and delivery parameters established by the Joint Committee, we will and aspirations of foca
. . A To improve outcomes communities
wgk with place-based partners on developing and delivering place-based . )
. . quality, value & equity for
p@rities, informed by a deep understanding of the needs and assets of the local people with, or at risk of, J
population, and local priorities established by the Health & Wellbeing Board and mental health conditions or
borough-based executive, including public mental health and tackling health learning disability and autism
inequalities J Improving access and
»| integration, including NHS
* Improvement networks/learning systems (see next slide) Long Term Plan must-dos
The MHLDA Collaborative approach is purposefully designed to have a horizonal J
dimension — working across the seven places in NEL where required — and a vertical
dimension — working into and out of places where required.
Spending our money wisely
Connection into the other NEL collaboratives is also key — through the place based to meet growing demand,
leadership committees, the ICB Population Health & Integration Committee, and the ensure equ;t:; gtnacflfsupportmg
improvement networks led by both the MHLDA Collaborative (e.g. physical health of
people with SMI) and other collaboratives (e.g. maternity).




Improvement networks

* We are bringing clinical leads and social care professionals together with service users and carers from across the two Trusts, primary
care, and other partners around key improvement priorities across North East London. These include:

* Primary care talking therapies (or “IAPT”): our clinical leads across the two Trusts and the Homerton are working together to share
learning and develop our services. On 3 March they held an improvement network away day event, attended by members from all of
our teams across the whole of NEL — it was a warm and joyful event, with a deep sense of collaboration and some very creative and
thoughtful ideas on how we can collaborate more deeply across our services to promote better outcomes, access and equity. Some of
these ideas are now already taking shape — for example the network is intending to launch our first NEL wide in-person group therapies
for residents facilitated by our Bengali and Albanian staff in Bengali and Albanian in the early Summer.

. aildren & young peoples mental health: Our children and young people’s mental health improvement network is also progressing well.
29t April the network organised a co-production workshop with 40 children and young people and their families to develop our
@Borities and design our approach for lived experience leadership.

* We are now in the process of launching improvement networks for perinatal mental health, dementia and rehabilitation.

* Our improvement networks are generating real energy. They are:
(d Wherever possible being organized around identifiable populations (rather than services).
Understanding need, assets, demand, outcomes, quality and value, including inequalities.

Focusing on improvement, sharing learning and deploying where appropriate triple aim/quality improvement.

U OO

Being led by a lead clinician, along with a service user leader, with identified management support — a triumvirate leadership
approach.

U

Linking to other NEL programmes, including the primary care collaborative, acute collaborative, children and young people’s
programme.



Planning together for 2023/24

* We have collaborated more deeply than ever before in developing our operating plans for mental health, learning disability & autism for
2023/24, developing together plans that see c. £27m new investment into mental health and £4.4m into learning disability & autism

* The plan has led to c. £14.5m new mental health funding and £2.4m of learning disability & autism funding to services in Barking &
Dagenham, Havering, Redbridge and Waltham Forest and c. £12.5m and £1.9m of learning disability & autism funding to City & Hackney,
Newham and Tower Hamlets

* The plan has explicitly recognised inequalities/variation in funding across our seven boroughs. This is something that the Collaborative is
uniquely placed to do, given it involves the two Trusts working together to plan with the knowledge of variation across boroughs from our
clinical and service user experts, and the ability to influence/determine how money is allocated through our partnership director leads. For
CAMHS funding in particular, we have been able to recognise under-investment in Barking & Dagenham, Newham, Redbridge and
W@Itham Forest and invest more heavily in those places.

N
* The plan has also explicitly recognised urgent & emergency care pressures in outer boroughs and recurrently funded the Goodmayes
Clinical Decision Unit and the community crisis services

* We have also secured c.£1.5m capital investment into our urgent & emergency care services for 2023/24

* None of the above would have been achievable if the Collaborative had not been in place with our leadership teams across NELFT and
ELFT working very closely together.



Urgent and Emergency Care (UEC)

* We have experienced considerable and sustained pressures in urgent & emergency care services over the last twelve months, in particular
people with mental health conditions attending A&E departments and waiting for a long time for care to be put in place for appropriate
discharge, including inpatient beds.

* The reasons for this are complex, but include growing complexity in the problems people are experiencing, in the context of the pandemic.
The particular pressure on A&E departments includes, but is not limited to, people with mental health conditions — in fact the number of
people with mental health conditions attending A&E with mental health as the primary issue is proportionately very small, however we are
absolutely committed to ensuring people with mental health conditions do not have to wait a long time in A&E.

. ngether across NELFT and ELFT we are working together to develop and implement our plans to ensure this is the case:

-SWorking together to manage beds across North East London, with NELFT and ELFT providing beds to each other when available and
c,\D;mecessary, so we do not have to use the private sector or place people out of area.

N
- Undertaken an audit of people waiting longer than 12 hours in all of our A&E departments and we are working across psychiatric liaison
and A&E teams to improve A&E care processes, with a NEL-wide event planned in June to bring all of our teams together.

- Planning to open up additional patient capacity at Goodmayes later this year.

- Providing local female psychiatric intensive care beds for NELFT service users at Rosebank Ward, Mile End Hospital (up until this year,
all NELFT service users requiring female PICU were admitted to the private sector).

- Planning to invest in and develop our Health Based Places of Safety, opening up an additional room at Sunflower Court later in the year.
- Planning to invest in our psychiatric liaison teams, following on from a review which is currently underway.

- Planning to invest in and develop our crisis line services in readiness for a new service to be in place early next year.



Deriving insights from data: system diagnostic for MHLDA

* We are currently undertaking a “diagnostic” of
mental health, learning disability & autism across
north east London

Our analytical framework will seek to answer high level strategic questions, whilst

* The purpose of the diagnostic is to support the North
East London Mental Health, Learning Disability and
Autism Collaborative to develop a clear
understanding of the outcomes and quality and
value we achieve in our MHLDA programmes for the
money we spend

providing service-level insights

Is money being spent
equitably across boroughs
and services?

Equity and
Funding

* The intention is that the diagnostic will:

v Help the system to understand the need for

@ental health, learning disability and autism
vices, including the relative complexity of need

awyoss places, unmet needs, inequities in access
and outcomes, and likely future demand

v’ Cover all ages

v’ Create a compelling evidence base to underpin
future plans

v’ Support sustainability of services

v/ Support a fair allocation of system resources

v’ Provide a common planning framework and tool
for ongoing use

Value and Are we achieving the best

Best Practice outcomes based on spend?

Where are the biggest
demand pressures and
where does demand exceed
capacity?

Demand and
Capacity

Are services currently equal
in access and availability for
different cohorts across and
within boroughs?

Equality of

Access

*  An expert supplier (PA Consulting) has been
secured to support the diagnostic, with contract
commencement in January 2023, and project
completion expected in autumn 2023.

System-level output Service-level output Insights and recommendations

Areview of current system
allocation taking into account
population need

Overview of areas of the
system achieving the best
outcomes

Understanding of areas with
growing demand, workforce /
finance capacity constraints

Areview of protected
characteristics and areas
where there is inequality of
access.

Where services are receiving
higher or lower levels of
funding compared to current
need

A view of services delivering
the optimal outcomes

A view on fragile services
where demand will exceed
capacity

Understanding where services
have the highest inequalities

+ Recommendations on
reallocation of funds

+ Recommendations for
future service models

+ Recommendations on
reallocation of funds

+ Recommendations for
new/different services



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

OUTER NORTH EAST LONDON JOINT HEALTH
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 27 JULY 2023

Subject Heading: ONEL Health Updates

Report Author: Luke Phimister, Committee Officer,
London Borough of Havering

Policy context:
Officers will give details.

Financial summary: No financial implications of the covering
report itself.

‘ SUMMARY ‘

Officers will give details on a number of areas of relevance to the Joint Committee.

‘ RECOMMENDATIONS ‘

1. That the Joint Committee scrutinises the information presented and makes
any recommendations or takes any other action it considers appropriate.

REPORT DETAIL

Page 25



Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 10 January 2023

The Committee will receive a presentation on health updates for ONEL. Further
details are given on the attached presentation.

IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS

Financial implications and risks: None of this covering report.
Legal implications and risks: None of this covering report.
Human Resources implications and risks: None of this covering report.

Equalities implications and risks: None of this covering report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None.

Page 26



. North East London
e Health & Care
» Partnership

Health updates

ONEL JHOSC July 2023

/¢ abed




NHS NEL — The Big Conversation 3 iehte e

-“.". Partnership

The Big Conversation is about listening to the people in our communities, and understanding their views about

health, care and wellbeing. It will help us focus on what matters to local people and how we can work with them
and use their insight to improve what we do.

Based on what we already know about the needs of local people, the Big Conversation focuses on our four
priorities for improving quality and outcomes and tackling health inequalities: Babies, children and young
_Upeople, long term conditions, mental health and local employment and workforce.

Q

8 We are running an online survey open until 31 July (with over 300 responses as of 22 June) and holding a series

Ny of events throughout June and July in local areas and online, with different groups and focusing on different
topics, supported by local Healthwatch.

We encourage committee members to come along to the events, complete the survey and encourage friends and
colleagues to do the same.

Analysis will take place in August with an event planned for Autumn to look at findings and how we use these to
develop success measures to hold ourselves to account on and report on regularly.

For more info: The ‘Big Conversation’ - North East London Health & Care Partnership
(northeastlondonhcp.nhs.uk)



https://survey.alchemer.eu/s3/90580341/NEL-big-conversation
https://www.northeastlondonhcp.nhs.uk/getinvolved/what-is-the-big-conversation/
https://www.northeastlondonhcp.nhs.uk/getinvolved/what-is-the-big-conversation/
https://www.northeastlondonhcp.nhs.uk/getinvolved/what-is-the-big-conversation/
https://www.northeastlondonhcp.nhs.uk/getinvolved/what-is-the-big-conversation/
https://www.northeastlondonhcp.nhs.uk/getinvolved/what-is-the-big-conversation/
https://www.northeastlondonhcp.nhs.uk/getinvolved/what-is-the-big-conversation/

62 abed

‘os?ss’. North East London

NHS NEL Organisational structure i eithacae

NHS NEL (NEL Integrated Care Board) is restructuring in order to meet the challenges and
opportunities provided by the Health and Care Act 2022 and other influences such as the NHSE
reguirement to reduce our budget by 30% by 2025/26 (which means a greater reduction in reality as
we need to fund and account for inflationary pressures)

We want to improve patient and public participation (both in developing health and care solutions,
and in taking control of their own health); and to get all parts of the health and care system working
collaboratively. We want our staff to have fulfilling and enriching careers in the ICB and to benefit
from working with colleagues in the NHS and our partners

NEL conducted a staff consultation from 18 April to 16 June and we are currently finalising the
structure, with staff expected to transition to new roles at the end of October/start of November

However there will need to be further work on the structure e.g. to accommodate new
commissioning responsibilities and staff for pharmaceutical, general ophthalmic, dental, and primary
care complaints services (transferring 1 July 2023)

(See also the paper on Place Partnership Mutual Accountability Framework)


https://www.england.nhs.uk/long-read/integrated-care-board-running-cost-allowances-efficiency-requirements/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/long-read/integrated-care-board-running-cost-allowances-efficiency-requirements/

‘e o, North East London

NEL ICS 23-24 operating plan summary - Healthgcare

. Partnership

* NEL ICS submitted its final 23-24 operating plan in May 2023.
The plan shows a system breakeven however some parts of the

Recurrent Funding 3,659,132 system are required to generate surpluses to support deficits in
Primary Care Funding 392,894 others
Dental, Ophthalmic and Pharmacy 215,905
Running Costs 38,745 . . .o
9 « Total ICB funding equates to £4.4bn, and includes specific

Non Recurrent Fundin 99,225 ) ) ] ]
— allocations with regard to Primary care and running costs.

To achieve breakeven the system will have to deliver £278m of efficiency savings. This presents a significant delivery challenge
for all parts of the system. The efficiency savings are made up of a combination of non recurrent in year measures, increases in
productivity, additional income and reductions in temporary staffing costs and non pay costs.

o€ abed

At month 2, the ICS has a year-to-date adverse variance to plan of £25.7m, including an ICB £7m variance. The key drivers for
overspends are as follows;

I.  Efficiencies - month 2 reported slippage against planned year-to-date efficiencies of £18.1m.
li. Inflation — providers and the ICB have reported additional costs as a result of inflation being higher than planned levels.
lii. Payroll costs — providers have reported pressures in relation to pay, including agency staffing.

« A number of recovery actions across the system have been put in place, centred upon the delivery of efficiency programmes
that will need to recover the year to date slippage seen.

» The level of recurrent pressures within the system underlying position mean that there will need to be a strong focus on
efficiency and productivity through 23/24 and 24/25.



Strike action ;%4 North East London

.“.“. Partnership

« The strike action by nurses at the Royal College of Nursing will not continue after fewer than 50% of the
membership voted. Unison and other colleges except Unite and the Royal College of Radiographers have
accepted the deal. However we should be under no illusions about the dissatisfaction amongst the workforce
about the settlement.

The three junior doctors’ strikes have had an inevitable impact in all sorts of ways; from the time spent to plan,
manage and cover for strikes; the backlog of operations that has built, and the financial cost . Acute trusts
have prioritised patient safety, with consultants providing cover and minimised the effect as best as possible,
but nevertheless there has been significant impact.

Those people who had operations cancelled were prioritised for re-booking. However aims to reduce the
number of people on long waiting lists will be imperilled by future strikes.

. T€8bed

A fourth strike by junior doctors is planned for this month as well as one by consultants which would result in one in
three working days in July being a strike day. It is evident that a significant number of doctors, at all stages of their
careers, are unhappy with NHS pay and conditions. The risk in the medium to long term is that they will be less likely
to commit to a future in the health service.

« BHRUT along has spent close to £1m on staffing to fill rotas and lost a similar amount of income from work that
couldn’t take place during the industrial action.


https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/health-65992176
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https://www.bhrhospitals.nhs.uk/news/strike-by-junior-doctors-4089&data=05|01|don.neame@nhs.net|3baf0bb63be446034bd508db795bca62|37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3|0|0|638237207357856599|Unknown|TWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0=|3000|||&sdata=TW5XovxCroAwKM5y/b+wioTTWB3eAdINdPflAqcd08c=&reserved=0
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/health-65998528
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/health-65992178&data=05|01|don.neame@nhs.net|3baf0bb63be446034bd508db795bca62|37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3|0|0|638237207357856599|Unknown|TWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0=|3000|||&sdata=jayeyNje3KWVz3zVEtCAZZ0tiI/U4QRMSIEYyt736m8=&reserved=0

oo oo North East London
-o:-, Z- Health & Care

BHRUT iyl Heth e Co

T
jab)
Q
®
w
N




3. .. North East London
g, . 2+ Health & Care
.“.“. Partnership

Urgent and emergency care (UEC)

* Following the expansion of Same Day Emergency Care (SDEC) at Queen’s Hospital, we have now opened SDEC
at KGH, to help reduce unnecessary admissions.

* We have also opened a new discharge facility at Queen’s Hospital to improve patient experience while waiting to
go home, and help improve flow from A&E to the ward.

« Trust type 1 performance in May was 40.48%, a significant improvement on the previous 20 months.

« Patients with mental health conditions continue to wait for long periods of time - in May, the average wait for to be
moved to a service better able to care for their needs was almost 20 hours.

Finance

- At the end of May, our deficit was £5.8m adverse to plan, due, in part, to industrial action, inflationary costs and
slippage against our waste reduction programme.

* We continue to focus on establishing and maintaining the right size of the organisation; making pay rates more
equitable and affordable; and getting better value for money from suppliers.

* In May, we stopped paying for high-cost agency nurses — also known as off framework — in line with our May
deadline.

Senior leadership

* Fiona Wheeler has been appointed Chief Operating Officer. Under her leadership of our planned care recovery
programme for the past year, we have seen a significant reduction in waiting lists. All our senior leaders are now
substantive appointments and the stability this brings will greatly benefit our patients and staff.

cc abed



Reducing our waiting lists

* One way we're further reducing waiting time for
treatment is by increasing use of our theatres to 90
per cent of available sessions, up from
84 per cent in early 2022. This is despite having to
reduce our planned surgery by 15 per cent
(equivalent to the loss of one theatre) due to
a national increase in demand on emergency
surgery.

* We remain ambitious in our plans to eliminate waits
of more than a year by Christmas, although this may
be impacted by having to rearrange almost 6,200
outpatient appointments and 450 surgeries as a
result of industrial action to date by junior doctors.

7€ obed

§- North East London
e Health & Care

» Partnership

Patients waiting over 52 weeks

Fl Target KPT Actusl Mean Variation

Trust Wide Position

0 1052 1376 @ @

sl
L]
e
d
o

« Work on our £14m Elective Surgical Hub expansion at King George Hospital is taking shape. We welcomed Julian Kelly,

Chief Financial Officer at NHS England at our topping out ceremony to celebrate the new building reaching its highest point.

And NHS Providers published a case study on the work we’'ve been doing around our Community Diagnostics Centre (CDC)
at Barking Community Hospital, where additional diagnostics capacity is proving invaluable in helping address our backlog.
The CDC is due to open in early 2024. Professor Sir Mike Richards, who recommended CDCs following his review of

NHS diagnostics capacity, recently visited the site.


https://www.bhrhospitals.nhs.uk/news/reducing-our-waiting-lists-and-boosting-our-finances-by-using-our-theatres-more-effectively-4078
https://www.bhrhospitals.nhs.uk/news/expansion-of-our-elective-surgical-hub-begins-to-take-shape-4079
https://www.bhrhospitals.nhs.uk/news/topping-out-ceremony-as-our-new-theatre-building-reaches-its-highest-point-4115
NHS Providers have published a case study on the work we’ve been doing around our Community Diagnostics Centre (CDC) at Barking Community Hospital (BCH).

oo oo North East London
-o:- o Health & Care

Barts Health el BaRneren

o
jab)
Q
@D
w
ol




§-, North East London
,-o Health & Care
Partnership

Strike action and urgent and emergency care:

« We have now had three separate phases of junior doctors industrial action in March, May
and June. During the strikes we have prioritised patient safety, with consultants providing cover in medical wards
and in ED. In May we cancelled 7,600 routine outpatient appointments and 422 elective procedures to enable this.

« This has impacted our long waiter position. Those who were cancelled were prioritised for re-booked by our
hospital teams.

« Our hospitals remain extremely busy. For April 2023, Barts Health recorded the highest volume of A&E attendances
of any trust in England. Our performance against the 4-hour standard improved in April with all hospitals over
70%, putting us 8" out of 16 London Trusts.

Mental Health patients presenting in ED continues to present major challenges. Although attendance numbers are
stable, the time they spend in ED has increased significantly. We continue to work with system colleagues to find
sustainable solutions to this challenge

9¢ obed

Planned care recovery:

« Our activity volumes for April and May have been strong when allowing for the strike action, at 95% of our annual
plan. Hospitals are developing their local productivity plans to ensure we are treating as many patients as possible.
We’'re making progress on long waiters (see slide 2)

* We have now launched patient portal, Patient Knows Best which allows patients to access their health record
online. Initially this will let them see appointment info and will reduce the number of people not attending
appointments. Over time they will also be access other information including scan and test results. Please
encourage your local communities to sign up to this at https://www.bartshealth.nhs.uk/patients-know-best



https://www.bartshealth.nhs.uk/patients-know-best
https://www.bartshealth.nhs.uk/patients-know-best
https://www.bartshealth.nhs.uk/patients-know-best
https://www.bartshealth.nhs.uk/patients-know-best
https://www.bartshealth.nhs.uk/patients-know-best

§- North East London
e Health & Care

» Partnership

Strategic updates:

* The Secretary of State has announced that the Whipps Cross development is among the list of projects that will
proceed. We'll continue to work with national colleagues in the new hospital programme to agree next steps for
completing the business case.

« Our new We are Barts Health document charts our strategic direction as we refresh our clinical strategy in
partnership with the other acute trusts and NHS bodies in north east London.

» The insourcing of over 1,794 people from Serco has now completed — which took place over the past 7 months
and included porters, security and reception teams. We are confident that this will improve the service patients
receive, and we've already seen improvements in cleaning.

« Amanjit Jhund has been appointed as Chief Executive Officer for Whipps Cross Hospital and will assume
responsibility from 17 July

)€ abed




Planned care recovery

-,g‘. North East London
** Health & Care

.0, .‘,3. Partnership
RTT Incomplete Pathways Recovery Trajectory - 78+ Weeks
5,000 78 Week waiters
4,000 » Our 78 week waiters peaked at over 4,000
3,000 during the pandemic
2.000 » This is reduced significantly; at the end of
1000 April, 294 patients were waiting 78+ weeks for
o a treatment or procedure which has reduced
oo iESRESSS SN NRARNRIIRRAQRA e -
o £ 5322 8838228522588 8882¢88%8 « Our target is to see all patients who have been
® waiting 78+ weeks by the end of June,
o however this has been impacted to some
RTT Incomplete Pathways Recovery Trajectory - 104+ Weeks extent by junior doctor industrial action, which
200 had cancelled some of these appointments
600
igg 104 week waiters
300 « We have now all but cleared our two year
200 waiters, however there continue to be very
100 small numbers who breach this date — as at
0 Bttt June there is just one person waiting
N F & 8 A 8 83 FF A /AN AJFJFFAFAFTAQYgAaA . , ,
> £ 5 ® 28 3 8 5 8 5532 S S5 ® g8 3 85 85 5 - This is due to patient choice or where the
> - <N 9 =z0 7 d <35 =S <P 9=z 0 " d < surgery required if very complex
Mean UCL LCL —— Metric - e = [arget




oo oo North East London
-o:-, 2+ Health & Care

ELFT and NELFT

o
jab)
Q
@D
w
©




§-, North East London
,-o Health & Care
Partnership

NELFT and ELFT

Service demand

« Demand pressures have continued to be significant across North East London, across all ages, and both for crisis and
routine referrals. The trusts are working together and with partners to support our service users.

Metropolitan Police announcement: Mental health callouts

It was announced in late May by the Metropolitan Police Commissioner, Sir Mark Rowley, that the police intend to make
changes to their response to mental health related calls, in line with the Right Person, Right Place scheme that has been
running in Humberside over the last few years. We are working closely with police colleagues in North East London to
consider the implications of any changes for services locally, and to make necessary changes to arrangements.

EL Mental Health UEC Improvement

« Across North East London, we are introducing a range of services that aim to improve the capacity of the Mental Health
Urgent and Emergency Care pathway. These include:

- Additional acute bed capacity on the Goodmayes site

« Additional Health Based Place of Safety capacity

« Additional staff in Emergency Departments and additional assessment space created.
« Joint Mental Health Response Cars with the London Ambulance service

o} abed



NELFT and ELFT ses%ss’. North East London

-s. e+ Health & Care
.o-.“. Partnership

Community Health services development

* A number of priority service developments are being taken forwards, including the development of Virtual Wards in the
community, work on Speech and Language Therapy, and delivery of the Ageing Well programme.

NHS 75

« Afree events took place in East London to celebrate 75 years of the NHS. The London Community Fayre was held on
Wednesday, 12th July from 14:00-16:30 at Toynbee Hall, 28 Commercial Street, London, E1 6LS.

NHS75 Food Festival Goodmayes, held on Wednesday 5 July, 12:00-16:00 at Goodmayes Hospital, 157 Barley Lane,
lIford 1G3 8XJ

NELFT launched the NHS75 Community Cookbook on 5 July— a free cookbook full of recipes from staff, patients and carers.
Donations are welcome with proceeds going to The Health Way Foundation.

TV afed .

Patient and Carer Race Equality Framework (PCREF)

Both Trusts have been trailblazers for the PCREF work nationally, working with patients, carers and communities to improve
experiences and outcomes.

 NELFT’s PCREF launch event is 09:30-16:00 14 July London Chigwell Prince Regent Hotel - Princess Suite Manor
Road Chigwell IG8 8AE



This page is intentionally left blank



Y oo North East London m

. : ’ Health & Care North East London
“ “ Partnership

Joint forward plan update
ONEL JOSC

Johanna Moss — Chief Strategy and Transformation Officer




Introduction to Joint Forward Plan (JFP)

 The Health & Care Act 2022 requires each Integrated Care Board (ICB) in England, and their partner NHS trusts
and foundation trusts, to produce and publish a Joint Forward Plan (JFP).

« As well as setting out how the ICB intends to meet the health needs of the population within its area, the JFP is
expected to be a delivery plan for the integrated care strategy of the local Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) and
relevant joint local health and wellbeing strategies (JLHWSSs), whilst addressing universal NHS commitments.

» As such, the JFP provides a bridge between the ambitions described in the integrated care strategy
developed by the ICP and the detailed operational and financial requirements contained in NHS planning
submissions.

v abed

« ICBs and their partner trusts should review their JFP before the start of each financial year, by updating or
confirming that it is being maintained for the next financial year. They may also revise the JFP in-year if they
consider this necessary.

* The purpose of the JFP is to describe how the ICB, its partner NHS trusts and foundation trusts intend to meet the
physical and mental health needs of their population through arranging and/or providing NHS services
addressing the four core purposes of the ICS, the universal NHS commitments and meeting the legal
requirements of the guidance.



Relationships between strategy and plans

ansformation or addressing

alities and service redesign

Integrated Care Strategy — this sets ICP strategic priorities to meet the needs of our population

Describes the needs of our population and the
strategic challenge including health inequalities

Discusses how we will address the needs of
our population and address health inequalities
through the 4 ICS priorities

Describe how we will work differently as a
system to deliver against the 4 ICS priorities

Describe the impacts of the 4 ICS priorities on
our population and workforce

Joint Forward Plan — Sets out how the integrated care strategy priorities and the NHS operational
planning requirements will be met

How it will deliver on Integrated Care Strategy
priorities, key NHS priorities and NHS universal
commitment (performance standards)

What part of the system will be delivering the
Integrated Care Strategy priorities, key NHS
priorities and NHS universal commitment
(performance standards)

How it will exercise its core functions to deliver
the Integrated Care Strategy priorities, key
NHS priorities and NHS universal commitment
(performance standards)

How it will organise and develop the system to
deliver the Integrated Care Strategy priorities,
key NHS priorities and NHS universal
commitment (performance standards)

Dl L4

Impact

Activity and

performance
trajectories

Operational Planning Guidance — Sets out what we aim to deliver in 23/24

Activity trajectory for planned and unplanned
care

Cancer and elective performance trajectories

Mental Health trajectories

Out of hospital, primary care or place based
trajectories




Development of the Joint Forward Plan (JFP)

» As a delivery plan for the north east London (NEL) Integrated
Care Strategy, we have worked with our partners, including
the seven Places to develop the JFP. Importantly, this is * We have updated ce_rtain sections where the content has
where our people live and where they are part of their local moved on, such as finance and workforce to ensure
community with its local priorities and services. gl 2 e F= e e 11k Sl g

Key changes incorporated in the final version

We have enhanced certain sections, such as inequalities

» This plan outlines how we are working together as part of a

T wider svstem where we are addressing health and care and inclusion, to ensure full representation of the range of
& ystel : . 9 work underway in these key ICS priorities.
o) needs and improving services everywhere across north east
g London. We have reviewed some of the terminology to ensure
_ _ consistency.
« Afirst draft was completed by the end of March, and since
then, we have engaged with our Health and Wellbeing We have also received feedback related to how we work
Boards, our Place-based Partnerships and our Provider as a system. As a response we have added a slide called

‘We will continue to evolve as a system’. Further work will
be taken forward with our partners around system
development, design of a new system planning cycle and
-« Based on the feedback we have updated the JFP and it will how we will strengthen the way we measure the impact of
be published on the web at the end of June. A short summary our programmes.
is included below, and the full document is available as an We have added a slide on how we have engaged and

appendix. aligned with health and wellbeing board priorities.

Collaboratives as well as wider partners to ensure alignment
to partner plans and to identify any gaps.




Strategic alignment with local healt

n and wellbeing priorities across NE

Waltham Forest
Hackney
- The best start in life to develop, thrive and achieve
- Improving - Healthy, longer, happy lives prosperous, active and
mental health sustainable
= Increasing - Thriving maturity and protected community: safe,
social supported and independent
connection

- Supporting
greater financial
security

e & |

City of London

=  Good mental Redbridge

health for all

- A healthy urban
environment

- Effective health
and social care
integration

) .abed

Redbridge

Achieving the best start in life

Diabetes prevention and management
Mental wellbeing

Cancer survival

Living well in a decent home you can afford
End of life care

Havering

- Assisting people with health
problems (back) into work
Further developing the
Council / NHS Trusts as
‘anchor institutions’

- Provide strategic leadership

Barking and
Dagenham

Havering

Tower Hamlets Newham

- We can all access safe, social spaces near our
homes, so that we can live active, healthy
lives as a community

- Children and families are healthy, happy,
and confident

- Young gdults have the opportunities,
connec;ions and local support they need to
live mentally and physically healthy lives

- Middle-aged and older people are enabled
to live healthy lives and get support early if
they need it — whether it is for their mental
or physical health

- Anyone needing help knows where to get it, -
and is supported to find the right help

supported

Working towards a smoke free Newham
Building a borough of health promoting housing
Building an inclusive economy and tackling poverty

Enabling the best start through pregnancy and early years

Supporting our young people to be healthy and ready for adult life

Supporting pecple around the determinants of their health

Developing high quality inclusive services, ensuring equity and reducing variation
Meeting the needs of those most vulnerable to the worst health outcomes
Creating 2 healthier food environment
Supporting active travel and improved air guality
Creating an active borough
Supporting a Newham of communities where people are better connected and

Sy

for collective efforts to
prevent homelessness and
the harm caused

- Realising the benefits of
regeneration for health and
social care services

- Improve support to residents
whose life experiences drive
freguent calls on health and
social care services

- Obesity

Reducing tcbacco harm

Early years providers, schools

/ colleges as health

improvement settings

- Development of integrated
health and social care
services for CYP and adult s at
locality level

Barking and Dagenham

- Best Start in Life

- Early Diagnosis and
Intervention

- Building individual and
community strength

*Note these are joint health and wellbeing
priorities which may evolve as place based
partnerships become more established




Next steps

Next steps

Building on our learning from the process this year, we are now looking to co- Areas for further development

design a system planning cycle with our partners over the summer that will bring B FEIN = =Re TN { [yl R 1N GO o fo1e =10 SR 1 o IR s

together and streamline different planning processes to optimise the way we system level where we have visibility of them but we
plan. recognise that there is more to do to identify the full

breadth of transformation activity across all partners /
parts of the system and to develop this into a system
plan aligned to our strategy.

While we will continue to respond to any further central guidance issued, our
approach will be primarily geared towards bringing local partners together with
local people to tackle knotty issues and develop innovative solutions for the

U short, medium and longer term. We have also heard from our social care and care
g _ _ provider partners that there is more we need to do to
@ We have outlined the proposed high-level steps below: integrate plans and work programmes across our whole
S July: system building on some of the foundations that are in
_ _ ) development such as the work on local authority data
- System wide workshop to co-design the system planning cycle sharing.
September and October: As we design our processes for next year, kicking off
- Workshops with partners and local people to test our strategic context and the after the summer, we will be working with Place-based
outcomes we want to achieve based on outputs from the Big Conversations Partnerships to ensure that care partner plans and
priorities are fully reflected in local priorities as well as
October to December: utilising opportunities for regular engagement and
- Theme-based workshops to test the current transformation programmes, their involvement with groups at the system level such as the
alignment with the strategy and the operational priorities feeding into a refresh DASS and DCS groups and Care Provider Voice forum.

of the Joint Forward Plan for 24/25 We will also explore how we can present the JFP
differently in future to make it easier for our places to

January to March: i ;
navigate from a local perspective.

» Work with partners to develop our operational plan as a system



. . North East London [lZZE

e;. o Health & Care North East London
.0 S . Partnership

Summary — North East London
(NEL) Joint Forward Plan



Introduction

This Joint Forward Plan describes how the local NHS and our partners (Local Councils, charities,
voluntary groups and others) plan to improve the health and care of local people for the next five years.

We can’t simply keep doing what we do now. More and more people are moving into our area and we
already have some of the worst pockets of poor health, and the longest waits to see GPs or get treatment
in hospitals and A&E in London.

Our residents also have some of the highest rates in the country for child and adult obesity, diabetes and
heart disease. Many are living in poor or insecure housing and in low income families which lead to
poorer health.

0G abed

That’s why local doctors, hospitals, Councils, voluntary groups and community services such as mental
health, must work better, and smarter, to use the limited money and staff available to us to improve things
for everyone. This document tells you how we plan to do that and includes links to more detailed
information on our plans if you want to read it. We're also being honest about the things that need to
happen for our plan to work.



Challenges and Opportunities

We need a completely new approach to how we work together to deliver health and social care for local
people across north east London. We also need to spend more time and resources on prevention —
helping people to take better care of themselves before they get sick and then need to rely on the NHS
and others. If we don’t do this, we’ll never be able to afford to properly care for you and your families in the
future. Things have to improve.

Improving how we work

We’ve improved the way we work together to plan and deliver health and social care so we can get more
for our money, and so we can focus on prevention and on earlier diagnosis and better care in the right
place. This means a new approach to everything from emergency care in hospitals to looking after people
with ongoing health issues, from GPs and mental health to those needing tests and more routine
operations.

TG obed

Different parts of our local health and care ‘system’ have been working hard to tackle most of these things

for years, but we've never all come together before to agree the best way forward and to come up with a
plan like this. So, what are we doing?



2S abed

Our priorities (1/5)

Long term conditions

We’'re putting in place seven day a week services for everyone with symptoms of a mini stroke, focussing on prevention and
better care for those with Type 2 diabetes and improving our heart failure care services right across the area. We'll also help
more kidney patients to have dialysis at home where appropriate.

This part of our plan relies on us having enough staff for the new clinical teams, getting the funding we need and getting
everyone working in health and care locally to sign up to our plan.

Mental health

Our plans will see shorter waits in A&E for people with mental health needs, more support workers, better access to Talking
Therapies for anyone that needs it, more personalised care and a focus on mental health service users helping us to develop
and improve those services. We'll also be offering mental health support in every secondary school across our area.

We need to tackle high rates of staff vacancies in some areas and make sure that we bring together everyone that works in
mental health to be as coordinated as possible to plan and deliver the very best care for children and people who need help.




oG abed

Our priorities (2/5)

Maternity

We’re working to ensure all women are offered dedicated care throughout their pregnancy, that we greatly reduce some of the
things that can go wrong — especially for women in deprived areas, and that GPs and other baby services work more closely
with our maternity staff. We also want more women to breastfeed their babies.

This part of our plan relies on us recruiting/training more maternity staff and being able to fund more research into the future
demands on our maternity services so we have the right service in place for women now and in the years to come.

Babies, children and young people

We're making sure that children aged 5-11 who are overweight, get the help they need to be healthy. We’re planning more help
for families with very small children nearer to where they live, supporting children with special needs to be ready to for starting
school and more support for families who are struggling to know where to go for help when they need it.

Our plans rely on families with obese children recognising that they need help, on recruiting more staff and on more funding to
care better for those children with special needs.




Our priorities (3/5)

Employment and workforce

We’re employing another 900 staff in the next year for the health and care services described above and we want everyone to be
paid fairly. Our plans will see more GPs and clinical staff in practices and less reliance in our hospitals on expensive temporary
staff, with more full-time nurses and doctors. We also want to employ more local people to train and work here in the NHS.

Our plans rely on more funding to bring in the extra staff we need and also on keeping the staff we have — many are suffering
from ‘burn out’ as a result of the pandemic and the constant pressure they are under.

Community health services

We’'re working with local Healthwatch and the voluntary sector to help people coming out of hospital to be able to stay safely at
home, we’re focussing care on those with several health conditions, employing 2,000 more staff to help the terminally ill and their
families and ensuring that all our services can see one single care record for a patient.

G abed

This part of our plan relies on us getting the funding, solving some of the privacy issues around sharing records and attracting
those new staff and/or training local people.

GPs and pharmacists

We’re making use of latest technology so people can more easily get help from their GP, including remote appointments, helping
some GP practices to improve levels of care and their quality ratings, introducing more pharmacy services and improving all our
‘same day’ services.

This part of our plan relies on us being able to fund some of the technological changes we want to make and on everyone
involved participating in our plan and making the necessary changes.



Our priorities (4/5)

Urgent and emergency care

We’'re making it easier for you to book urgent appointments, finding ways to educate and support people who use the service when
they don'’t really need to, working with the ambulance service to only bring people who need hospital care to A&E, and finding new,
streamlined ways to care for people who need same day, urgent care.

This part of our plan relies on us getting the funding we need, getting to grip with the different ways this care is delivered across our
area now and continuing to make it as easy as possible for residents to know how and where to get the care they need.

Cancer

GG obed

We’'re working to be able to detect cancers earlier, giving people a better chance of a full recovery. At the moment we’re focussing
on earlier diagnosis of lung, prostate, pancreatic and liver cancers and working towards personalised care and support for all our
patients. We also want to increase the numbers of people coming forward for screening so we can catch cancers eatrlier.

This part of our plan relies on solving some of the staffing issues at local hospitals which mean we can’t do as many, or turn around
tests as quickly as we’d like to.



Our priorities (5/5)

Operations and tests

We’'re reducing waiting times for people currently on lists for an operation and opening new centres across the area for people
to get faster ultrasound and CT scans and tests for cancer and other conditions. We’re also increasing the number of
operations taking place in our hospitals’ theatres and working hard to bring all our services up to the same high standard for all
our residents.

This part of our plan relies on us being able to recruit more staff, expand some operating theatres and improve our technology
to help quicker decision making.

9G obed

Health inequalities

We know that health care, and people’s experience of it, isn’t the same in different parts of north east London. This is
particularly the case for people living in our more deprived areas, those from ethnic minorities, for carers, those with learning
disabilities, autism and for the homeless. We plan to improve this so that everyone, no matter who they are or where they live,
gets the best care possible and lives a healthier life.

Once again, we need the funding and the staff with the right skills and expertise to put our plans in place.



)G abed

North east London —improving all the time

The way the NHS works with local councils and the voluntary sector has changed a lot in recent years. Most of the
health and care issues that local people have, however, remain the same.

This latest plan looks to get the very best value for every pound we spend and to use and support our brilliant staff —
now and in the future - in the best, most productive way possible. We are looking at how we can work together to
streamline care and stop duplication, which is frustrating for patients and our staff. The plan will be updated as the
years go by because we need to plan, but also adapt to new challenges such as lots more people coming to live here.

We want to involve local people as much as possible in everything we do. That's why we’ll be coming to you to ask for
your help and ideas as we work together to improve the health and lives of everyone across our area.

For more information about who we are and how we are working with our partners to improve health and care for
people across north east London, click here.


https://www.northeastlondonhcp.nhs.uk/

This page is intentionally left blank



estes’. North East London m

o : ’ Health & Care North East London
2% » Partnership

North East London (NEL)
Joint Forward Plan

June 2023



1. Introduction




Introduction

o This Joint Forward Plan is north east London’s first five-year plan since the establishment of NHS NEL. In this plan, we describe the challenges that we face
as a system in meeting the health and care needs of our local people, but also the assets we hold within our partnership.

o We know that the current model of health and care provision in north east London needs to adapt and improve to meet the needs of our growing and
changing population and in this plan we describe the substantial portfolio of transformation programmes that are seeking to do just that.

o The plan sets out the range of actions we are taking as a system to address the urgent pressures currently facing our services, the work we are undertaking
collaboratively to improve the health and care of our population and reduce inequalities, and how we are developing key enablers such as our estate and
digital infrastructure as well as financial sustainability.

o This is the first draft of our Joint Forward Plan and reflects that, as a partnership, we have more work to do to develop a cohesive and complete action plan
for meeting all the challenges we face together. We will work with local people, partners and stakeholders to update and improve the plan as we develop our
partnership, including annual refreshes, to ensure it stays relevant and useful to partners across the system.

Highlighting the distinct challenges we face as we seek to create a sustainable health and care system serving the people of north east London

In submitting our Joint Forward Plan, we are asking for greater recognition of three key strategic challenges that are beyond our direct control. The impact of these

challenges is increasingly affecting our ability to improve population health and inequalities, and to sustain core services and our system over the coming years.
and cost of living which have disproportionately impacted communities in north east London

* Population growth — significantly greater compared with London and England as well as being concentrated in some of our most deprived and ‘underserved’ areas

* Inadequate investment available for the growth needed in both clinical and care capacity and capital development to meet the needs of our growing population

|
|
|
|
|
I - Poverty and deprivation — which is more severe and widely spread compared with other parts of London and England, and further exacerbated by the pandemic
|
|
|
|
|
|




In January 2023, our integrated care partnership published our first strategy, setting
the overall direction for our Joint Forward Plan

Partners in NEL have agreed a collective ambition underpinned by a set of design

principles for improving health, wellbeing and equity. Our integrated care partnership’s ambition is to

“Work with and for all the people of north east London
to create meaningful improvements in health, wellbeing and equity.”

To achieve our ambition, partners are clear that a radical new approach to how we work
as a system is needed. Through broad engagement, including with our health and
wellbeing boards, place based partnerships and provider collaboratives we have identified
six cross-cutting themes which will be key to developing innovative and sustainable
services with a greater focus upstream on population health and tackling inequalities.

Improve quality Deepen Create value Secure greater

and outcomes collaboration equity

We know that our people are key to delivering these new ways of working and the success
of all aspects of this strateqgy. This is why supporting, developing and retaining our
workforce, as well as increasing local employment opportunities, is one of our four system

6 Crosscutting Themes

prior@s identified for this strategy. underpinning our new ICS approach 4 System Priorities
Q@ « Tackling Health Inegualities for improving quality and
Stakéholders across the partnership have agreed to focus together on four priorities as a * Greater focus on Prevention outcomes, and tackling

on, however, we will ensure there is a particular focus on our system priorities. We have «  Co-production with local people

been working with partners to consider how all parts of our system can support «  Creating a High Trust Environment «  Babies, Children & Young People
improvements in quality and outcomes and reduce health inegualities in these areas. that supports integration and R Long Term Conditions
We recognise that a well-functioning system that is able to meet the challenges of today . (c:)o;;léirt;(:iﬁ;lgg o [ R S E/Ioecnatlaelzrl:f)lagt;ment and workforce

and of future years is built on sound foundations. Our strategy therefore also includes
an outline of our plans for how we will transform our enabling infrastructure to support
better outcomes and a more sustainable system. This includes some of the elements of
our new financial strategy which will be fundamental to the delivery of greater value as
well as a shift in focus ‘upstream’.

driven by research and innovation

Securing the foundations of our system
Improving our physical and digital infrastructure
Maximising value through collective financial stewardship, investing in prevention
and innovation, and improving sustainability
Embedding equity

Critically we are committed to a relentless focus on equity as a system, embedding it in all
that we do.

Both the strategy and this Joint Forward Plan build upon the principles that we have
agreed as London ICBs with the Mayor of London

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
syst@h. There are, of course, a range of other areas that we will continue to collaborate : . Holistic and Personalised Care health inequalities
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|




The delivery of our Integrated Care Strategy and Joint Forward Plan is the
responsibility of a partnership of health and care organisations working collaboratively
to serve the people of north east London

The North East London Integrated Care System
We are a broad partnership, brought together by a single [ ]
purpose: to improve health and wellbeing outcomes for the
people of north east London. A

PCH{ PCH jPCH

N
Coan Xren )

Meighbourhood

Each of our partners has an impact on the people of north
east London — some providing care, others involved in
planning services, and others impacting on wider

determinants of health and care, such as housing and
education. ) 47 primary care networks working together at neighborhood level for a population of 30,000 to 50,000

Oy partnership between local people and communities, Delivery and # Seven place-based partnerships

tke NHS, local authorities and the voluntary and improvement
City and T Waltha Barking and .
....... .......

c&anunity sector, is uniquely positioned to improve all

. . . Local & thorities
a@ects of health and care including the wider — m;
determinants. . PCP:
With hundreds of health and care organisations serving Mertal Health Community BHAUIT
— ] AL N R iy Care

more than two million local people, we have to make sure Collaboration ', colaboraie | LemioDiatiiy | ohem | o lSS. | COES Hamerar,
that we are utilising each to the fullest and ensure that and joint planning ELFT

. . Supported by strategic ensblers af IC5 snd plsce” | Digtal || Estaes |
work is done, and decisions are made, at the most FELET

. s . SN ES....
Groups of partners coming together within partnerships are 4
crucial building blocks for how we will deliver. Together 4 Integrated Care Integrated Care
they p|ay critical roles in driving the improvement of hea"h, Priontisation, resource allocation, ,.¢ Board Partnership ,M understanding health and wellbeing
. . L . owersight and assurance ) i needs and setting an overall strategy

wellbeing, and equality for all people living in north east -
London. Working with and for the people of North East London




2. Our unique
population

9 abed




Understanding our unique population is key to addressing our challenges and
capitalising on opportunities

NEL is a diverse, vibrant and thriving part of London with a rapidly growing population of over two million people, living across seven boroughs and the City of
London. It is rich in history, culture and deep-rooted connections with huge community assets, resilience and strengths. Despite this, local people experience
significant health inequalities. An understanding of our population is a key part of addressing this.

G9 abed

Rich diversity

NEL is made up of many
different communities and
cultures. Just over half (53%)
of our population are from
ethnic minority backgrounds.

Our diversity means a ‘one
size fits all’ approach will not
work for local people and
communities, but there is a
huge opportunity to draw on a
diverse range of community
assets and strengths.

Young, densely populated and
growing rapidly

There are currently just over two
million residents in NEL and an
additional 300,000 will be living here
by 2040.

We currently have a large working
age population, with high rates of

unemployment and self-employment.

A third of our population has a long
term condition. Growth projections
suggest our population is changing,
with large increases in older people
over the coming decades.

Poverty, deprivation and the
wider determinants of health
Nearly a quarter of NEL people live
in one of the most deprived 20% of
areas in England. Many children in
NEL are growing up in low income
households (up to a quarter in
several of our places).

Poverty and deprivation are key
determinants of health and the
current cost of living pressures are
increasing the urgency of the
challenge.

Stark health inequalities

There are significant inequalities
within and between our communities
in NEL. Our population has worse
health outcomes than the rest of the
country across many key indicators.
Health inequalities are linked to
wider social and economic
inequalities, including poverty and
ethnicity.

Our population has been
disproportionately impacted by the
pandemic and recent cost of living
increase.




Key factors affecting the health of our population and
driving inequalities - poverty, deprivation and ethnicity

Large proportions of our population live in some of the most deprived areas nationally. NEL has

four of the top six most deprived Borough populations in London, and some of the highest in the
country, with Hackney and Baking and Dagenham in the top twenty-five of 377 local authorities
(chart below).

By deprivation quintile, Barking and Dagenham (54%), City and Hackney (40%), Newham (25%) and
Tower Hamlets (29%), have between a quarter and more than half of their population living in the
most deprived 20% of areas in England (map and chart right).

Local Authority level extent of most deprived (England)
Weighted* % of the population in the most deprived 3 deciles (File 10: LAD summaries, MHCLG)

key
@ London Boroughs
@ NEL Boroughs

Redbridge 4% (207)
City of London 3% (220)

99 abed

® / pe Havering 8% (171)  /Waltham Forest 18% (115)  Tower Hamlets 31% (57) Hackney 43% (25)
‘ 'd. ® i © g8, Cel
® 3 ;| oo Lo ° © o
e ®® ®
i 0,
. Newham 29% (67) Barkmg and Dagenham 47% ‘20)
0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40% 45% 50% 55% 60%

IMD19 weighted % extent of population in 3 most deprived deciles (rank of 317 in brackets)
‘weights: decile 1 = 1.0; the population in next 11 to 30 per cent receive a sliding weight, ranging from 0.95 in the 11th percentile, o 0.05 for those in 30th percentile

People living in deprived neighbourhoods, and from certain ethnic backgrounds, are more likely to
have a long term condition and to suffer more severe symptoms. For example, the poorest people in
our communities have a 60% higher prevalence of long term conditions than the wealthiest along
with 30% higher severity of disease. People of South Asian ethnic origin are at greater risk of
developing Type 2 Diabetes and cardiovascular disease, and people with an African or Caribbean
family background are at greater risk of sickle cell disease.

Index of Multiple Deprivation (2019) by LSOA national quintile (1 = most deprived 20% in England)

Waltham Forest Redbridge

7
City & Hackney Tower Hamlets Barking & Dagenham

Percentage of resident population (ONS 2020 est.) in each deprivation quintile by place
Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD 2019) Quintile (where 1 is most deprived 20% of LSOAs in England)

53.7%

(115,082) e
(81,546) 8.2%
—
40.1% 49.7%
(145,178)
(117,075) o
8.4% 0.6% 1.2%
City & Hackney - (24,511) (1.688) (3.427)
—
46.2%
28.7%
(153,234) o, -
(95,372) ’j‘ N 0.1% 2.6%
Tower Hamlets (44.3%) (30,240 (8.618)
67.1%
(238,416)
24.4%
(86,804) 7.9% 0.6%
Newham  p— — o
——
50.6%
15.7% (140,102) 28.1%
77,919) 5.1% %
(43,456) ( 0.5%
B T Y (1,400)
. 18.4% 27.0% 24.4% 21.7%
7.7% (72,581) (63,649) (56,598)

(47,855)

Havering o I —
—

42.9%

San 20.8% (131,165) 226% 1045
(63,588) (69,202)
Redbridge ey oy [ w— .
quintile quintile quintile quintile quintile
1 2 3 4 5
(most deprived) (least deprived)



To meet the needs of our population we need a much greater focus on
prevention, addressing unmet need and tackling health inequalities

heﬂ Child Obesity

Nearly 10% of year 6 children in Barking
and Dagenham are severely obese.
Nearly are third of children are obese (the
highest prevalence rate in London).

NEL also has a higher proportion of adults
who are physically inactive compared to
London and England.

@ Mental Health

@s estimated that nearly a quarter of
a@ults in NEL suffer with depression or
aiety, yet QOF diagnosed prevalence is
around 9%. Whilst the number of MH
related attendances has decreased in
22/23, the number of A&E attendances
with MH presentation waiting over 12
hours shows an increasing trend,
increasing pressure on UEC services.

— Tobacco

One in 20 pregnant women smokes at
time of delivery. Smoking prevalence, as
identified by the GP survey, is higher than
the England average in most NEL places.
In the same survey, NEL has the lowest
‘quit smoking’ levels in England.

v Premature CVD mortality

In NEL there is a very clear association
between premature mortality from CVD
and levels of deprivation. The most
deprived areas have more than twice the
rate of premature deaths compared to the
least deprived areas. 2021/22 figures
showed for every 1 unit increase in
deprivation, the premature mortality rate
increases by approximately 11 deaths per
100,000 population.

ﬁ Vulnerable housing

NEL has higher numbers of vulnerably
housed and homeless people, including
refugee and asylum seekers, compared to
both London and England. At the end of
September 2022, 11,741 households in
NEL were in council arranged temporary
accommodation. This is a rate of 23
households per thousand compared to 16
per thousand in London and 4 per
thousand in England as a whole.

==

Shelter estimates in 2022 there were 42,399

Homelessness

homeless individuals in NEL inc. those in temp
accommodation, hostels, rough sleeping and
in social services accommodation. That's 1 in

47 people, compared to 1 in 208 people

across England and 1 in 58 in London. People

experiencing homeless have worse health

outcomes & face extremely elevated disease

and mortality risks which are eight to twelve
times higher than the general population.

J,E Childhood Poverty

Five NEL boroughs have the highest
proportion of children living in low
income families in London. In 2020/21,
98,332 of NEL young people were living
in low-income families, equating to 32%
of London’s young people living in low-
income families. Since 2014 the
proportion of children living in low
income families is increasing faster in
NEL than the England average.

} Childhood Vaccinations

The NEL average rate of uptake for ALL
infant and early years vaccinations is
lower than both the London and the
England rates

There are particular challenges in some
communities/parts within Hackney,
Redbridge, Newham and B&D, where
rates are very low with some small areas
where coverage is less than 20% of the
eligible population.

There is clear indication of unmet need across our communities in NEL

* For many conditions there are low recorded prevalence rates, while at the same time most NEL places have a higher Standardised Mortality Ratio for those under 75 (SMR<75) — a
measure of premature deaths in a population — compared to the England average. Whilst some of this may be due to the age profile of our population, there may be significant unmet health
and care need in our communities that is not being identified, or effectively met, by our current service offers.

* Analysis of DNAs (people not attending a booked health appointment) in NEL has shown these are more common among particular groups. For example, at Whipps Cross Hospital, DNAs

are highest among people living in deprived areas and among young black men. Further work is now happening to understand how we can better support these groups and understand the
. barriers to people attending appointments across the system. I




Our population is not static —we expect it to grow by over 300,000 in the coming years,
significantly increasing demand for local health and care services

London borough all age population increase 2023-2040

The population of north east London (currently just over 2 million) is projected to increase etttk L
by almost 15% (or 300k people) between 2023 and 2040. This is equivalent to adding a B
whole new borough to the ICS, and is by far the largest population increase in London. ' .
1 Newham +95,902 (+26%)
The maijority of NEL’s population growth during 2023-2040 will occur within three 90,000

boroughs: Barking and Dagenham (27%), Newham (26.3%) and Tower Hamlets (20.3%),
all of which are currently home to some of the most deprived communities in
London/England.

80,000

Increase in pOPU|ati0f1 London borough all age population increase 2023-2040 70,0007
ICS 2023-2040 Labelled circles = NEL Boroughs rank out of 33 in London

L +303,365
(SEL +175,292
B +169,344
Sl +115,801
SWL +90,220

2 Tower Hamlets +68,970 (+20%)

60,000 3 Barking and Dagenham +59,424 (+27%)

50,000 H

40,000
30,000
15 Hackney +22,235 (+8%)
L J

In addition, the age profile of our
population is set to change in
the coming years. Our
population now is relatively
young, however, some of our
boroughs will see high increases
in the number of older people as

well as increasing complexity in Q -
overall health and care needs. B ne

16 Havering +20,929 (+8%)
20 Waltham Forest +18,360 (+6%)
23 Redbridge +16,196 (+5%)

20,000+

10,000

Key

32 City of London + 1,349 (+13%)




We need to act urgently to improve population health and address the impact of
population growth

Across NEL the population is expected to increase by 5% (or 100k people) over the five years of this _ o
plan (2023-2028). Our largest increases are in the south of the ICS, in areas with new housing NEL neighbourhood (MSOA) all age population increase 2023-2028

’ . Labelled circles = top 10 NEL neighbourhoods by population increase
developments such as the Olympic Park in Newham, around Canary Wharf on the Isle of Dogs, and
Thames View in Barking and Dagenham.

16,000 O 1 Olympic Park & Mill Meads, Newham +16,278 (+46%)
Sustaining core services for our rapidly growing population will require a systematic focus on prevention ' .
and innovation as well as increased longer term investment in our health and care infrastructure.

NEL neighbourhood (MSOA) all age population increase 2023-2028
Smallest circles = MSOAs with zero increase or marginal decrease, labelled circles = top 10 NEL neighbourhoods by population increase (1=highest)

12,000

10,000

69 abed

O 80004 1 2 Blackwall & Leamouth, Tower Hamlets + 8,212 (+30%)
° 8,00(

3 Thames View, Barking and Dagenham + 7,291 (+58%)

O ¢ ® 4 Canning Town South & Bow Creek, Newham + 6,806 (+40%)

o
- o & 6,000

5 Canary Wharf, Tower Hamlets + 5,500 (+44%)
6 Rylands Est. & Dag. Dock, Barking and Dagenham + 4,520 (+41%)
O. (@) o 7 Royal Docks & North Woolwich, Newham + 4,384 (+21%)
® 4,000 8 Millwall North, Tower Hamlets + 3,907 (+28%)
9
1

O Hornchurch Marshes, Havering + 3,746 (+29%)
°° 0 Beckton, Newham + 3,451 (+34%)
Key

E Barking and Dagenham

[2] city of London 2,000
[&] Hackney

E] Havering

E] Newham

Redbridge

Ia Tower Hamlets

Waltham Forest

GLA Identified Capacity Scenario, published September 2021, 2020 based







We have significant assets to draw on

North east London (NEL) has a growing population of over two million people and is a vibrant, diverse and distinctive area of London, steeped in history and culture. The
2012 Olympics were a catalyst for regeneration across Stratford and the surrounding area, bringing a new lease of life and enhancing the reputation of this exciting part
of London. This has brought with it an increase in new housing developments and improved transport infrastructure and amenities. Additionally, the area is benefiting
from investment in health and care facilities with a world class life sciences centre in development at Whitechapel. There are also plans for the Whipps Cross Hospital
redevelopment and for a new health and wellbeing hub on the site of St George’s Hospital in Havering, making it an exciting time to live and work in north east London.

Our assets

* The people of north east London — bring vibrancy and diversity, form the bedrock of our partnership, participating in our decisions and co-producing our work.
They are also our workforce, provide billions of hours of care and support to each other and know best how to deliver services in ways which work for them.

* Research and innovation — continuously improving, learning from international best practice and undertaking from our own research and pilots, and our work
with higher education and academia partners, to evidence what works for our diverse communities/groups. We want to build on this work, strengthen what we
have learnt, to provide world-class services that will enhance our communities for the future.

T/ obed

+ Leadership — our system benefits from a diverse and talented group of clinical and professional leaders who ensure we learn from, and implement, the best
examples of how to do things, and innovate, using data and evidence in order to continually improve. Strong clinical leadership is essential to lead communities,
to support us in considering the difficult decisions we need to make about how we use our limited resources, and help set priorities that everyone in NEL is
aligned to. Overall our ICS will benefit from integrated leadership, spanning senior leaders to front line staff, who know how to make things happen, the CVS who
bring invaluable perspectives from ground level, and local people who know best how to do things in a way which will have real impact on people.

* Financial resources — we spend nearly £4bn on health services in NEL. Across our public sector partners in north east London, including local authorities,
schools and the police, there is around £3bn more. By thinking about how we use these resources together, in ways which most effectively support the objectives
we want to achieve at all levels of the system, we can ensure they are spent more effectively, and in particular, in ways which improve outcomes and reduce
inequality in a sustainable way.

* Primary care - is the bedrock of our health system and we will support primary care leaders to ensure we have a multi-disciplinary workforce, which is responsive
and proactive to local population needs and focused on increasing quality, as well as supported by our partners to improve outcomes for local people.



Our health and care workforce is our greatest asset

Our health and care workforce is the linchpin of our system and central to every aspect of our new Integrated
Care Strategy and Joint Forward Plan. We want staff to work more closely across organisations, collaborating | i i i siisoie b
and learning from each other, so that all of our practice can meet the standards of the best. By working in multi- | AR AM
disciplinary teams, the needs of local people, not the way organisations work, will be key. Where necessary, | ° e o @

our workforce will step outside organisational boundaries to deliver services closer to communities. | BB BM®

® ®© © o o o

| | . . | XYy yy)
Our staff will be able to serve the population of NEL most effectively if they are treated fairly, and are !
representative of our local communities at all levels in our organisations. Many of our staff come from our |
places already and we want to increase this further. | There are almost one hundred thousand

| people working in health and care in NEL,
g?r workforce is critical to transforming and delivering the new models of care we will need to meet rising and our employed workforce is growing
mand from a population that is growing rapidly, with ever more complex health and care needs. We must | every year.

éRsure that our workforce has access to the right support to develop the skills needed to deliver the health and |
e services of the future, and to adapt to new ways of working, and, potentially, new roles. | Our workforce includes:
Our ICS People and Workforce Strategy will ensure there is a system wide plan to underpin the delivery of our * Over 4,000 people working in general
new Integrated Care Strategy and Joint Forward Plan, through adopting a joined up ‘One Workforce’ across | practice with 3.7% growth in our
the system that will work in new ways and be seamlessly deployed for the delivery of health and care priorities. ' workforce in the last year
The strategy will focus on increasing support for our current workforce through the implementation of inclusive o .
retention and health and well-being strategies, and creating innovative, flexible and redesigned heath and care * 46,000 people working in social care
careers. ‘

* 49,000 people working in our Trusts

It will ensure right enablers at System, Place, Neighbourhood and in our provider collaboratives, to strengthen |
the behaviours and values that support greater integration, and collaboration across teams, organisations and '
sectors. It will contribute to the social and economic development of our local population through upskilling and !
employing under-represented groups from our local people, through creating innovative new roles, values- |
based recruitment and locally-tailored, inclusive supply and attraction strategies in collaboration with education
providers.



There are opportunities to realise from closer working between health, social care and

the voluntary and community sector

Voluntary, Community, and Social Enterprise (VCSE) organisations are essential to the planning of care and to
supporting a greater shift towards prevention and self-care. They work closely with local communities and are key
system transformation, innovation and integration partners.

In NEL we are supporting the development of a VCSE Collaborative to create the enabling infrastructure and support
sustainability of our rich and diverse VCSE in NEL, also ensuring that the contribution of the VCSE is valued equally.

Social care plays a crucial role in improving the overall health and well-being of local people including those
who are service users and patients in north east London. Social care promotes people’s wellbeing and supports them
to live independently, staying well and safe, and it includes the provision of support and assistance to individuals who
have difficulty carrying out their day-to-day activities due to physical, mental, or social limitations. It can therefore
T®lp to prevent hospital admissions and reduce the length of hospital stays. This is particularly important for elderly
(gatients and those with chronic conditions, who may require long-term social care support to maintain their
Mmdependence and quality of life.
\]
ﬁﬁ north east London 75% of elective patients discharged to a care home have a length of stay that is over 20
days (this compares to 33% for the median London ICS).

The work of local authorities more broadly, including their public health teams, as well as education, housing
and economic development, work to address the wider determinants of health such as poverty, social isolation and
poor housing conditions. As described above, these are significant challenges in north east London, critical to
addressing health and wellbeing outcomes and inequalities.

In our strategy engagement we heard of the desire to accelerate integration across all parts of our system to support
better access, experience and outcomes for local people. We heard about the opportunities to support greater
multidisciplinary working and training, the practical arrangements that need to be in place to support greater
integration, including access to shared data, and the importance of creating a high trust and value-based environment
which encourages and supports collaboration and integration.

There are more than 1,300
charities operating across north
east London, many either directly
involved in health and care or in
areas we know have a significant
impact on the health and wellbeing
of our local people, such as
reducing social isolation and
loneliness, which is particularly
important for people who are
vulnerable and/or elderly.

Thousands of informal carers play
a pivotal role in our communities
across NEL, supporting family and
friends in their care, including
enabling them to live
independently.




4. Our
challenges
and
opportunities

v/ abed



The key challenges facing our health and care services

Partners in NEL are clear that we need a radical new approach to how we work as an integrated care system to tackle the challenges we face today as well as
securing our sustainability for the future. Our Integrated Care Strategy highlights that a shift in focus upstream will be critical for improving the health of our population
and tackling inequalities. The health of our population is at risk of worsening over time without more effective prevention and closer working with partners who
directly or indirectly have a significant impact on healthcare and the health and wellbeing of local people, such as local authority partners and VCSE organisations.

Two of the most pressing and visible challenges our system faces today, which we must continue to focus on, are the long waits for accessing same day urgent care;
and a large backlog of patients waiting for planned care. Provision of urgent care in NEL is more resource intensive and expensive than it needs to be and the backlog
for planned care, which grew substantially during Covid, is not yet coming down, as productivity levels are only just returning to pre-pandemic levels. Both areas reflect
pressures in other parts of the system, and have knock-on impacts.

The wider determinants of health are also key challenges that contribute to challenges. Most of our places we have seen unemployment rise during the pandemic,
although this number is dropping, and we still have populations who remain unemployed or inactive.

Wg currently have a blend of health and care provision for our population that is unaffordable, with a significant underlying deficit across health and care providers
excess of £100m going into 23/24). If we simply do more of the same, as our population grows, our financial position will worsen further and we will not be able to

iyest in the prevention we need to support sustainability of our system.

\l
19 address these challenges and enable a greater focus upstream, it is necessary to focus on improving primary and community care services, as these are the first
points of contact for patients and can help to prevent hospital admissions and reduce the burden on acute care services. This means investing in resources and
infrastructure to support primary care providers, including better technology, training and development for healthcare professionals, and better integration of primary care
with community services. In addition, there is a need for better management and support for those with long-term conditions (almost a third of our population in
NEL). People with LTCs are often high users of healthcare services and may require complex and ongoing care. This can include initiatives such as care coordination,
case management, and self-management support, which can help to improve the quality of care, prevent acute exacerbation of a condition and reduce costs.

Achieving this will require our workforce to grow. This is a key challenge, with high numbers of vacancies across NEL, staff turnover of around 23% and staff reporting
burnout, particularly since the COVID-19 pandemic.

The following slides describe these core challenges and potential opportunities in more detail. Where possible we have taken a population health
approach, considering how our population uses the many different parts of our health and care system and why. More work is required to build this fuller
picture (including through a linked dataset) and this forms part of our development work as a system.



We face substantial pressures on same day urgent care

Key messages Detail

Demand for same day urgent care is growing - Demographic and non-demographic changes to the NEL population are projected to increase
rapidly as NEL's population grows demand for A&E attendance and unplanned admissions by 15-16% over the next 5 years

*  We have significant performance challenges across all three acute Trusts (e.g. average 60% on
The status quo isn’t viable. Doing more of 4 hour A&E target)

the same will exacerbate existing pressures «  Growing demand for unplanned care within acute settings risks undermining efforts to reduce
backlog of patients waiting for planned care

» Rates of avoidable admissions (for conditions that ought to be manageable through better
primary care) are high at a large number of primary care practices within NEL (between 37

‘mprovements in care pathways, including a and 46 depending on the type of avoidable admission)

shift of system resource to out of hospital «  Mental Health patients are facing long waits in A&E (4,440 waited more than 12 hours during

services (primary and community care), 22/23)
could help reduce demand for expensive * Non-conveyance from ambulance calls to care homes vary considerably and represent a

unplanned acute care for some patients higher proportion than the London average
* Around 13% of A&E attendances leave without any significant investigation or treatment,

suggesting they could have been better managed elsewhere in the system

Patients on waiting lists are causing * Asnapshot of the current elective waiting list indicates that 14% of the patients waiting for elective
pressures across other parts of the system care have been responsible for 47,000 A&E attendances during their wait

* An analysis of NEL against other London ICSs indicates that moving to the median ICS

There is an opportunity for improving UEC performance for non-elective admissions would see a reduction of around 10%. This would be a
by better system working substantial contribution to closing the projected gap created by growing demand and equates to
around £65m per year




We have a large backlog of people waiting for planned care

Key messages Detail

« Demand for planned care is expected to grow by 19.7% between 2022/23 and 2027/28, or by
around 4% per year.

* There are currently around 174,000 people waiting for elective care As of December 2022, 18
people had been waiting longer than 104 weeks, 843 longer than 78 weeks and 8,646 longer
than 52 weeks.

Demand for elective care is growing, adding
to a large existing backlog

* The ‘breakeven’ point for NEL’s waiting list (neither increasing nor decreasing) requires an

Activity levels vary week on week for many

reasons and we haven’t yet seen consistent
week on week improvements in the total
waiting list size

activity level of 4,281 per week*. This breakeven point is expected to increase by around 4% per
year due to projected increases in demand.

Activity levels vary throughout the year. For instance, in Sept-Dec 2022 trusts in NEL were
reducing the overall number of waiters by 391 per week, whereas since then the overall number

waiting has increased.

*  We have an opportunity to earn more income (from NHSE) by outperforming activity targets,
thereby bringing more money into north east London. If the additional cost of performing that
extra activity is below NHSPS unit prices then this also supports our overall financial position.

« Areasonably crude analysis of our elective activity suggests that delivering elective care at the rate
. . . of our peak system performance for last year (Sept-Dec 2022) would lead to no one waiting over 18
goal and will require continuous weeks by September 2027. This timescale would require an uplift in care delivery each year
improvements to be made equivalent to expected demand increases (4% per year).

There may be opportunities for « An a_na!y3|s of NEL against other London ICSs |nd|ca_tes that moving to the medlan LOS for elective
. . : . admissions would reduce bed days by 13% and moving to the England median would reduce bed
Improvements in elective care, particularly days by 31% (comparison excludes day cases).

around LOS

There are financial implications from
over/under performance on elective care

Tackling the elective backlog is a long-term

* Activity calculations are based on assessment of those on waiting list for more than 18 weeks, at end of Feb 2023




We need to expand and improve primary and community care, including
Improving care and support for those with long term conditions

* North-east London currently has fewer GP appointments per 100,000 weighted population than other ICSs in England. The national median is around 8% greater than

in NEL, suggesting part of the cause of pressure on other parts of the system, including greater than expected non-elective admissions at the acute providers, may be

due to insufficient primary care capacity.

Across NEL there is wide variation in the number of delivered appointments or average clinical care encounters per
week. For 2022/23 this ranges from 93.56 per 1000 (weighted registered) patients in Tower Hamlets, to 68.01 per
1000 (weighted registered) patients in Havering. The NEL average is 77.78 per 1000 (weighted registered) patients.**

Between March 2022 and March 2023, booked general practice appointments across NEL increased by around 32% to
11 million appointments. 56% of appointments were delivered by other professionals such as nurses and 43% of

all appointments were seen on the same day as they were booked*. This figure includes both planned and reactive care.
57% of appointments were patient-initiated contacts, booked and seen on the same day.***

~gWe are developing a set of principles to streamline patient access to the most appropriate type of appointment
Dand advice, with clear signposting, for health care professionals and local people to ensure they are directed to the full
mrange of services available at Practice and Place, in and out of general practice hours.

-O\O'Without substantial increases in primary care staffing the GP to patient ratio will worsen as demand for primary

care increases in line with projected population growth. There are pockets of workforce shortages with significant
variation in approaches to training, education and recruitment. We are committed to focusing upon retention initiatives
such as mentoring and portfolio careers having developed SPIN (specialised Portfolio innovation) which is the basis for
the national fellowship programme which we are offering to GPs and other professional groups.

Community care in north east London is currently fragmented, with around 65 providers offering an array of

community services. More work is required to understand the impact this has on patient outcomes and variability across
NEL'’s places, but we know that for pulmonary rehab, for example, there is variation in service inclusion criteria and the
staffing models used, and that waiting times vary between 35 and 172 days, with completion rates between 36% and
72% across our places and services.

More children and young people are on community waiting lists in NEL than any other ICS (NEL is about
average, across England, for the number of people on adult community waiting lists).

There are opportunities to build on our best practice to further develop integrated neighbourhood teams, based on
MDTs, social prescribing and use of community pharmacy consultation services, which will strengthen both our continuity
of care of long term conditions and our ability to work preventatively.

Source(s): *GPAD, **Discovery, ***Edenbridge APEX

Long term conditions

» Across north east London, one in four

(over 600 thousand people) have at
least one long term condition, with
significant variation between our
places (in Havering the figure is 33%,
vs 23% in Newham and Tower
Hamlets).

Age and deprivation are strong
predictors of long term conditions, so
while north east London has a
relatively young population, significant
areas of deprivation drive our
numbers up (those in the poorest
areas, the bottom deprivation quintile,
can on average expect to get a long
term condition around 10 years earlier
than those in the best off, the top
deprivation quintile)

In 21/22 those with long term
conditions accounted for 139,213 A&E
attendances; 53,676 emergency
admissions and 488,057 bed days.




We need to move away from the current blend of care provision which is unaffordable

ICB EXPENDITURE PROFILE

PMS
other 9%

» The system has a significant underlying financial deficit, held within the Trusts and the
ICB. Going into 2023/24 this is estimated to be in excess of £100m. This is due to a
number of issues, including unfunded cost pressures.

» Current plans to improve the financial position, such as productivity/cost improvement
programmes within the Trusts, are expected to close some of this financial gap and we
know there are opportunities for reducing unnecessary costs, such as agency spend. In
NEL, agency spend is 7% of total spend vs 4% median for London ICSs.

acute
* In addition to a financial gap for the system overall, there are discrepancies between how o
much is spent (taking into account a needs-weighted population) across our places, in

particular with regard to the proportion spent on out of hospital care.

* g he system receives a very limited capital budget (around £90m), significantly less than

Qother London ICSs (which receive between £130m-£233m) and comparable to systems Eé"j EEEEY;'S‘ZSM
%Nith populations half the size of NEL*. This puts significant pressure on the system and v e

~ifs ability to transform services, as well as maintain quality estate. Risk stratified cost of emergency admissions
©

Patients  Cost
I 10% Very High Risk
intended formula (which is based on SMR<75) and is the result of grants largely being
based on historical public health spend. This impacts on our ability to invest upstream in . .
preventative services. 4% 27%

» There is huge variation in the public health grant received by each of NEL'’s local
authorities from central government. The variation is at odds with the government’s 0.3%

» As a system the majority of our spend is on more acute care and we know that this is
driven by particular populations (0.3% of the population account for 10% of costs
associated with emergency admissions; just under 20% account for 65%).

15% 28%

80% 35%

i Idpttltbtab\l isk bands for ,,' kl i fpll wlth NEL GP in February
2ﬂ23 CDmb dP dcl Model run on NEL SUS data estimates k of admission. Cost of all emerg ach risk band in FY22/23 to
January 2023 extracted lrom sus. F‘auenls with no risk scare have heen excluded from the analysls hut fallow a slm\lal pattem lo lhe \ow risk group. Data from
NEL data warehouse.

* Capital figures are based on 2022/23. Norfolk and Waveney ICB received £98.5m capital in 22/23 and has a population of 1.1m people




5. How we are
transforming
the way we
work

08 abed



Across the system we are transforming how we work, enhancing productivity
and shifting to a greater focus on prevention and earlier intervention

*  The previous section set out the challenges that the north east London health and care system needs to address to succeed in its
mission to create meaningful improvements in health and wellbeing for all local people

» North east London’s portfolio of transformation programmes has evolved organically over many years: rooted in the legacy CCGs and
sub-systems, then across the system through the North East London Commissioning Alliance and the single CCG, and now
supplemented by programmes being led by our place partnerships, provider collaboratives, and NHS NEL.

+ It has never previously been shaped or managed as a single portfolio, aligned to a single system integrated care strategy.
* As part of moving to this position, this section of the plan baselines the system portfolio with programmes set out according to

common descriptors — providing a single view never previously available across the system, with the scale of the investment of
money and staff time in transformation clearer than ever before.

T8 abed

+ This section sets out how partners across north east London are responding to the challenges described in the previous section. It
describes how they are contributing to our system priorities by considering five categories of improvement

1. Our core objectives of high-quality care and a sustainable system

2. Our NEL strategic priorities
3. Our cross-cutting programmes

4. Our supporting infrastructure

5. Local priorities within NEL




1. Our core objectives of high-quality care and a sustainable system

Urgent and emergency care

The benefits that north east London’s local people will experience by April 2024 and April 2026:

*  April 2024: «  April 2026:

» Reduced ambulance conveyances to EDs » Increased and new community medicine pathways to support out of hospital arrangements
» No ambulance handovers over 60 mins where appropriate

> Increased access to Same Day Emergency Care (SDEC) across Acute sites Increased access via digital to support access to services i.e. bookable urgent appointments
> Consistently meeting 70% + UCR target NEL target is 90% meet trajectory count of 9995 Pipeline of U&EC workforce with clear career/ skills development opportunities across NEL

local people supported 23/24 Expansion of UCR service offer more support for identified local people as high intensity users

YVVVYVY

» Implementation of virtual ward interfaces and more digital interoperability More mobilisation of digital enabled technology for delivery of UCR
How this transformation programme reduces inequalities between north east London’s local people and communities:
» Increasing equality of access across the geography (front door streaming, SDEC access, optimising pathway 0)
» Through the ambulance flow workstream, working with ambulance Providers, to support Frailty pathways
U Support to patients with Learning Difficulties and Autism accessing U&EC services
18 Collaborative working with the Mental Health Collaborative on U&EC pathways for patients
D).
OR ey programme features and milestones: Further transformation to be planned in this area: Leadership and governance arrangements:
N U&EC Programme aim to improve equality of access to Over the next two years »  APC U&EC monthly Programme Board
non-elective care for the population of NEL  Keeping people safe and well at home: virtual +  Community Based Care
*  Workstream focus on: wards, effective falls response, anticipatory care, * Task & Finish Groups for Delivery Oversight with providers
* REACH and PRU sustainability and etc » Operations Working Group — Trajectory, Capacity and Delivery
development * Access to real-time information across the system Monitoring
*  Ambulance flow to support forecast/ demand management
» ‘front door’ working with UTCs « Join up pathways including access to UCR virtual

Key delivery risks currently being mitigated:

* SDEC wards with existing pathways + Funding requests not yet approved, impacting on the ability to

. U&E_C workforce - newer roles and CESR Over years three to five . - deliver the full programme of work, ICB prioritisation may be
training programme * Further development of virtual consultations for required

» Urgent diagnostic access U&EC

+ Variation of the way service is configured across NEL
+ Comms and engagement to promote the service - need
additional support so care homes, primary care and other

* Optimising pathway 0.
* 9995 local people supported by the end of 23/24 in

accordance with trajectory for the service Programme funding: . parts of system think UCR first

» Electronic Single Point of access pull Pilot to increase + See refergnce pack for details + Digital connectivity with LAS / UCR - this will be explored in
number of local people accessing the service via * SDF funding Pilot
111/999 triage * NHSE funding

Alignment to the Babies, children, and young people Mental health Health inequalities Personalised care High-trust environment
integrated care strategy: Long-term conditions Employment and workforce Prevention Co-production Learning system




1. Our core objectives of high-quality care and a sustainable system

Community health services

The benefits that north east London local people will experience by April 2024 and April 2026:

* April 2024 » April 2026:

> greater digital interoperability and one shared record to include universal care plans, which > a shared care record for health and special care, leading to better feedback loops for local
enables more joined up care across providers people

» standardisation of access to palliative care services across north east London » 2,000 generalist staff trained on a range of palliate care delivery areas

» access to post-covid rehabilitation within four to ten weeks of persistent ongoing symptoms > standardisation of quality of, and access to, palliative care services across north east
and access to specialist services within four weeks of GP referral London

» proactive care assessments for local people with two or more long-term health conditions » post-covid care is part of a business as usual offer within community provision

» atleast 551 virtual ward beds with an integrated acute and community provision model » an equitable offer of proactive care across north east London

How this transformation programme reduces inequalities between north east London’s local people and communities:

» By reducing barriers to care for local people through further roll-out of the shared care record across care homes and social care providers
» By equalising the digital offer to local people across north east London

Ty By co-designing digital tools with local people from across north east London’s communities

Q By ensuring a representative sample of local people’s voices participate in service design

18 By increasing patient choice, with personalised care through digital tools where applicable

%ey programme features and milestones: Further transformation to be planned in this area: Leadership and governance arrangements:

» Building equitable care offers for all local people Patient » Over the next two years » Community collaborative and individual programme
empowerment through improved access to data » rollout of universal care plan and shared care records governance — under development

» Better care through improved data sharing and digital » for proactive care, establishing the local population + interfaces with relevant provider collaborative
operability across health and social care providers health cohort of at-risk residents governance and NHS NEL

» Deep and continuous engagement and co-production with » bereavement service accessible by all local people
local people » Overyears three to five Key delivery risks currently being mitigated:

» Ongoing dialogue and strengthening of relationships with » integrating proactive care with hospital discharge y Y y 9 9 '

) . . L » Uncertainty of some medium-term funding
Healthwatch and the voluntary, community and social processes to reduce avoidable readmissions . :
) : + Information governance issues around care records

enterprise sector » integrated workforce tools across health and care

» Workforce availability and capacity

Programme funding: + Current inequities of funding across places

» See reference pack for details: System Development
fund, National Ageing Well funding, Virtual ward funding,
NHS England funding for shared care records and EPR

Alignment to the Babies, children, and young people Mental health Health inequalities Personalised care High-trust environment

integrated care strategy:

Long-term conditions Employment and workforce Prevention Co-production Learning system



1. Our core objectives of high-quality care and a sustainable system

Primary care

The benefits that north east London local people will experience by April 2024, April 2026, and April 2028:

* April 2024 *  April 2026:
» improved digital access, including through remote consultations, the NHS app, » all practices will be CQC rated as GOOD or have action plans to achieve this
improved website quality, and e-Hubs » further equalisation of enhanced services
> all practices offering core and enhanced care for people with long-term conditions < April 2028
to a minimum NEL-wide standard » streamlined access to a universal same-day care offer, with the right intervention
» additional services from community pharmacies in the right setting and a responsive first point of contact

How this transformation programme reduces inequalities between north east London’s local people and communities:
» By tackling the digital divide between local people — and resulting inequalities — through the recruitment of Digital Champions across north east London
» By equalising the use of — and therefore local people’s access through — digital tools by all practices and primary care networks

- By providing the same access to primary care for all local people, irrespective of where they live in north east London

Q> By levelling up the overall quality of primary care in north east London, as shown through CQC ratings

1% By better understanding local population need and inequalities through improved practice coding

ey programme features and milestones: Further transformation to be planned in this area: Leadership and governance arrangements:
» LIS and LES equalisation programme » Over the next two years + interfaces with relevant provider collaborative
+ EQUIP’s Understanding demand programme » Further digital enabling of social prescribing, governance, the ICB UEC board and the Fuller
» Local primary care teams working with practices on local community pharmacy, care homes, and UEC Oversight Board
variation » Improved understanding of demand and capacity » Digital First Board
» Promoting use of online and video consultation through through digital tools
engagement sessions with local people » Further improvement of same-day services ; . . . ]
A . . ; o Key delivery risks currently being mitigated:
» The same-day access programme is in its design phase, » Better understanding of inequalities at place and PCN : . . o o .
. ) ) ) » Uncertainty of ongoing funding for Digital First, including
based on the key principles of: a clearly defined service level

national online consultation licence
» Availability of funding to deliver equalisation of the long-

offer, intuitive access points, the availability of self-care
approaches, self-referral to community services, and

innovative services in the communi Programme funding: term condition enhanced care offer
. Th fh d ty » For Digital First: £1.9m for 2022/23; TBC for 2023/24 * Workforce capacity to deliver new services
€ Scope ot Ihe same-aay access programme COvers » For same-day access, from core ICB service funding + Teams’ capacity to deliver change

primary care same-day access, 111 services, and urgent

treatment centres + Digital operability

» Variation of stakeholder participation across NEL

Alignment to the Babies, children, and young people Mental health Health inequalities Personalised care High-trust environment

integrated care strategy:

Long-term conditions Employment and workforce Prevention Co-production Learning system



1. Our core objectives of high-quality care and a sustainable system

Planned care and diagnhostics

The benefits that north east London’s local people will experience by April 2024 and April 2026:

»  April 2024:

» Waiting times for elective care are reduced so that no one is waiting more than 52 weeks
» Improved equality of access to diagnostic and elective care through creation of Community

*  April 2026:

Diagnostic Centres in Mile End and Barking, surgical capacity at KGH and NUH and

ophthalmology in Stratford

» Reduced unwarranted variation in access to ‘out of hospital’ services

» Waiting times for elective care are reduced in line with national requirements moving towardg
a return to 18-week referral to treatment standard.

How this transformation programme reduces inequalities between north east London’s local people and communities:
» By April 2024, we will have reduced the variation in waiting times that exists between acute providers for elective care

» By April 2024 we will have increased the availability of ‘Advice & Refer’ services via GPs to local people

* By April 2024 we will have reduced the variation in community/out of hospital service access across NEL specifically in ENT, MSK, dermatology, gynaecology and ophthalmology
* By April 2024 local people and communities able to access community diagnostic services in Barking and Mile End.

T

Q

Kegprogramme features and milestones:

TheaPlanned Care Recovery and Transformation portfolio is

desmmed to meet national requirements for recovering and

trarffdformation of elective care services. In NEL, this will mean

delivering reduction in waiting times and, importantly, reducing the

variation in access that exists. The portfolio of work covers the

elective care pathway from referral to treatment

Key milestones include:

« Development of single NEL community/out of hospital
pathways

+ CDCs in Barking and Mile End

» Ophthalmic outpatient/diagnostic/surgical centre-Stratford

« Additional theatre capacity in Newham, llford and Hackney.

Further transformation to be planned in this area:
» Over the next two years
> Development of referral optimisation tools across NEL
> Review of all contracts for out of hospital services
> Increasing use of Advice & Guidance/Refer, Patient
Initiated Follow-up (PIFU)
» Over years three to five
» On-going development/implementation of transformation
programmes to reduce the variation in inequalities in
access

Leadership and governance arrangements:

* Planned Care Recovery and Transformation Board and
associated sub-committees

» APC Executive and Board

» Clinical Leadership Group in high volume surgical
specialities

Programme funding:

* The programme is resourced from the ICB & acute Trusts
* Theatre expansion from Targeted Investment Fund

* CDC national capital and revenue funds

Key delivery risks currently being mitigated:

* Workforce — ability to recruit workforce to fill vacancies,
creation of CDCs and expansion of theatres.

+ Digital — Digital transformation linked to service
transformation

+ Access to transformation funding to test new care models

+ Inflationary pressures on building costs

Alignment to the

integrated care strategy:

Long-term conditions

Babies, children, and young people

Mental health Health inequalities

X Employment and workforce Prevention

X Personalised care High-trust environment

Co-production Learning system




1. Our core objectives of high-quality care and a sustainable system

Cancer

The benefits that north east London local people will experience by April 2024 and April 2026:

» April 2024: » April 2026:
» Access to Targeted Lung Health Check service for 40% of the eligible population > Earlier detection of cancer
» Access to prostate health check clinic for those with a high risk » Improved uptake of cancer screening
» Implementation of Lynch Syndrome pathways and Liver surveillance » Every person in NEL receives personalised care and support from cancer diagnosis

How this transformation programme reduces inequalities between north east London’s local people and communities:

» By March 2024 The programme will reduce health inequalities in accessing cancer screening and early diagnosis by tailoring interventions to specific audiences

* By March 2024 The programme will undertake innovative research such as the Colon Flag programme to identify patients who may have cancer earlier

* By March 2024 Early diagnosis work on Eastern European and Turkish populations as well as engaging with Roma and Traveller communities.

* By March 2024 Health and wellbeing information provided in various formats / languages, support for patients who do not use digital and support for people with pre-existing mental health
av) conditions

(Ckey programme features and milestones: Further transformation to be planned in this area: Leadership and governance arrangements:
he programme consists of projects to improve * Over the next two years * Programme Director Archna Mathur; Lead Femi
iagnosis, treatment and personalised care. » Support the extension of the GRAIL interim implementation pilot Odewale
Key milestones to be delivered by March 2024 into NEL. « Cancer board — internal assurance
include: » Implement pancreatic cancer surveillance for those with inherited * Programme Executive Board — NEL operational delivery
BPTP milestones in suspected prostate, lower Gl, high risk. + APC Board and National / Regional Cancer Board
skin and breast cancer pathways delivered » Evaluate impact that rehabilitation interventions have on patient ) i ) .
+ National cancer audit implementation outcomes and efficiencies i.e. reducing length of stay and Key dellivery “Sks_ cu rrent_ly being m|t|gated: .
« TLHCs provided in 3 boroughs with an emergency admissions. * Imaging delays in scanning and reporting (affecting
agreed plan for expansion in 2024/25 » Please note that Cancer Alliance Programme is currently funded bgcklog) i i
» Cancer Alliances’ psychosocial support nationally until March 2025. * HIStOpathology reporting turnaround time
development plan delivered . Recrunme_nt of targe.t(.ed lung health staff.at Barts Health
» Develop and deliver co-produced quality Programme funding: * implementing a stratified pathway into primary care
improvement action plans to improve experience « Overall sum and source: Cancer alliance funded by NHSE * RMS delays at Homerton/ BHRUT are due to workforce
of care. capacity and PCC leads vacancy

Alignment to the Babies, children, and young people Mental health X Health inequalities X Personalised care X High-trust environment

integrated care strategy:

Long-term conditions X Employment and workforce Prevention X Co-production X Learning system



1. Our core objectives of high-quality care and a sustainable system

Maternity

April 2024:

The benefits that north east London local people will experience by April 2024 and April 2026:

*  April 2026:

» All women experiencing urinary incontinence to be able to access postnatal » The majority of women are offered Midwifery Continuity Care, prioritising the provision to
women from Black and minority ethnic (BAME) groups who will benefit from enhanced

physiotherapy up to 1 year post delivery

» Reduced unwanted variation in the delivery of care (through the regional service

specification)

black and minority ethnic groups or those living in the most deprived areas

models of care.

» A single digital system across NEL for maternity care records
» Increased breastfeeding rates, especially amongst babies born to women from » Improved post-natal care to support areas such as reduction in smoking, obesity, and other

public health concerns

» Better integrated maternity and neonatal services and improved interface with primary care

How this transformation programme reduces inequalities between north east London’s local people and communities:

By reducing stillbirth, maternal mortality, neonatal mortality, and serious brain injury in women and babies from BAME groups and women from deprived areas. National ambition to reduce by

50% by 2025

By closely aligning maternity and neonatal care to deliver the best outcomes for women and their babies who need specialised care
By improving personalised care for women with heightened risk of pre-term birth, including for younger mothers and those from BAME groups and deprived backgrounds
By ensuring that all providers have full baby-friendly accreditation and that support is available to those who are from BAME groups and/or living in deprived areas who wish to breastfeed

their babies

. </ abed

ey programme features and milestones:

Delivering key maternity safety actions

Achieving the Ockenden Essential Actions in collaboration with the
Neonatal Operational Delivery Network

Supporting the recommendations of the Neonatal Critical Care
Review

Facilitating and supporting leadership cultural development
Supporting the recruitment, retention and well-being of maternity
workforce

Supporting the training and education of maternity staff, in
partnership with Health Education England

Implementing the NEL equity and equality action strategy and
action plan

Implementation of the Senior Maternity and neonatal advocate role

Further transformation to be planned in this area:
* Over the next two years
» Implementation of safety improvements set out in the
Single Delivery Plan published in March 2023
» Implementation of Midwifery Continuity Care
* Over years three to five
» Development of the single digital system across NEL
for maternity care records

Leadership and governance arrangements:

* Programme leads and SROs

* Internal NHS NEL reporting

» APC governance, including APC executive and
relevant oversight group

Programme funding:

» Multiple external sources, including regional maternity
transformation programme funding, neonatal ODN
transformation funding, plus various streams of NHS NEL

Key delivery risks currently being mitigated:

* Recruitment and retention of maternity
workforce

+ Stability and sustainability of programme
delivery teams

» Funding to support acute demand and capacity
analysis

across NEL funding
Alignment to the Babies, children, and young people X Mental health X Health inequalities Personalised care X High-trust environment
integrated care strategy: Long-term conditions X Employment and workforce X Prevention Co-production X Learning system




Babies, children, and young people

The benefits that north east London local people will experience by April 2024 and April 2026:
*  April 2024:
» Enhanced access to, and experience of, mental health services for children and young people
» Setting up acute paediatric care to a range of patients and families in the community and Hosptial@Home (H@H)
» Social prescribing and key worker offers to support early help and system navigation
» Children aged 5 to 11 that are an unhealthy weight will have access to children's weight management services.

*  April 2026:
» Reduction in waiting times for community-based care CYP services (less than 52 weeks)
» Integrated family support services from pre-birth through to early adulthood in their locality
» Community-based care services are high quality and personalised (Outcomes framework)

How this transformation programme reduces inequalities between north east London’s local people and communities:

« CYP with emotional health and wellbeing needs receive early help to maintain school engagement, pre- diagnosis support based on need, with fewer CYP requiring unplanned admissions.
« Embedding of SEND joint commissioning across education, health and care means there is equal access to high quality provision. Robust needs assessment, demand and capacity planning, workforce innovation, co-
production with CYP and families, our offer will respond to the needs of our communities; with a focus on access for specific groups such as those attending independent schools. Safeguarding at Place supports our focus on
“Ueducing inequalities for our Looked After Children
-gBy addressing inequalities that are causing higher obesity levels in children and young people from certain backgrounds more than others, using a targeted approach where required

D
K@® programme features and milestones: Further transformation to be planned in this area: Leadership and governance arrangements:
« QQmproved SEND provision focuses on: leading SEND, early Over the next two years to five years * NEL BCYP Executive Board and CBC
identification and assessment, commissioning effective services, »MDTs in primary care for CYP * NEL BCYP Delivery Group
good quality education provision & supporting successful transitions. »Expand the children’s weight management service to be located * NEL ICB BCYP Delivery Leads
» Tackling childhood obesity has 3 focus areas: healthy places, across broader footprints * NEL ICS Place based partnership boards and local governance
healthy settings, healthy services. »Increasing MDT working and integrated service configuration at arrangements
» More integrated services plans to start with the ambition of creating neighbourhood level
an effective Early Help Eco system with a common practice »Further needs assessment and targeting of 0-5 services to ensure
approgch . . . vulnerable groups access effective services earlier and dorj t escalate. Key delivery risks currently being mitigated:
» Levelling up H@H ensuring equality of access and services »Identify further collaboration opportunities between education, health . o .
. . L . . o . . - + Staff recruitment challenges across specific services and
» Build upon and increase existing community capacity, aligning to and social care to ensure school readiness for all children and to meet - .
family hubs and strengthening adolescent healthcare. Through the needs of children with SEND, auti d complex medical i recognition of urgent risks across NEL
amily hubs and strengthening adolescent healthcare. Throug e needs of children wi , autism and complex medical issues - LA pressures including SEND system and high cost packages of

social prescribing and multi-disciplinary teams we will enable links to care (SEND estates strategy and developing joint funding

community assets. i.ncluding the community and voluntary sector and Programme funding: arrangements in train)

put health inequalities at the heart of our work , . See reference pack for details «  BCYP weight management service - lack of engagement from
. Developlr)g integrated care models and pathways for children . SDF funding families with children that are an unhealthy weight

across primary, secondary and community care L «  Pooled resources «  Ability to invest long term in areas that will reduce inequality whilst
» Give patients and (with patient consent) carers and clinicians - Health inequality fundin still trying to meet acute demand

involved in their care, better access to their care record . NHSE funging 9

Alignment to the Babies, children, and young people X Mental health X Health inequalities X Personalised care X High-trust environment

integrated care strategy:

Long-term conditions Employment and workforce X Prevention Co-production X Learning system



Long term conditions

The benefits that north east London local people will experience by April 2024 and April 2026:

; . April 2026:
April 2024: | detection of atrial fibrillation (by 2029 85% of d numb
» By 2024 all eligible local people across NEL will have equitable access to Cardiac Rehabilitation services and a plan to further improve access to heart failure mprove detection of atria fibriflation (by 2¢ 0 of expected numbers
services with AF are detected, and 90% of patients with AF and high risk of a stroke

on anticoagulation) AND hypertension (by 2029 80% of expected numbers
with hypertension are detected and 80% of people with high blood pressure
are treated to target)

* Robust transition pathways for children living with diabetes across NEL

» Maximise patient dialysing at home AND patients being transplanted

* Pulmonary Rehab available to patients with all chronic lung conditions and
all local languages

* Prevention of Type 2 (T2) diabetes through an increased number of people referred and starting the National Diabetes Prevention Programme (45% of
eligible populations) and increase the numbers of local people who achieve T2 diabetes remission,

* Increased personalised care plans through population Health Management and co-production

* 90% of people presenting with symptoms of Transient Ischaemic Attack will have access 7 days a week to stroke professionals who can provide specialist
assessment and treatment within 24 hours of symptom onset

= All local people who experience a neurological condition will have equitable access to rehabilitation across the pathway of care (acute, bedded and
community)

= Improved access to specialist Chronic Kidney Disease (CKD) intervention clinics for all NEL local people. By 2024 virtual CKD Clinics will be available across
NEL

= Early and Accurate Diagnosis of Respiratory Conditions through Primary Care Hublets (available in all 7 Places).

How this transformation programme reduces inequalities between north east London’s local people and communities:
U
« B utilising deep dive data analysis into local participation rates to support target local campaigns to improve equitable access to diabetes treatment by sex
. g reducing unwarranted variation in access to specialist assessment and treatment for Neurosciences within 24 hours of symptom onset for NEL local people with TIA which currently ranges between 40% for BHR local people to 92% for
y and Hackney local people
*  BDApril 2024 all Places will have accredited providers (Hublets) of Diagnostic Spirometry and FeNO to reduce inequalities across NEL (currently available in 3 Places with none-to-little provision in remaining 4 Places) to be followed by
&Qicational videos in all local languages to explain the why and how of respiratory diagnostic testing.

Key programme features and milestones: Further transformation to be planned in this area: Leadership and governance arrangements:
* Roll out of the LTC outcomes framework (Q2 23/24) (led contractually by Over the next two years » Pan London Networks
primary care) + Improve acute stroke standards and flow across the stroke pathway * NEL LTC Clinical Networks / Boards
» Co-produce 7 day TIA service with local people so that 90% of people Over years three to five * NEL ICB LTC Delivery Leads
with TIA will have access 7 days a week to a stroke professionals who can * Diabetes education platform * NEL ICS Place based partnership boards and local governance
provide specialist assessment and treatment within 24 hours of symptom * Rehabilitation facilities for people with complex cognitive and arrangements
onset thus preventing long term disability behavioural challenges and disorders of consciousness
+ New Digital PR DHI with shared-working between places (co-production Key delivery risks currently being mitigated:
start March 2023 with potential Capacity for ¢.250 extra participants a . . * Failure to formalise joint Working agreements between partners,
year). Programme funding: ) teams and functions affecting delivery of NEL wide plans to
+ Acute Respiratory Infection (ARI) Virtual Wards (with plan for provision in *  See reference pack for details address regional, national and local ambitions.
each Place before Winter 23/24). * SDF funding « Financial reduction in NHS SDF funding in 23/24 affecting
: :l-lc:cflélénrcél:gurces sustainability o_f programmes across L_TCs
+ Health inequality funding » Workforce availability to staff new clinical teams and staff
. NHSE funding programme team

Alignment to the Babies, children, and young people X Mental health X Health inequalities X Personalised care X High-trust environment X

integrated care strategy:

Long-term conditions X Employment and workforce X Prevention X Co-production X Learning system X



Mental health

The benefits that north east London local people will experience by April 2024 and April 2026:
April 2024:

A common personalised care planning tool focused on what matters most to service users (DIALOG) will be in place
across all of north east London by the end of 2023/24 .
Personal development and support will be available through our Lived Experience Leadership Programme for

children, young people and adults with lived experience of mental health, which will enable service users and carers

to co-produce/co-deliver improvements across the system, and work towards paid employment, if that is their aim .
Additional adult mental health hospital beds to ensure people do not experience long waits in emergency

departments, coupled with improved crisis support services in the community .

April 2026:

Increased numbers of peer support workers across all-age mental health services, with a coordinated
approach to training, recruitment, support and retention across the system

Improved equity of access, outcomes and experience of NHS Talking Therapies for minoritised
communities and other under-served populations (e.g. people with long term health conditions and older
adults)

Equity of access to physical health checks for people with severe and enduring mental illness, in particular
for people from minoritised communities and people living in the most deprived communities

Working towards an equitable offer of support to children and young people in 100% of secondary schools

How this transformation programme reduces inequalities between north east London’s local people and communities:

The partners of the Mental Health, Learning Disability and Autism Collaborative have commissioned a system diagnostic to help us understand the outcomes, experience, equity and value that patients receive for the money we
spend on mental health services across the system. The outputs of this work will help to shine a light on the inequities between boroughs, but also between communities and groups with protected characteristics. It will pave the
wapgfor a more equitable approach to resource allocation in the future
Uging Quality Improvement tools and techniques we are developing a number of improvement networks to lead the programmes of work that are best delivered at scale, led by clinicians and service users. Improvement networks
f6€2s on sharing learning, reducing unwarranted variation, and tackling health inequalities within and between borough populations

F(gpexample, through our Crisis Improvement Network and service user ‘Think Tank’ we are committed to developing and testing plans to address the over-representation of black men being detained in hospital for treatment
THOMental Health, Learning Disability and Autism Collaborative is committed to developing and implementing anti-racist commissioning practices which aim to build trust between the NHS and VCSE organisations, deliver more
e@able and sustainable funding to the sector and improve the health and wellbeing of minoritised communities

Key programme features and
milestones:

By the end of summer 2023 we will have
recruited to our dedicated People
Participation Lead and People Participation
Worker to develop our Lived Experience
Leadership Programme for adults with
mental health needs

By September 2023 we expect to have
finalised the outputs of the system diagnostic
By November 2023 we will have opened
additional acute bed capacity at Goodmayes
Hospital

By January 2024 we will have completed our
business case for Lived Experience
Leadership resource for children and young
people

Further transformation to be planned in this area:

Over the next two years:

+  We will roll-out NHS 111 press 2 for mental health and improve our
existing mental health crisis lines and crisis alternatives

*  We will expand NHS Talking Therapies to include 16 and 17 year
olds

Over years three to five:

* We expect our Lived Experience Leadership Programme to enable
service users and carers to initiate transformation and
improvement projects themselves, supported by our programme
team and the networks

Leadership and governance arrangements:

* Mental Health Learning Disability Autism Collaborative Committee (we are expecting this to
become a joint committee of the ICB, ELFT and NELFT Boards from July 2023 onwards)

* Programme boards

* Improvement networks

* NEL ICS Place-based partnership boards and local governance arrangements

Key delivery risks currently being mitigated:
» Insome boroughs, reduced access to some mental health services (e.g. NHS Talking Therapies,
Children’s Eating Disorder Services) has been caused by high numbers of staff vacancies. These

Programme funding:

» See reference pack for details
* SDF and MHIS funding

* Investment and innovation fund
* Pooled resources

* NHSE funding

will be mitigated through focused efforts to improve recruitment and retention in our Improvement
Networks

+ Some programme areas / improvement networks sit across multiple portfolios (e.g. paediatrics,
long term conditions, primary care, frailty, end of life, planned care, social care, acute) which
means there can be a lack of clarity across places and the system on leadership and improvement
goals. This risk could be mitigated through the support of the NEL Senior Improvement Advisers to
coordinate across collaboratives and pathways of care

Alignment to the

integrated care strategy:

Babies, children, and young people X

Long-term conditions X

Mental health

Employment and workforce

X Health inequalities X

X Prevention X

Personalised care X High-trust environment X

Co-production X Learning system X




Employment and workforce

The benefits that north east London’s local people will experience by April 2024 and April 2026:

+  April 2024.: _ _ . . + April 2026:
> By April 2024 we will deliver 900 jobs in health and care across NEL > Establish a permanent hub for local population to access job opportunities in health and care
» All providers to agree to work towards gaining accreditation for London Living > Methodology for planning and introducing new roles building on the learning from

Wagg . . , , collaboratives and development of new services and approaches (St George’s health hub)
» We will work with partners to develop roles and services that provide services out of

hospital

How this transformation programme reduces inequalities between north east London’s local people and communities:

» By providing employment opportunities to our local people in our health and care organisations providing employment to ensure social mobility
* By ensuring opportunity and development to our local people to reduce deprivation and health opportunities

» By providing career pathways for our staff to develop skills that deliver effective health and care to our population

» By ensuring that all employers agree to commit and start accreditation to be a London Living Wage employer

J
ey programme features and milestones: Further transformation to be planned in this area: Leadership and governance arrangements:
@ June 2023 Recruitment Health Hub and Social * Over the next two years * To be confirmed SRO for specific areas of
© Care Hub to be operational » Develop five-year co-designed NEL ICS workforce strategy transformation
= April 2024 - 900 starts in London Living Wage action plan to deliver objectives, priorities and programmes * NEL People Board, EMT and the ICB Executive
posts across employers in Health and Care » Build and grow out of hospital workforce with focus on
« April 2024 — Learning from Bank and agency development on GP and Primary Care workforce to deliver Key delivery risks currently being mitigated:
and good practice examples highlighted, shared services at Neighbourhoods * No confirmed and recurrent funding to support
and adopted > Shared workforce across health, technology, starting with acute workforce transformation and innovation
» April 2024 - System-wide integrated high-level collaboratives, Care using collaboratives » No funding clarity for ARRs roles for in Primary Care
co-designed Workforce Strategy focusing on > Increase substantive posts within providers to reduce reliance + Turnover rate increases due to ageing work population
enabling system-wide workforce transformation on bank and agency and productivity » Burnout of health and care staff caused by increased
at System, Place and Neighbourhood, to be > To explore feasibility of training academies to support pipeline workload and pandemic
signed off. » Mitigations Turnover and Burnout: Creation of a single
» April 2024 — Workforce Productivity activities to NEL workforce offer including health and wellbeing,
contribute to delivery of activity and finance Programme funding: development and mobility
requirements from 2022-23 operational plan » Currently non recurrent, Funding from NHSE and GLA against long
NEL priorities
» Funding redistribution to NEL strategic priorities as we move to new
models of community care

Alignment to the Babies, children, and young people Mental health Health inequalities Personalised care High-trust environment

integrated care strategy:

Long-term conditions Employment and workforce X Prevention Co-production Learning system




Health inequalities

The benefits that north east London local people will experience by April 2026:

* Reduced differences in health care access, experience and outcomes between communities within north east London, particularly for people from ethnic minority communities, people with learning disabilities and autism, people
who are homeless, people living in poverty or deprivation, and for carers.

» Improved healthy life expectancy for all communities across north east London, irrespective of who you are or where you live.

» Our population receives more inclusive, culturally competent and trusted services, underpinned by robust equity data.

How this transformation programme reduces inequalities between north east London’s local people and communities:

Reducing health inequalities is a cross-cutting theme embedded within all of our transformation programmes within places and across NEL. Improving health equity and population health is a core focus for our place-based
partnerships and neighbourhoods. For example, dedicated health inequalities funding has been provided to each place to lead locally determined programmes to reduce health inequalities within their local communities.

Taking a population health management (PHM) approach, led by places and neighbourhoods, will support frontline teams to identify high risk groups and address unmet health need. A PHM Roadmap has been developed for NEL.

To support opportunities across NEL, some specific targeted inequalities programmes have been developed including for Refugees and Asylum Seekers, Homelessness, Tobacco dependence treatment services, Developing a NEL
anchor system and Net Zero and implementing the Green Plan (see related JFP reference pack for details). We have also established enabler programmes to support system-wide work on health equity:

« Establishing a NEL Health Equity Academy will support people and organisations working in health and care in north east London to be equipped with the knowledge, confidence and skills to reduce health inequalities.

. A%)Being a shared ambition to reduce health inequalities, and funding local action towards achieving this ambition over three years.

All p@rammes and services will support the Core20PIlus5 and the ICP Strategy:

« Applying a poverty lens to all our work. This includes paying particular attention to the health and social needs of people living in poverty, reviewing their access to, and usage of, services, tackling unmet need, and addressing the
wiger determinants of health through making every contact count and through our role as anchors.

« Ensure we are measuring and addressing ethnic disparities, including in our waiting lists, a strong focus also on cultural competency, building trust and tackling racism.

» Support for carers running through all our priorities and wider transformation programmes.

« Ensure all services are accessible, appropriate and effective for people with learning disabilities and autism, increase the number and quality of annual health checks and vaccinations for Covid-19 and flu, reviewing deaths to
ensure we have up to date data and action plans to address health inequalities and safeguarding.

« Collaborate to improve the quality of health and care services for people experiencing homelessness and reduce the mortality gap between people who are homeless and the rest of the population.

*  We are committed to being an intentionally anti-racist system where we prioritise anti-racism, understand lived experience of staff and local people, grow inclusive leaders, act to tackle inequalities and review progress regularly.

» Build our understanding and recognition of intersectionality.

* Review the impact of local place based partnerships in reducing health inequalities and accelerate and invest in scaling up good practice.

Key programme features and milestones: Further transformation to be planned in this area: Leadership and governance arrangements:
» Launch NEL Health Equity Academy, September 2023 * Development of an anti-racism plan. * Place Based Partnerships
» Establish the Shared System Ambition, Summer 2023 » Development of a health inequalities outcomes framework. * NEL Population Health & Integration Committee
» Evaluations of place health inequalities projects (22/23 funding), * Revise and update the NEL population health profile. » NEL Population Health & Health Inequalities Steering Group
) '\S/le%t_tla_mb_er 20f23 | it " | » Development of a QI approach for health equity. Key delivery risks currently being mitigated:
obilisation of 3 year place health inequalities plans, Summer L » Financial risk —lack of recurrent investment combined with
2023 Programme funding:

high inflation affecting sustainability of current provision in
some areas e.g. tobacco

*  Workforce — capacity, skills and expertise to do everything
we can across the system to improve health equity

+ £6.6m per year for health inequalities funds at place, health equity academy and
shared ambition.
+ ~E£1m per year for tobacco (in baselines from 24/25).

Alignment to the Babies, children, and young people X Mental health X Health inequalities X Personalised care X High-trust environment X

integrated care strategy:

Long-term conditions X Employment and workforce X Prevention X Co-production X Learning system X



3. Our cross-cutting programmes

The benefits that North East London local people will experience by April 2024 and April 2026:

April 2024:

« Improve same day access through better sign posting and cloud telephony, which
enables local people to access different types of health and care professionals in
their neighbourhood without having to access specialist services

+ Developing a community of practice for Places with regards to enabling local people
to access different types of health and care professionals in their neighbourhood
without having to access specialist services

+ Continue to increase the utilisation of Additional Roles Reimbursement Scheme
roles

* Review the requirements at Place and NEL

April 2026

. Local people to be able to access integrated same day services with clear access points and integrated routes between primary

and secondary care provision

. Increased population health-based personalisation of people's care at neighbourhood level through wrapping integrated
neighbourhood teams around our local people and enabling neighbourhood teams to deliver the majority of care to the
population,

. Improve the patient experience through a stable workforce with good retention and staff attendance through a systematic focus on

all elements of the NHS People Promise

. Provide seamless care to local people by giving staff access to all the information they need in one place and enable them to

share this information safely

. Put in place the appropriate infrastructure and support for all neighbourhood teams

. Reduced health inequalities

How TJs transformation programme reduces inequalities between north east London’s local people and communities:

+ TE programme works to

)
@o
(@®)

» Shift the culture change needed within our different providers (PC/acute/community/MH) to work as Integrated Neighbourhood Teams around the patient to deliver personalised care
» Support PCNs and Places to develop and drive the Integrated Neighbourhood Teams implementation and Increased co-location of services and community teams, bringing holistic care closer to home
A streamlined integrated approach to managing same day care to ensure local people receive the same level of care regardless of where they live in north east London

Key programme features and milestones:

Same day Access

- Develop better signposting for health care professionals (Q4)

- Pilot, within multiple PCNs, the use of cloud based telephony (Q4)

- Review the interoperability of appointments between primary and urgent care (Q3)
- Develop a contracting framework of in-hours and out-of-hours services (Q3)
Continuity of care

- Establishing a Community of Practice forum (Q2)

- Arrange NEL wide workshop to review current practice (Q1)

People

- Embed the Fuller appraoch of Integrated Neighbourhood teams (Q4)

- Support PCN development and establish a community of practice for ARRS roles (Q3)
Infrastructure

- Deliver Digital First programme (Q4)

- Work with the Local Infrastructure Forum to define estate needs (Q4)

Further transformation to be planned in this area:

» Baselining of the work currently progressing at Place
regarding Continuity of Care

» Deliver a NEL workshop bringing together Places to review
and share learning of local programmes of work

» Further work regarding recruitment and retention of staff
across NEL, particularly focusing on the Additional Roles
Reimbursement Scheme

» Establishment of working and task and finish groups to
support delivery

Leadership and governance arrangements:

* SROs have been confirmed for the four Fuller workstreams,
Chief strategy and transformation officer, Medical Director,
Chief place and participation officer and MD of Primary Care

» A Fuller Steering Group established with an Oversight Board
also proposed

» Currently working to set up workstream Working groups and
subsequent task and finish groups will report into the
Steering Group

Programme funding:

» Currently no programme funding aligned to this programme

* Funding for the programme is proposed to come from
existing transformation funding

Key delivery risks currently being mitigated:

» Lack of programme funding may limit scope of deliverables

* Lack of programme management to coordinate and drive
delivery

+ Lack of engagement

Aol CIIRGRHZN  Babies, children, and young people X

integrated care strategy:

Long-term conditions X

Mental health X

Employment and workforce X

Health inequalities

Prevention

X

X

Personalised care X High-trust environment X

Co-production X Learning system X




4. Our supporting infrastructure

Physical infrastructure

The benefits that north east London local people will experience by April 2024 and April 2026:

» Across NEL ICS organisations, there are 332 estates projects in our pipeline over the next 5 /10 years, with a total value of c. £2.9 hillion

» These include the redevelopment of Whipps Cross hospital and a new centre on the site of St George’s, Hornchurch

» Formal opening of new St George Health and Wellbeing Hub — Spring 2024

How this transformation programme reduces inequalities between north east London’s local people and communities:

Infrastructure transformation is clinically led across the footprint whilst also achieving the infrastructure based targets set by NHSE.

Our vision is to drive and support the provision of fit for purpose estate, acting as an enabler to deliver transformed services for the local population. This is driven through robust system

wide Infrastructure planning aligned to clinical strategies, which is providing the overarching vision of a fit for purpose, sustainable and affordable estate.

U

&
@
©
~

ey programme features and milestones:

Acute reconfiguration £1.2bn (includes estimated total for
Whipps Cross Redevelopment of c. £755m)

Mental Health, £110m
Primary and Community Care, £250m

IT systems and connectivity, £623m (inc. NEL Strategic
digital investment framework c.£360m)

Medical Devices replacement, £256m
Backlog Maintenance, £315m

Routine Maintenance inc PFI, £160m

Further transformation to be planned in this area:

» Construction will be undertaken where possible using
modern methods in order to reduce time and cost and will
be net carbon zero.

» Consider use of void spaces and transferred ownership of
leases to optimise opportunity to meet demand and
contain costs.

» Support back-office consolidation

Leadership and governance arrangements:

+ System-wide estates strategy and centralised capital
pipeline

» Capital overseen by Finance, Performance and
Investment Committee of NHS NEL.

Programme funding:

» Over the next 10 years there is expected to be a c£2.9bn
capital ask from programmes across NEL

Key delivery risks currently being mitigated:

* Recent hyperinflation has pushed up the cost of many
schemes by as much as 30%. Currently exploring how
to mitigate this risk, including reprioritisation

» Exploring opportunities for investment and development
with One Public Estate, with potential shared premises
with Councils

Alignment to the

integrated care strategy: L G

Babies, children, and young people

X Mental health X Health inequalities

X Employment and workforce X Prevention

X Personalised care High-trust environment

X Co-production Learning system




4. Our supporting infrastructure

Digital infrastructure

The benefits that north east London local people will experience by April 2024 and April 2026:

» Improve accuracy of record keeping and recall within the Trusts, enabling patients to ‘tell their story once’, enabling efficient handovers and staff communication

» Online registration for GP patients

» Rollout of the call/recall Active Patient Link tools for Childhood Immunisation and Atrial Fibrillation

» Delivery of the patient held record programme to improve communication channels with patients and reduce unnecessary visits to hospital (Patient Initiated Follow Up)

How this transformation programme reduces inequalities between north east London’s local people and communities:

» Developing a linked dataset to support the identification of specific populations (utilising CORE25 plus 5 methodology) to target and organise health and care interventions to improve
outcomes, drive self care and reduce inequalities

* Improve the availability, timeliness and quality of clinical data

» Support clinical decision making by reducing the need to check other systems for information

ey programme features and milestones: Further transformation to be planned in this area: Leadership and governance
Q Single provider for acute EPRs (replacing BHRUT’s) * Move to cloud based telephony across primary care to arrangements:
o) Single provider for General Practice patient record systems facilitate collaboration across practices and PCNs * Programmes have their own Boards
» East London Patient Record (eLPR) Shared care record across all » Implementation of shared digital image capture and real- reflecting footprint of decision-making
8 providers — to be expanded to include social care, pharmacists, care time sharing to reduce unnecessary procedures after (OneLondon is London wide; Digital; First
homes, community providers and independent providers transfers is NEL). All report through IG Steering
+ Promotion of the NHS App as the ‘front door’ to NHS services, * Network, cyber and end user device improvements (using Group, Data Access Group and Clinical
including Patients Know Best (PKB), primary care record, Online VDI where practical) to improve staff experience and ease Advisory Group
Consultations and ordering of repeat prescriptions of access to information

+ Maternity service digitisation Expanding the Electronic Prescription
Service to outpatient services

o : ) iy - . Programme funding: i i i
« Significant investment in facilitators has been made by Digital First to . £9220m caplijtal |£2g?0m revenue over 5 years: including Iffgfgda?g‘éery risks currently being
. o . ) ; iti :
SUDDF’T‘ practice staff to utilise new Fj|g|tal pTOd“CtS . £43m for EPR replacement for BHRUT and £2.7m - Risk that insufficient capital is available to
» Specific programmes such as PKB include investment in change investment in care home EPRS. fund all programmes. Options for

management and clinical leadership to embed new ways of working staggering programmes being developed
i [ Vi

Alignment to the Babies, children, and young people X Mental health X Health inequalities X Personalised care X High-trust environment X

integrated care strategy:

Long-term conditions X Employment and workforce X Prevention X Co-production X Learning system X



4. Our supporting infrastructure

Finance

The benefits that north east London local people will experience by April 2024 and April 2026:

» Improving quality and outcomes for local people of north east London

» Securing greater equity for our residents
» Maximising value for money
» Deepening collaboration between partners

How this transformation programme reduces inequalities between north east London’s local people and communities:

Incentivising transformation and innovation in clinical practice and the delivery of services to improve the outcomes of local people
Supporting delivery of care closer to patients’ homes, including investing in programmes that take place outside the hospital environment
Refocus how the money is spent to focus on population health, including proactive measures that keep people healthier and to level up investment to address historical anomalies of funding
Increasing investment in prevention, primary care, earlier intervention and the wider determinents of health, including environmental sustainability

06 90

ey programme features and milestones: Further transformation to be planned in this area:
Supporting our providers to reduce transactional costs, improve « Supporting the integration of health and social care for
efficiency and reduce waste and duplication people living with long term conditions who currently
Support the financial stability of our system providers and underpinning receive care from multiple agencies
a medium to long term trajectory to financial balance for all partners » Ensuring that all partners are able to understand and
Recognising existing challenges, including that NEL is, as a SOF 3 influence the total amount of ICB resources being
ICS, financially challenged with a growing population and an acute invested in the care of local people.

provider (BHRUT) in SOF 4 for financial performance.

Ensuring we do not create unnecessary additional financial risk,
especially in the acute sector

ICS investment pool to fund programs designed to reduce acute
demand

Finance development programme to agree overall budgets and

develop place based budgets and budgetary delegation to place
Effective integration of specialised commissioning, community

Leadership and governance

arrangements:

* Reporting to the ICB Board and Place
Partnership Boards

+ Finance, Performance and Investment
Committee

+ Audit and Risk Committee

* CFO lead monitoring of monthly and
forecast performance

Programme funding:

» ICB plan submitted with a total budget of £4,218m

» Specific transformation budgets, including health
inequalities, virtual wards, physical, demand and capacity

Key delivery risks currently being

mitigated:

* Risk to delivery of a balanced financial
position. Mitigated by delivery of

. X fundin icienci i
pharmacy, dental and primary care ophthalmology services 9 efficiencies, delay of planned investments
Alignment to the Babies, children, and young people X Mental health X Health inequalities X Personalised care X High-trust environment
mteQrated care strategy: Long-term conditions X Employment and workforce X Prevention X Co-production X Learning system




Further programmes

Across our partnership there are many further programmes, beyond those described above, that are focused on specific populations or responding to specific local
priorities. More detail on these programmes can be found in the reference pack accompanying this plan. Below is a snapshot of those programmes, along with where

ownership for them sits within the system.
Further local priorities Further local priorities

Acute provider collaborative ~ Critical care Newham Ageing well
Research and clinical trials Primary care

Specialist services (also see p53 to 58) Newham Proactive Care Model

Mental health, learning Lived experience leadership programme Re?brid%(.a place Health inequalities
disabilities, and autism partnership oriti
collaborative Learning disabilities and autism improvement programme Accelerator priorities
0 ) . Development of the Ilford Exchange
Q)Barking and Dagenham Ageing well —
(Qplace partnership i _ Tower Hamlets place Living well
@ P EEREE ElE nf partnership Promoting independence
3 Stop smoking Waltham Forest place Centre of excellence
partnership Care closer to home
Estates Home first
City and Hackney place Supporting with the cost of living Learning disabilities and autism
partnership Wellbeing

Population health

. NHS North East London  Tobacco dependence programme
Neighbourhoods programme

NEL homelessness programme

Havering place partnership

Newham

Infrastructure and enablers

Building community resilience

St George’s health and wellbeing hub
Living well

Ageing well

Neighbourhood model

Population growth

Learning disabilities and autism

Anchors programme
Net zero (ICS Green Plan)
Refugees and asylum seekers

Discharge pathways programme

Pharmacy and Medicine Optimisation/ NEL

Fuller implementation



Strategic alignment with local health and wellbeing priorities

Waltham Forest Redbridge
Hackney L o
e The best start in life to develop, thrive and achieve *  Achieving the best start in life
*  Improving e Healthy, longer, happy lives prosperous, active and *  Diabetes prevention and management
mental health sustainable *  Mental wellbeing
* Increasing »  Thriving maturity and protected community: safe, e ;Cancersupvival
social supported and independent *  Living well in a decent home you can afford
connection *  End of life care
*  Supporting
greater financial
security

City of London
*  Good mental
health for all
-«
-
fthy urban City and
enwYonment Hackney
. Ctive health
social care
intégration J:n";’leo 't'
A

Redbridge

Havering

Barking and
Dagenham

Tower Hamlets

We can all access safe, social spaces near our
homes, so that we can live active, healthy
lives as a community

Children and families are healthy, happy,
and confident

Young gdults have the opportunities,
connec;ions and local support they need to
live mentally and physically healthy lives
Middle-aged and older people are enabled
to live healthy lives and get support early if
they need it — whether it is for their mental
or physical health

Anyone needing help knows where to get it,
and is supported to find the right help

Newham

Enabling the best start through pregnancy and early years
Supporting our young people to be healthy and ready for adult life
Supporting people around the determinants of their health
Developing high quality inclusive services, ensuring equity and reducing variation
Meeting the needs of those most vulnerable to the worst health outcomes
Creating a healthier food environment

Supporting active travel and improved air guality

Creating an active borough

Supporting a Newham of communities where people are better connected and
supported

e Working towards a smoke free Newham

e Building a berough of health promoting housing

*  Building an inclusive economy and tackling poverty

Havering

Assisting people with health
problems (back) into work
Further developing the
Council / NHS Trusts as
‘anchor institutions’

Provide strategic leadership
for collective efforts to
prevent homelessness and
the harm caused

Realising the benefits of
regeneration for health and
social care services

Improve support to residents
whose life experiences drive
freguent calls on health and
social care services

Obesity

Reducing tebacco harm

Early years providers, schools
/ colleges as health
improvement settings
Development of integrated
health and social care
services for CYP and adult s at
locality level

\ Barking and Dagenham

Best Start in Life

Early Diagnosis and
Intervention

Building individual and
community strength

/ -
*Note these are joint health
and wellbeing priorities which
may evolve as place based
partnerships become more
established

What engagement we have done so far

We have engaged with various partners across
NEL, these include Health and Wellbeing Boards,
Place-based Partnerships, Provider Collaborative
groups and Care Providers, as well as internal
staff lunch and learn sessions.

Acknowledgment that a lot of work has gone into
the JFP, further work to be done on looking ahead
in the future

We have received support of the NEL JFP
direction of travel and appreciation of seeing all
the transformation plans in one place.

Further work is needed to ensure that places and
collaboratives can fully see their priorities
reflected in the NEL wide plan.

We are now looking to establish an on-going
dialogue with our local people and wider partners
to reflect their needs and priorities.

We have created a summary version of our JFP
which is more accessible to the general public.




6. Implications
and next steps

T
jab)
Q
@D
(o]
O




Early lessons from work to develop this plan

* The previous section is a significant step towards the collaborative and co-ordinated management of north east London’s transformation portfolio.
* The portfolio demonstrates the ambition, energy, and creativity of north east London’s health and care partners.

+ At this stage, however, it is a relatively raw write-up of current transformation by teams across north east London leading the programmes, with
further work needed on articulating the full detail for each programme and further understanding of the overlaps between programmes and gaps
within them.

+ Initial learning from the work to bring together these currently disparate programmes tells us we need to:

o better understand and explain the specific beneficial impact of each programme for local people by key dates, as the basis for ongoing
investment in the programmes;

reframe our programmes around the needs of our local people rather than the services we provide;

o ensure we have a consistent way of prioritising across north east London’s transformation portfolio;

00T abed
O

o understand the affordability of these programme plans as they are predicated on current finance and people resources, which are coming under
increasing pressure;

o ensure full alignment between multiple programmes across a common theme to ensure that delivery is integrated and efficient;
o progress in some areas from restating strategy to setting out plans with clear timelines and deliverables; and

o develop a medium-term view of how individual programmes progress, or whether they should be assumed to finish and close after current plans
have been delivered.

* These areas will all be worked on as we update the plans and programmes described over the coming months.



Next steps for our transformation programmes

* As the early analysis shows, all programmes within the portfolio can demonstrate alignment with elements of the integrated care strategy and operating plan
requirements. The extent to which the portfolio responds to the more specific challenges described in the first half of this plan is more variable.

« Our shared task now is to prioritise (and therefore deprioritise) work within the current portfolio according to alignment with the integrated care strategy,
operating plan requirements, and additional specific local challenges.

« This task is especially urgent in light of the highly constrained financial environment that the system faces, along with the upcoming significant reduction in the
workforce within NHS North East London available to deliver transformation.

« The work required to achieve this is two-fold — part technical and part engagement — and will be carried out in parallel, with the technical work providing a
progressively richer basis for engagement across all system partners and with local people.

Tightening descriptions of the current programmes of work as the basis to inform prioritisation, especially:

+ the quantifiable beneficial impact on local people, beyond the broad increases or decreases in certain measures currently signalled;
Technical work + the definition of firm milestones on the way to delivering these benefits;

+ the financial investment in each programme and the anticipated returns on this investment; and

+ quantifying the staff resource going into all programmes, and from all system partners.

TOT o6

There is an important cross-system conversation needed, that enables us to create a portfolio calibrated to the competing pressures on it.
Principle pressures to explore through engagement include:

* achieving early results that relieve current system pressures and creating the resources to focus on achieving longevity of impact from
transformation around prevention;

* implementing transformation with a wide range of benefits across access, experience, and outcomes and ensuring, in the current financial
climate, that we achieve the necessary short-term financial benefits;

« focussing on north east London’s own local priorities and being open to additional regional or national opportunities, especially where new
funding is attached;

+ focussing on fewer large-impact transformation programmes and achieving a breadth that reflects the diversity of need and plurality of
ambition across north east London; and

* ensuring that benefits are realised from transformation work already in train and pivoting to implementing programmes explicitly in line with
current priorities.

Engagement




We will continue to evolve as a system

Our system has been changing rapidly over recent years, including the inception of NEL ICB setthe

provider collaboratives, the launch of seven place based partnerships, the merger of delvorng meroramants _é"_‘:;‘_:‘;gﬁ,?:‘.’;g‘z;;z,ze&
seven CCGs followed by the creation of the statutory integrated care board and based on local needs initiatives that require a do

it once at scale approach

integrated care partnership in July 2022.

Since becoming an ICS we have designed our way of working around teams
operating:

« At Place delivering services and improvement for Neighbourhoods and Place; Collaboratives leads on

addressing unwarranted
variation, working across

~p In Collaboratives reducing unwarranted variation, driving efficiency and building partners
g greater equity;

Integrated Neighbourhood
Teams — working together
around the individual's
needs

D

= For NEL sharing best practice, implementing NEL solutions for NEL work, Collaboratives

8 providing programmatic support and oversight, and delivering enabling functions
to our organisation and ICS through a business partner model.

We are now looking to work with our partners to further develop how we work
Coordination between our Places, Collaboratives and NEL wide programmes is together, underpinned by our ambition to create a High Trust Environment that
critical so that we: supports integration and collaboration and to operate as a Learning System

« Operate as a learning system and spread best practice driven by research and innovation.

« Ensure that activity, transformation and engagement happens at the most

Designing together how we want to work will be as critical as agreeing what we
appropriate level, duplication is reduced and tensions are identified and resolved

want to deliver.
« ldentify where there is NEL work which should be done once for NEL

This will help us get greater clarity on the responsibilities of different parts of the
system, and critically how we want each part of the system to interact with another
to enable integration and continuous improvement.

« Deliver value for money

+ Deliver beneficial and sustained impact for the health and wellbeing of local
people.




Agenda Item 7

Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

OUTER NORTH EAST LONDON JOINT HEALTH
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 27 JULY 2023

Subject Heading: CHC Policies

Report Author: Luke Phimister, Committee Officer,
London Borough of Havering

Policy context:
Officers will give details.

Financial summary: No financial implications of the covering
report itself.

‘ SUMMARY ‘

Officers will give details on a number of areas of relevance to the Joint Committee.

‘ RECOMMENDATIONS ‘

1. That the Joint Committee scrutinises the information presented and makes
any recommendations or takes any other action it considers appropriate.

Page 103



Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 10 January 2023

‘ REPORT DETAIL ‘

The Committee will receive a presentation on the CHC policies. Further details are
given on the attached presentation.

‘ IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS ‘

Financial implications and risks: None of this covering report.
Legal implications and risks: None of this covering report.
Human Resources implications and risks: None of this covering report.

Equalities implications and risks: None of this covering report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None.

Page 104



NHS

North East London

Continuing Healthcare Policies
for North East London




Continuing Healthcare

 NHS Continuing Healthcare (CHC) is a package of health and social care for
adults that is funded by NHS North East London

* There is no specific diagnosis to qualify for CHC and each case is looked at by
a multi-disciplinary team to determine ‘Primary Healthcare Needs'.

« Most individuals have significant on-going health needs! or are at the very end
of their life.

 a patient might have with severe dementia, be physically able and often aggressive so that
they need ongoing (and probably full time) intensive support to prevent them harming
themselves and/or others

 a patient might need a machine to be able to breath or have disorders of consciousness
that require constant attention and observation

 a patient might be at the very end of their life; with weeks or short months (typically up to 3
months) to live. They might be rapidly deteriorating with cancer or multiple illnesses and
want to die at home but need support to do so with dignity.

Ihttps://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/1079650/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-
nursing-care july 2022 revised.pdf

90T abed



https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1079650/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care_july_2022_revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1079650/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care_july_2022_revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1079650/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care_july_2022_revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1079650/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care_july_2022_revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1079650/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care_july_2022_revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1079650/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care_july_2022_revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1079650/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care_july_2022_revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1079650/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care_july_2022_revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1079650/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care_july_2022_revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1079650/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care_july_2022_revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1079650/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care_july_2022_revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1079650/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care_july_2022_revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1079650/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care_july_2022_revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1079650/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care_july_2022_revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1079650/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care_july_2022_revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1079650/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care_july_2022_revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1079650/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care_july_2022_revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1079650/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care_july_2022_revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1079650/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care_july_2022_revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1079650/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care_july_2022_revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1079650/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care_july_2022_revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1079650/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care_july_2022_revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1079650/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care_july_2022_revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1079650/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care_july_2022_revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1079650/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care_july_2022_revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1079650/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care_july_2022_revised.pdf

Why do we want to introduce new policies?

The development of these policies that apply to everyone across NE London (NEL) would
enable NHS North East London to:

 put individuals at the centre of decision-making and support a culture of partnership
between individuals, carers, families and partner organisations, where everyone
understands the expected ways of working

« ensure all agencies and staff follow the National Framework and agreed local policies
and processes

/0T abed

e ensure everyone is treated fairly and receives a consistently high-quality service
 reduce inequalities.

Four policies have been looked at and revised.

The majority of the polices are set by national legislation

There is no expectation that introducing these standard policies would reduce the budget
available to patients or generate savings.



1. Placement Policy

This describes NHS North East London’s (NHS NEL) and local authority partners’
approach when placing and supporting eligible individuals in the community. This policy
was developed in Havering, consulted upon, and is in use in Barking & Dagenham,
Havering and Redbridge. Other areas of NEL do not have a similar policy.

« The policy aims to ensure a person-centred approach is taken in making decisions about a
care package and that the individual or their representative is at the centre of discussions.

80T abed

[t aims to ensure CHC packages of care are sufficient to meet the individual’s needs;
removes confusion about people’s rights; standardises processes to reduce inequalities; and
describes key issues — for instance when care packages will be reviewed and how
disagreements will be resolved.

* It explains when a care home may be more appropriate than care at home; and how NHS
NEL will assess and ensure that providers are able to provide appropriate care, provides safe
and sustainable care, and value for money.

« For example: If a family of a patient identifies care at home that is more expensive than care
In a care or nursing home, the policy provides guidance on whether this could be funded.



2. Joint Care Package Arrangements
and Funding Policy

This policy describes NHS NEL and local authorities’ approach to jointly funding care for
a person in the community when they don’t qualify for other elements of NHS Continuing
Healthcare but they still have a health need that can’t be met with existing services.

« There are draft versions of this policy in NE London, but there is no final policy in use.

« The purpose of the policy is to provide a standard way of working so that all staff work in the
same way; and so individuals and their family/carer(s) understand the process and can
make their wishes known.

» The policy sets out principles for packages of care and the health needs that qualify for joint
care packages; how funding requests will be considered and decisions taken; how
disagreements will be resolved; and how care plans will be developed and reviewed

 For example: When a patient care package requires the administration of medicines by a
qualified medical professional, but that service isn’t provided by the NHS or other parts of
NHS Continuing Healthcare, this policy would consider how best to provide the service.

60T obed



3. Dispute Resolution Policy and Protocol

This describes the approach taken to resolve a dispute when health staff and social care staff
can’t agree if an individual is eligible for Continuing Healthcare funding , whether there is a need
for NHS-Funded Nursing Care, or about joint funding arrangements and refunds.

» Disputes and the use of this procedure are expected to be only in exceptional circumstances.
Most issues are resolved quickly at a local level.

» The policy does not apply to disputes between NHS NEL and the individual or their
representatives applying for Continuing Healthcare funding. These are resolved through a
process described in the national framework.

« Agreement of a policy would enable local authorities, individuals and their families to
understand the process and the expected timescales; would mean that individuals are treated
equally and fairly; and would protect an individual’s health and care whilst staff agree funding
arrangements.

* For example: When there is a disagreement between the social worker and CHC Nurse about
scoring of one or more CHC care domains, which impacts the patient being eligible for CHC
funding or not, the Dispute Resolution policy will provide a framework to resolve such
situations as well as provide case examples for staff training and quality improvement

OTT abed



4. Planning and Respite Policy for CHC
Eligible Individuals Receiving Care at Home

The policy describes the process of care planning and how individuals and family/carers will be
able to participate in the discussions of how an individual’s assessed need can be met.

This policy recognises the significant contribution that family members and friends make to the
care of those with a range of needs and describes the approach to planning and arranging care
when an individual’s unpaid carer needs a planned or unplanned break from their caring
responsibilities (this is called ‘respite’).

TTT obed

* There are draft versions of this policy in NE London, but there is no final policy in use.

« Except in an emergency, a carer is required to give at least two weeks’ notice of the intended
respite period, so that appropriate alternative care can be arranged.

* The policy also sets out the process if the carer and the individual wish to take a holiday
together.

* For example: A young adult with a learning disability who is cared for the majority of the time

by their parents. The parents apply for respite in order to rest and relax and NHS NE London
pays for relief carers in order for the parents to take a holiday.



Next steps

 NHS North East London has discussed the suitability of a public consultation with local
Healthwatch and Directors of Adult Social Services. The view Is that a consultation would not
be beneficial;

« The service is not changing — the policies aim to introduce better working practices, more
consistency, better alignment with national legislation etc

* Itis unclear where public input could be incorporated, given the alignment with national guidance —
this might raise expectations unreasonably.

* The preferred next steps are to:

 Invite comments from key stakeholders e.g. JHOSCs, Healthwatch, charities — to check that the
policies are correctly developed and explained

21T abed

» Develop a public awareness campaign — making the policies more user friendly for individuals and
their carers/families, so everyone can understand their rights and responsibilities. E.g. We could
commission short videos on CHC generally, and each of the policies, with subtitles in different
languages.

« Engage with those who have been recipients of (or involved in) the CHC process and ask what the
system could do better.

« JHOSCs are asked to agree this way forward.



NHS

North East London

North East London Integrated Care Board Care Planning
and Respite Policy for Continuing Healthcare Eligible
Individuals Receiving Care at Home

FINAL DRAFT for consultation




NHS

North East London

Table of Contents

N T SRV aTe Y 2= 1T Lo 3
b2 01 o To ¥ o] 1 o ¥ o R 3
T Yo 0] o1 PP PP 4
4 National POCY CONTEXE ...coiiiiiiiiiei et e e e e e e e e e 4
LI OF= T =3 = -1 o1 a1 o [P 5
6 Care Arrangements When a Carer is having Respite ..., 7
7  Annual Respite Allocation and Annual Respite Allocation Calculator .................... 9
8 Transfer of care from NEL ICB to an LA and ViSa-Versa........cccooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 11

Appendix: Annual Respite Allocation Calculator 2022/23............ccccovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnn, 11




NHS

North East London

1 Aims and Values

1.1 The North East London Integrated Care Board (NEL ICB) have a vision to
create a simpler more joined up health and social care system; one where the
people of North East London have a consistently high-quality experience of
health and social care and do not see organisational boundaries. Instead, they
experience a ‘system’ where they see familiar faces that are clearly connected
to each other regardless of where people are seen; be that in hospital, the
community or at home.

1.2 NEL ICB will achieve this vision by working collaboratively and in partnership
with their local authorities (LAs) and other health colleagues to ensure that they
are providing the people of North East London with fair access to care planning
and respite services which ensures better outcomes, better experiences, and
better use of resources.

1.3 In order to standardise the delivery of services including care planning and
respite services, NEL ICB, with its partner organisations have developed a
single standard operating procedure (SOP) for CHC which will include this
policy. This is to ensure that all organisations and staff involved in the
arrangements for care planning and respite care for individuals receiving care
at home, understand and agree to follow this process and put the individual
and their needs at the centre of the process and deliver care consistently and
fairly.

2 Introduction

2.1 NEL ICB and its local authority (LA) partners recognise the significant
contribution that family members and friends make to the care of those with a
range of needs. Through their support many adults are able to remain living at
home for longer, preventing the need for institutionally based care for as long
as possible and significantly improving the outcomes for the individual.

2.2 The National Framework for NHS Continuing Healthcare & Funded Nursing
Care July 2022 (National Framework) defines a carer as:

“anyone who, usually unpaid, looks after a friend or family member in
need of extra help or support with daily living, for example, because of
illness, disability, or frailty.” (Annex A Glossary).

2.3 The Care Act 2014 identifies local authorities as the responsible body for
carrying out Carer’'s Assessments. The individual's Case Manager from either
NEL ICB or the LA should make the necessary referral to the relevant LA or
department if they believe a carer needs support. This must be done following
consent from the carer.




NHS

North East London

3 Scope

3.1 This policy applies to family and friends who provide unpaid care to individuals
aged 18 or over who are eligible for CHC and are living at home.

3.2 This policy describes how care arrangements will be identified and funded for
the individual when their carer takes respite from their caring responsibilities.

3.3 This policy does not cover direct support to the carers whose needs will have
been identified through their own care and support plan.

3.4 Furthermore, this policy does not apply to CHC eligible individuals living in
supported living accommodation, residential or nursing care as their care
provision is delivered by paid carers in those settings.

4 National Policy Context

4.1 Both carers and those with care needs have rights set out in law and described
in the guidance that the local authorities and NEL ICB have to consider,

specifically:
o The Care Act 2022
o The National Framework for NHS Continuing Healthcare & Funded
Nursing Care July 2022.




NHS

North East London

5 Care Planning

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

Following a CHC eligibility decision, individuals, and their family or
representative will be invited to participate in a person-centred care planning
discussion with their CHC Case Manager. This will be an opportunity to discuss
and agree how the individual’s assessed needs can be met.

This is an opportunity to hear and understand the individuals care preferences
and wishes and consider how they will be incorporated into the care plan. This
is a critical aspect of our care planning process but is even more important
when the individual is living at home with other family members.

Where the individual lacks capacity to make decisions on their care
arrangements then an advocate should be considered to ensure that the
individual's views and best interests are protected. Where this is the case it
must be clearly documented in their care plan and all decisions must be in the
individual’'s best interests.

The National Framework states that where individuals need ready access to
support and/or supervision, Integrated Care Boards (ICBs) should consider, in
the first instance, if such needs can be met by assistive technology. Family and
friends may choose to provide some elements of the assessed care needs. If
so, this will be clearly documented in the individual’s CHC care plan.

Eligibility for CHC is based on an assessment of the individuals care needs.
The care plan will then reflect the care required to meet those needs.

The CHC Case Manager will evaluate the risks of the individual being left alone
and whether they need supervision and support at particular times of the day
and/or night. If supervision and support is required the care plan will document
when this is required and whether this will be provided by family as informal
carers or by paid agency carers commissioned by NEL ICB and the exact
nature of the intervention that will be provided.

NEL ICB has a responsibility to:
e ensure the individual's needs are met safely
e actin the person’s best interest and
e spend NHS funds in an equitable and cost-effective way.

This is particularly relevant when considering a package of care at home
provided by paid carers or a placement in a residential facility or nursing home.




NHS

North East London

5.8 Whilst due consideration will be given to the individual’s and/or their family’s
preferences of providers of paid care, NEL ICB will aim to commission care
from providers on the Any Qualified Provider (AQP) Frameworks for Nursing
Homes and for Domiciliary Care.

The AQP Framework includes a range of domiciliary care agencies and nursing
homes that have been,

e vetted by the NHS.

e are registered with the Care Quality Commission (CQC).

e employ carers with the necessary skills to meet the needs of individuals.
e have agreed rates of pay with NEL ICB.

Requests for care from providers who are not on the AQP Frameworks will only
be considered on a case-by-case basis in accordance with NEL ICB’s policies
and procedures.

5.9 The care plan agreed following a person-centred conversation with the
individual and/ or their family will be used by NEL ICB to provide the individual
with a personal health budget (PHB) which can be used to purchase the
necessary care.

The individual’s indicative PHB allocation will be based on rates agreed for
providers on the AQP Framework.

5.10 All CHC eligible individuals living in their own home will have a notional PHB in
the first instance. This means they have been closely involved in determining
their care needs and goals and know the cost of the care. However, NEL ICB
holds the budget for this care and commissions it directly for them.

5.11 Personal Health Budgets can also be provided as a direct payment or third
party PHB. individuals who are interested in exploring a direct payment or third
party PHB can be supported by NEL ICB’s PHB Team upon receipt of a referral
from the individual’'s CHC Case Manager.

5.12 A direct payment PHB is when the individual is given the money to buy their
care and support agreed in the care plan. The individual or their representative
must show what the funds have been spent on and is responsible for buying
and managing services needed as part of the care plan.

5.13 A third party PHB is when an organisation is legally independent of the
individual and the NHS (for example, an independent user trust or a voluntary
organisation) holds the money for the individuals, and also pays for and
arranges the care and support agreed in the agreed care plan.

5.14 There may be some instances where the individual has personal assistants
(PAs) from their previous local authority funded personal budget and wishes for
these PAs to continue to provide care of them via PHB Direct Payment once
they become CHC eligible. NEL ICB will explore such arrangements on a case-
by-case basis and in all cases try and maintain a continuity of care where
possible.




NHS

North East London

6 Care Arrangements When a Carer is having Respite

6.1 When family or friends choose to provide care to meet an individual’s assessed
needs, the CHC Case Manager will also assess the carer’s ability to continue in
this caring role. The Case Manager will confirm that the responsibilities on the
carer are appropriate and sustainable (para 326, pg 86, The National
Framework).

Contingency plans should be agreed with the individual and their carer for
emergencies or if the carer is unexpectedly unable to continue in their caring
role. This should be documented in the individual’s care plan.

6.2 Itis expected that the carer will need some planned respite from their caring
role during the course of the year to take a break, attend important
appointments or simply spend some time in the home without their caring
responsibilities.

On such occasions, NEL ICB will make arrangements for the care of the
individual. In anticipation of this need, the Case Manager will incorporate into
the care plan for the individual to be cared for in their own home by paid
agency carers or in an alternative setting for up to 6 weeks whilst their carer is
away or takes a break.

This is known as an Annual Respite Allocation and is described in more detail
in section 7 below.

6.3 In the event that the carer is requesting more than 6 weeks break from their
caring responsibilities in a year, this request will be considered on a case-by-
case basis at NEL ICB.

In cases when this is requested, the CHC Case Manager may also request a
review of the care arrangements and whether the carer is still able to provide
the level of care they have committed to as part of the care plan.

6.4 Care arrangements for the individual when their carer is taking planned respite
can take various forms. This allows a wide range of options to be considered
that meet both the individuals needs and their care preferences.

Whilst it will meet the assessed needs of the individual, it may not be possible
to provide a direct replacement of the care being offered by the carer.

Respite care options include, but are not limited to:

e Care provided by another carer in the individual’s network (e.g. extended
member of the family or friend)

e A volunteer support coming into the home to deliver the care required

e Paid carer/s coming into the home to deliver the care required

e The individual doing daytime activities to provide a break for the carer,
for example attend a day centre




6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

NHS

North East London

e Overnight respite provision
e The individual spending a period of time in a supported living, residential
or nursing care home.

Whilst every attempt will be made to provide some form of continuity of care,
during the period when the carer is taking respite, it is possible that the existing
range of services delivered into the home will be changed or suspended. For
example, a domiciliary care package may be paused if the individual takes a
temporary placement in a nursing home whist their carer is away on respite.

For those on Notional PHBs, where NEL ICB organises care for the individual,
the carer will be required to provide the CHC Case Manager with at least two
weeks’ notice of the intended respite period in order to organise the care for the
individual.

These respite hours will be recorded on the Respite Calculator and deducted
from the remaining annual respite allocation.

There may be instances when the carer needs urgent or emergency respite
and cannot give the required two weeks’ notice. In such circumstances the
carer should inform the CHC Case Manger as soon as possible so that NEL
ICB can organise and pay a domiciliary care provider for the hours of care they
provided during the emergency.

These respite hours will be recorded on the Respite Calculator retrospectively
and deducted from the remaining annual respite allocation.

For those on a direct payment, the respite allocation will be included in their
direct payment budget and the individual or their representative will need to
organise the respite care arrangements for the individual while their carer is
away.

Similarly, for those on third party PHB, the necessary care arrangements will
need to be made via the third-party organisation.

There may be instances when the carer would like to go on holiday (within the
UK or abroad) and would like the individual to accompany them. This would
require paid carers who would provide all the assessed care needs during the
holiday. This would allow both carer and individual to take a holiday.

In such cases a request must be made to NEL ICB at least three months before
the planned holiday. Such requests will be considered by NEL ICB on a case-
by-case basis following a full risk assessment regardless of whether the
individual is in receipt of Notional Budget, Direct Payment or Third Party PHB.




NHS

North East London

7 Annual Respite Allocation and Annual Respite Allocation
Calculator

7.1 Following the person-centred care planning discussion summarised in section
5 of this document, the CHC Case Manager will develop a weekly care plan for
the individual which will identify the following:

Their assessed care needs

The care tasks to be completed

When the care tasks are to be completed

How long it takes to complete each task

Who will complete each task (e.g. the individual themselves, paid carers,
family or friend)

e The skillset of agency carer required to carry out each task if the care
was commissioned from the AQP Framework for CHC Domiciliary Care.

7.2 This care plan will be used to commission domiciliary care agency staff from
the AQP framework if they are needed to look after the individual at home.

The AQP Framework has a range of domiciliary care agencies that have been
vetted by the NHS and employ carers with the necessary skills to meet the
needs of CHC eligible individuals and have agreed hourly rates of pay with
NEL ICB.

7.3 The care plan will specify any time of day or night the individual can be left on
their own without care or supervision.

7.4 The care plan will highlight tasks that are completed by family or friends and
how long these last. It will also highlight any time of the day or night when
family are not providing an intervention but are “maintaining the safety” of the
individual. This could be because the individual lacks capacity or needs
supervision and unable to call for help.

7.5 Based on the care plan information, the Annual Respite Allocation Calculator
will be completed for the individual which calculates the hours of care provided
by carer each week, to meet the individual’s assessed needs and therefore, the
hours of care NEL ICB would need to put in place if the carer took 6 weeks
respite.

7.6 The Annual Respite Allocation Calculator also calculates the cost of this care if
it was provided by a home care agency provider on the AQP Framework.

This cost is the Annual Respite Allocation for the individual and it is approved
by NEL ICB at the beginning of the financial year or following the individuals
CHC annual review.

7.7 The Annual Respite Calculator ensures that:

¢ the individual/ their representative have transparent information on the
cost of their care if and when carer needs respite, and this is consistent
with the principles of PHB and person-centred care.

e theindividual and their carer can plan the respite the carer will need.




NHS

North East London

e NEL ICB can document and track the respite hours used by carer and
pay care agencies appropriately.

e areview of care arrangements particularly where carers are needing/
requesting more than 6 weeks respite which may indicate that they are
struggling to provide the level of care they have agreed to.

e equity in the respite offer for all individuals across NEL ICB.

7.8 The Annual Respite Allocation Calculator (see Appendix) is updated by NEL
ICB annually in April or as soon as revised rates for providers on the AQP
Framework is agreed.

7.9 The Annual Respite Allocation allows the individual and their carer to know
exactly how much it would cost NEL ICB to commission care from an AQP
home care agency when the carer takes respite.

It allows the carer flexibility around when they take respite as each episode of
respite does not need further approvals by NEL ICB. This reduces delays for
the carers who may have made some respite plan at short notice.

It also reduces the administrative burden for NEL ICB staff as they only need to
approve respite funding once rather than repeatedly throughout the year and
allows NEL ICB to forecast funds needed for all individuals if/ when their carers
take a break during the course of the year.

7.10 The respite calculator also tracks the respite allocation used and the amount
remaining for the rest of the year. Whilst the annual respite allocation is
calculated based on domiciliary agency carers rates, the funds can be used to
place the individual in nursing home or respite facility when their carer is away.
This gives the individual and their carer greater flexibility, choice and control
over their care arrangements.

7.11 An individual’s annual respite allocation cannot be carried over from one year
to the next.

7.12 The respite allocation can only be paid for care to meet the assessed needs of
the individual as agreed in the care plan.




NHS

North East London

8 Transfer of care from NEL ICB to an LA and visa-versa

8.1 The LAs and NEL ICB have their own policies and procedures for determining
the level of respite they provide to carers of individuals whether in receipt of
adult social care packages or CHC.

8.2 There are currently no obligation on either organisation to replicate the respite
offer provided by the other party.

8.3 When an individual moves from one organisation to another e.g. from being
CHC eligibility to not eligible and visa versa, there is no obligation to replicate
the respite offered previously and a new calculation will be made based on the
current situation.

Appendix: Annual Respite Allocation Calculator 2022/23

Anriual Resprie
allocation




This page is intentionally left blank



NHS

North East London

NHS North East London
Continuing Healthcare Dispute Resolution Policy and
Protocol

FINAL DRAFT for publication




NHS

North East London

Contents

1 AIMS QNG VAIUES ...ttt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeenees 3
2 Relevant LegiSIation............uuiiiiii i 5
3 REIEVANT POHCY ... 6
A INEFOTUCTION .. 6
5 Roles of the NHS NEL and Local AUtNOIItIES .............uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee 7
6 Inter-Agency Dispute Policy Joint PrinCiples ..........ooovviiiiiiii e, 8
7 Failure to FOIOW POICY ........uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 9
8 Legal obligations, rights, and dUtI€S .............ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 9
LS T {11 P 10
Section 1 - Managing disputes on CHC eligibility

10 Managing disputes on CHC eligibility ... 11
The Dispute Process

11 [N\ (11> [ o SRR 12
12 INFOIMIAL ... 12
13 FOrmal Stage .......cooooiiiiiiiiii 14
14 EXternal REVIEW STAQE .......uuviiiie e e e e eeaanes 15
15 Governance and REPOIING .......uuuuuuuuuuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiieeeeeeebe e 16

Section 2 - Joint Packages of Care

16 Contribution to Joint Packages of Care ...........uvvvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeee 17
17 FOrMal STA0E L....uniiieiiieeeee e e et e e e e e e e eaanees 17
18 FOrmal Stage 2.......coooviiiiiiii 18
Section 3 - Management of Refunds

19 Management Of refuNdS. ... 19
20 Appendix A - Inter-Agency Dispute Flow Chart ............c.ooooiiiiiiiiiiiciii, 23
21 Appendix B - Inter-Agency Dispute Time Line ..., 24
22 Appendix C — Inter-Agency Dispute Form (Informal Stage)........cc..c.cceevvnnnn.n. 25
23 Appendix D — Inter-Agency Dispute Outcomes Form (Informal Stage) ......... 27
24 Appendix E — Inter-Agency Dispute Form (Formal Stage).........cccceeeveeevvnnnnnn. 28
25 Appendix F — Inter-agency Dispute Outcomes Form (Formal Stage) ............ 30

26 Appendix G — Inter-Agency Dispute Outcomes Form (External Review)....... 31




NHS

North East London

1 Aims and Values

1.1 The North East London Integrated Care Board (NHS NEL) has a vision to
create a simpler more joined up health and social care system; one where the
people of North East London have a consistently high-quality experience of
Continuing healthcare (CHC) and do not see organisational boundaries.
Instead, they experience CHC where they see familiar faces that are clearly
connected to each other regardless of where people are seen; be that in

hospital, the community or at home.

1.2 NHS NEL will achieve this vision by working collaboratively and in partnership
with their local authority (LA) and health colleagues to ensure that they are
providing the people of north east London with fair access to CHC which

ensures better outcomes, better experiences, and better use of resources.

1.3 The National Framework for NHS Continuing Healthcare and NHS funded-
nursing care July 2022 (Revised) (Paragraph 231) states that all Integrated
Care Boards (ICBs) must cooperate with the other organisations within their
footprint. ICBs are encouraged to establish joint working arrangements with
these organisations which embed collaboration, to meet the health needs of the
local population, including CHC. This includes collaborative working with
relevant local authorities with statutory social care responsibility whose area

falls wholly or partly within the area of the ICB (see also Practice Guidance 48).

1.4 In order to standardise the delivery of CHC and improve the quality of its
delivery to its population, NHS NEL, with its partner organisations, have
developed a single standard operating procedure (SOP) for CHC to ensure that
all organisations and staff involved in the CHC process understand and agree
to put the individual at the centre of the process and deliver CHC consistently

and fairly.

The SOP has been designed to support NHS NEL, and its partners to ensure
that all parties are.

¢ Following the guidance set out in the National Framework.




1.5

1.6

NHS

North East London

e Agreeing and following local protocols and/or processes which make
clear how the NHS NEL (the local Integrated Care Board (ICB))
discharges its duty to consult with the LA (refer to paragraph 22) and
how the LA fulfils its role as an important partner in the CHC process.
(Refer to paragraphs 26-31).

e Developing a culture of genuine partnership working in all aspects of
CHC.

e Ensuring that eligibility decisions are based on thorough, accurate and
evidence-based assessments of the individuals’ needs.

e always keeping the individual at the centre of the process and ensuring
a person-centred approach to decision-making.

e always attempting to resolve inter-agency disagreements at an early
and preferably informal stage.

e dealing with genuine disagreements between practitioners in a
professional manner without drawing the individual concerned into the
debate in order to gain support for one professional’s position or the
other.

e ensuring practitioners in health and social care receive high-quality
joint training (i.e., health and social care) which gives consistent
messages about the correct application of the National Framework.

The ICB will achieve this while ensuring that Individuals are never left without
appropriate support while inter-agency disputes between statutory bodies about
funding responsibilities are resolved.

National Framework (Paragraph 232)

It is intended that the SOP will support the delivery of CHC as ‘business as
usual’ and therefore minimise the need to invoke any inter-agency dispute

procedures. there may however be rare occasions where there may be a

disagreement which cannot be resolved in this way.




1.7

1.8

1.9

2

2.1

NHS

North East London

This protocol sets out the principles and process by which NEL ICB will resolve
any dispute which cannot be resolved through our inter-agency partnership

relating to:

¢ eligibility of an individual for CHC
¢ joint funding arrangements

e operation of refunds guidance

This agreement is between NHS North East London and its LA partners,
London Boroughs of Barking and Dagenham, Hackney, Havering, Newham,
Redbridge, Tower Hamlets, Waltham Forest, and the City of London
Corporation.

This policy does not apply to disputes between the NHS North East London
and individuals or their representatives applying for CHC funding. These are
dealt with through local resolution (See SOP) and the Individual’s Requests for
a Review of Eligibility process as outlined in paragraph 179-181 of the National
Framework (Revised July 2022).

Relevant Legislation

The following legislation that is relevant to this policy and protocol is:

The National Health Servicer Commissioning Board and Clinical
Commissioning Groups (Responsibilities and Standing Rules) (Amendment)
Regulations 2020

https://www.leqislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/469/contents/made

The Care Act (2014)

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/23/contents/enacted

This policy will be reviewed whenever there is a legislative change that might

affect its implementation or operation.



https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/469/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/23/contents/enacted

3

3.1

4.2

4.3

NHS

North East London
Relevant Policy

The following national policy that is relevant is:

National Framework for NHS Continuing Healthcare and NHS funded-nursing
care July 2022 (Revised).

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-framework-for-nhs-

continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care

This policy will be reviewed whenever there is a policy change that might affect

its implementation or operation.

Introduction

The National Framework for NHS Continuing Healthcare and NHS-funded
Nursing Care (2022) (National Framework) is a statutory document that sets
out the principles, legal basis, policy, and statutory duties that Integrated Care
Boards (ICBs) and Local Authorities (LAs) must follow in the administration and

delivery of Continuing Healthcare (CHC).

The National Framework notes that disputes may arise between agencies and
sets out the requirement that ICBs and LAs in each local area must agree a
local disputes resolution process to resolve cases where there is a dispute

between them about:

e A decision as to eligibility for CHC.

e Where an individual is not eligible for NHS Continuing Healthcare, the
awarding of NHS-Funded Nursing Care (FNC), or the contribution of a
ICB or LA to a joint package of care for that person.

e The operation of refunds guidance. (National Framework Annex E).

This process has been developed jointly between NEL ICB and the LAs, and
demonstrates the commitment to work in partnership, and in a person-centred

way, and to have a clear and agreed process in the event of a dispute arising

between those agencies.



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care

NHS

North East London

4.4 This policy relates only to disputes between the LAs and NHS NEL. Where an
assessed individual, or a representative on behalf of an assessed individual,
raises a disagreement on eligibility this is an Individual Review of Eligibility

(IRE) and covered in the National Framework paragraph (212 — 227).

4.5 It is an important point to remember that a dispute may arise at the same time
as an Individual Review of Eligibility (IRE) in respect of an eligibility decision —
in such cases they should be managed concurrently with neither being delayed

in order for the other to proceed.

4.6 The policy sets out the joint principles that underpins the process, alongside a

number of operating elements and processes.

Roles of the NHS NEL and Local Authorities
5.1 The roles of the NHS NEL and the LA are clearly outlined in the National
Framework in paragraphs 22 — 32.

5.2 The ICB has responsibility and accountability for CHC in several areas

including:

e Ensuring delivery of, and compliance with, the National Framework for
CHC.

e Ensuring that assessment mechanisms are in place for CHC across
relevant care pathways, in partnership with the local authority as
appropriate.

e The Standing Rules require ICBs to consult, so far as is reasonably
practicable, with the relevant social services authority before making a
decision on a person’s eligibility for CHC (the Care and support statutory
guidance should be used to identify the relevant social services authority).

¢ Making decisions on eligibility for CHC.

¢ Implementing and maintaining good practice.

e Ensuring that quality standards are met and sustained.

e Ensuring training and development opportunities are available for

practitioners, in partnership with the local authority.




NHS

North East London

5.3 The LA role in relation to CHC includes: -

o Refer a person to NHS NEL when it appears that the person may be
eligible for CHC.

e As far as reasonably practicable, provide advice and assistance when
consulted by NHS NEL in relation to an assessment of eligibility for CHC —
regardless of whether an assessment under the Care Act is required.

e When requested by the ICB, provide a person or persons to assist in a
Multi Disciplinary Team (MDT).

¢ Respond within a reasonable time frame when consulted by the ICB prior
to an eligibility decision being made.

e Respond within a reasonable timeframe to a request for information when

the ICB has received a referral.

6 Inter-Agency Dispute Policy Joint Principles

6.1 This policy reflects the principles laid out in the National Framework, that are
required to minimise the need to invoke a formal dispute resolution process.
These are:

e Keep the needs of the individual at the heart of the process, ensuring a
person-centred approach to decision making.

e NHS NEL and LAs will work together to minimise the need to invoke any
formal dispute resolution and seek to resolve any disputes at an early,
and preferably informal stage.

¢ NHS NEL and LAs must develop a genuine culture of partnership in
relationship to CHC.

¢ All parties follow the guidance set out in the National Framework.

e Disagreement between practitioners is managed in a professional
manner.

e Ensure that health and social care colleagues receive high quality joint
training which gives consistent messages about the correct application of

the framework.




NHS

North East London

e NHS NEL and the LAs have discharged their responsibilities in line with
the requirements of the National Framework for the ICB duty to consult
with the LA, and the LA’s duty to co-operate (see above Roles of ICB and
LA).

6.2 When a dispute exists, and the individual (or their legal representative) has
asked for an IRE, the processes must run concurrently. There is no justification
for delaying either process in favour of the other. Should a decision on eligibility
be overturned in either process then this must be reflected in the other. NHS
NEL will never hold separate positions on eligibility where there are concurrent

IRE and Dispute processes.

7 Failure to Follow Policy

7.1 This policy is a joint policy and is based on genuine partnerships between NHS
NEL and the LAs as outlined in paragraph 1.7.

7.2 Failure of an individual representing NHS NEL or the LA to follow this policy will
be escalated in the first instance to their respective line manager.

7.3 Repeated failure by NHS NEL and or the LA to follow this policy will be
escalated to the ICB Chief Nurse and the LA Corporate Director of Adult Social
Care.

7.4 1t is expected that the Executive will discuss with their counterpart to ensure
appropriate actions are taken to ensure that the policy is followed, and support
is given for individuals who fail to follow the policy.

7.5 Repeated failures may need to be managed in line with NHS NEL and LA

workforce policies.

8 Legal obligations, rights, and duties

8.1 Nothing in this Agreement shall limit or constrain the legal obligations, rights or
duties of either of the parties to Individuals or service users or as between
themselves.

8.2 In the event that any dispute between the parties cannot be resolved using the
procedures set out in this Agreement, the parties’ legal rights shall not be

affected, nor shall the parties be prevented from asserting those rights in any

court of law or other forum.




NHS

North East London

9 Review
This policy will be reviewed whenever there is a legislative or organisational change

that might affect its implementation or operation. In any event this policy will be

reviewed annually.




NHS

North East London
Section 1

10 Managing disputes on CHC eligibility

10.1 It is expected that in the vast majority of cases, the MDT will agree on a
recommendation of eligibilty of CHC by undertaking a comprehensive
multidisciplinary assessment. They will use all the available evidence of the
individual's needs and apply professional judgment to make and support a
recommendation of eligibility.

10.2 Not all disagreements between MDT members should be treated as grounds
for invoking the inter-agency dispute resolution process. Under the current
regulations (2022) and the National Framework, the MDT can account for
contrasting views between MDT panel members and record these on the
Decision Support Tool (DST).

10.3 The National Framework has clear guidance on the management of
disagreements within an MDT noted within Practice Guidance 32 in that if
practitioners are unable to reach agreements, then the higher score should be

accepted, noted on the DST along with clear reasoned evidence to support it.

10.4 The ICB should accept the recommendation of the MDT unless there are

exceptional circumstances.

10.5 Where NHS NEL is unable to accept or verify a recommendation by the MDT,
the DST should be returned to the MDT to review with clear reasons why the

ICB is unable to accept the decision based on para 10.4.

10.6 A dispute can only be raised once NHS NEL has made the eligibility decision

and only on the following grounds: -

e Where the DST was not fully completed.
o Where there were significant gaps in the evidence provided.
e Where the MDT was not framework compliant.

e Where the lack of consultation with the LA resulted in the LA not being

able to provide advice and support prior to a decision being made.




NHS

North East London

e Where there is an obvious mismatch between the evidence provided and
the recommendation.
e where the recommendation would result in either authority acting

unlawfully.

The acid test is, given the same evidence, would another MDT have made a different

recommendation.

10.7 A dispute cannot be raised simply that the LA disagrees with an MDT

recommendation.

The Dispute Process

The Inter-Agency Dispute Process is a three-stage process that aims to deliver a

rapid conclusion where disputes occur.
11 Notification

11.1 To raise a dispute, the LA must complete the ‘Dispute Proforma’ and send to
the NHS NEL (CHC Head of Service) within 5 working days of the receipt of a
formal outcome on eligibility. NHS NEL will have no obligation to accept a

dispute raised after that time.

11.2 The dispute must be clear on the rationale for disputing the decision based on

para 10.5 above.

11.3 The CHC Manager must acknowledge the dispute and arrange to discuss the
case with the appropriate LA manager within 5 working days.

12 Informal

12.1 The CHC and LA managers, will each agree a representative to peer review
the case. This peer review focuses on the process, the interpretation of the
National Framework and whether the evidence seen by the MDT was sufficient
to support the MDT recommendation. It is expected that this meeting will occur

within 10 working days of the acknowledgment of a dispute. The outcome from

this meeting is either that the original decision of NHS NEL is upheld. or that




NHS

North East London

the MDT is asked to reconsider the recommendation based on clear feedback
from the CHC and LA manager.

12.2 If this meeting upholds the original decision of NHS NEL, then the dispute is
closed and notification of this should be sent to the LA within 2 days of the

meeting.

12.3 If there is significant and relevant information/evidence available and identified
as part of the dispute as not having been included in the original assessment
and recommendation process, it is essential that this is provided without delay.
This should be sent to the CHC Manager and to the MDT who made the
original recommendation so that they may consider that evidence. The MDT
must meet with 5 days of the receipt of the evidence, to consider this evidence

and make a recommendation.

12.4 If the recommendation of the MDT changes after considering the evidence,
then the case must return through NHS NELs verification process and the
dispute is closed. This does not prevent a further dispute being raised once the
case has been verified by NHS NEL.

12.5 If their recommendation remains unchanged the MDT must inform the CHC
Manager, who will record this on the Dispute Resolution Form and discuss the
outcome with the LA to decide the next steps including escalation to formal

stage if required.

12.6 Following informal discussions, the LA may choose to withdraw the Dispute. In
such circumstances they should write to NHS NEL (CHC Manager) within 2
working days (by email) and advise that the dispute is closed.

12.7 A case may only go through the informal stage once to avoid getting stuck at

this stage and not progressing.

12.8 Escalation to Formal Stage must be done within 5 days of the LA receiving an

agreed decision from the informal stage.




NHS

North East London

Escalation must be made in writing, using the Dispute Resolution Form to NHS
NEL (Head of CHC) stating the reason for the escalation. It must state why

after the informal stage the dispute still exists.

13 Formal Stage
13.1 The formal stage requires senior managers (at a minimum of Head of Service

level — to be agreed by NHS NEL/LA) to meet to consider the case.

13.2 The managers will meet within 5 working days of notification of escalation to

formal stage and will address the dispute considering the following: -

e Whether the decision-making process was appropriately followed.

e The quality and quantity of the evidence supplied to the MDT and whether
it was sufficient to support the decision made.

e Whether the evidence considered supports the identification of a Primary
Health Need.

e Whether the recommendation was compliant with the National

Framework.

13.3 It is not appropriate or permitted at formal stage to introduce new evidence or
information. New information must be addressed at Informal Stage as there is a
responsibility to allow the MDT to review any relevant and additional

information.

13.4 The outcome of this meeting will be either that the original decision was upheld
or overturned. This will be documented on the attached Dispute Resolution

Form and signed by both managers.

13.5 Where the outcome is agreed, which may include that the original decision is
upheld or overturned, this is considered agreed and binding on both the LA and
the ICB as the final outcome on eligibility. This outcome will be recorded on the

Dispute Resolution Form and actioned by both agencies accordingly. The

Dispute is then closed.




NHS

North East London

13.6 Where the decision of the original MDT is overturned, this is recorded on the
Dispute Resolution Form. This would then go through the NHS NEL verification
process. The rationale for overturning the MDT’s recommendation must be
written up within 5 working days and fed back to the original MDT to ensure

continuous learning.

13.7 In the event that the outcome of the meeting is not agreed the Dispute
Resolution Form must clearly demonstrate the areas of outstanding
disagreement and a clear rationale for the viewpoints of the respective
agencies. The dispute is then automatically escalated to the Deferred
Assessment Panel/External Review stage.

13.8 A case may only go through a formal stage once to avoid repeated reviews.

14 External Review Stage
14.1 It is expected that all disputes will be managed through the informal and formal

routes. An external review is expected to be used rarely, if at all.

14.2 NHS NEL will arrange for a meeting to be convened with senior representation
from the ICB and LA to jointly agree an external review from a neighbouring

ICB or a CHC specialist consultant.

14.3 It expected that that this external review would occur within a minimum of 10
working days and maximum of 30 working days from the date of the decision to
escalate.

14.4 NHS NEL and the LA will each independently produce an evidence bundle in
relation to the case that focuses on the dispute. It must clearly state reasons
why an agreement could not be reached at Informal and Formal stage. The
Dispute Resolution Form should be used. The evidence used for this meeting

should be the same evidence used at the formal stage. No new evidence can

be submitted at this stage.




NHS

North East London

14.5 The evidence pack will be submitted to the external reviewer 5 working days
prior to the meeting so that they will have sufficient opportunity to review the

case prior to chairing the meeting.

14.6 The meeting will give an opportunity to both NHS NEL and the LA to present
the case and for the external reviewer to ask any questions for clarification. The
external reviewer role is in the first instance to facilitate an agreement -

however when this is not possible, they will be required to give a decision.

14.7 The external reviewers’ decision is considered final and both agencies will

agree to abide by that outcome.

14.8 The external reviewer will provide a written report of their decision within 5
working days of the meeting. The outcome of this review will be recorded on
the Dispute Resolution Form.

14.9 It is important to note that the view of the external reviewer does not impact in

any way the right of the individual to request a IRE.

15 Governance and Reporting

15.1 NHS NEL and LA will monitor all cases through the disputes policy and will
report regularly through existing governance arrangements on the number of

cases where original decisions were either upheld or overturned and the

rationale for this, to support continuous learning and improvement.




NHS

North East London

Section 2 Joint Package of Care

16 Contribution to Joint Packages of Care

16.1 The National Framework states that “If a person is not eligible for CHC, they
may potentially receive a joint package of health and social care”. This is where
an individual’s care or support package is funded by both the NHS NEL and the
LA. This may apply where specific needs have been identified through the
Decision Support Tool (DST) that are beyond the powers of the LA to provide
services to meet these needs on its own. (See also sections 18-20 of the Care
Act 2014)

16.2 The NHS NEL contribution to a care and support package may be through
existing services such as Primary/Community services and specialist services,

as well as through additional commissioned services.

16.3 NHS NEL and the LAs will develop a set of agreed principles and processes
that ensure that decisions in relation to the contribution are open, transparent
and consistent to effectively remove the requirement for using the dispute

management process.

16.4 Until this is available the following process will be operational.

17 Formal Stage 1

17.1 Where NHS NEL and the LA meet and cannot agree the share of a joint
package of care based on the Joint Care Package Protocols (Currently being
developed) (or the principles laid out above) then this must be escalated as a

dispute, in writing within 5 working days of the meeting.

17.2 The dispute is escalated to either NHS NEL in the case of the LA disputing the
contribution or the LA in the case of the NHS NEL disputing. The disputer will
copy the other party into the dispute.

17.3 Dispute will be escalated to a Senior manager (head of service level) who will,

within 5 working days of the dispute, bring together ICB and LA

representatives.




NHS

North East London

17.4 This meeting will review the evidence from both sides in relation to the

contribution. They will consider as a minimum.

e The statutory responsibilities of the NHS and LA

e The care needs from the DST that are beyond the powers of the LA to
meet on its own.

e Access to pre-existing services from the NHS (to ensure that this is an
unmet need rather than non-accessed/non-commissioned service).

e Any other information.

17.5 It is important to remember that this meeting is not an MDT and therefore

should not be discussing the merits of an eligibility decision previously made.

17.6 It is expected that this meeting will be able to manage the vast majority of

disputes.

17.7 If this meeting cannot reach a decision, then this is immediately escalated to
formal stage 2. The point for disagreement will be captured on the Inter-Agency

Joint Care Package Dispute Form (to be developed).

18 Formal Stage 2

18.1 Where NHS NEL and LA have completed the informal stage and cannot agree
the share of the joint package of care, based on the Joint Care Package
Protocols (Currently being developed), (or the principles laid out above) then
this must be escalated to formal stage, in writing within 10 working days of the
meeting.
The senior managers involved in formal stage will present the case to the

formal stage officers for resolution.

18.2 As this dispute is about the contribution to a joint package of care rather than
the care package itself there is no requirement for further clinical or

professional involvement.

18.3 It is beholden of the ICB Chief Nurse and the LA Corporate Director of Adult

Social Care to make the final decision on the split. Their decision is binding on




NHS

North East London

both parties. Where nominated deputies are used the organisation must ensure
that these deputies have the appropriate level of delegated authority to make

financial decisions.

Section 3 Management of refunds

19 Management of refunds

19.1 A decision on eligibility remains in place until such time that NHS NEL revises

that decision.

19.2 It is explicit in the framework that people in receipt of care cannot go without

care during the dispute process.

19.3 The general principle is that whichever agency had been funding the care
provision prior to the assessment and dispute process will continue to fund the

care provision during the dispute process.

19.4 The National Framework set out three scenarios in relation to the management

of care costs and refunds which are: -

A. Where there is a need for health or care and support to be provided to an
individual during the period in which a decision on eligibility for CHC is
awaited.

B. Where an ICB has unjustifiably taken longer than 28 calendar days to reach a
decision on eligibility for CHC.

C. Where, as a result of a Local Authority or an individual disputing a CHC

eligibility decision, the ICB has revised its decision.




NHS

North East London

A
Where there is a need for health or care and support to be provided to an
individual during the period in which a decision on eligibility for CHC is

awaited.

19.5 When a case is in dispute then the decision on eligibility is awaiting. In these
cases, the agency which is paying for the care at the time will continue to fund

the care until the outcome of the dispute is known.

19.6 At the point where a decision is made, the effective date of eligibility for CHC is
either day 29 (from receipt of checklist) or the original MDT date — whichever is
earlier.

19.7 Where this has resulted in the LA or the individual paying for care that they
should not have been, NHS NEL agrees to reimburse any the care costs

incurred as per above para.

19.8 Where the individual is to be reimbursed, NHS NEL will make an ex-gratia
payment to the individual following the guidance set out within Managing Public
Money' especially in relation to an individual who may have suffered hardship

or injustice.

19.9 Where this has resulted in NHS NEL paying for care that should have been the

responsibility of the LA then the LA agrees to reimburse care costs incurred.

19.10 Where this has resulted in the NHS NEL paying for care costs that are
outside the responsibility of the LA (i.e., self-funders) NHS NEL will take no

action to recover costs.

! https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/managing-public-money




NHS

North East London
B

Where an ICB has unjustifiably taken longer than 28 calendar days to reach a

decision on eligibility for CHC.

19.11 The National Framework places a clear expectation on the ICB that in most
cases, it should take no longer than 28 calendar days from the ICB being
notified of the need for assessment of eligibility for CHC to making an

eligibility decision.

19.12 When a ICB has taken longer than 28 days to make a decision and where an
individual is eligible for CHC, it will refund directly to the individual or the LA,
the costs of the services from day 29.

19.13 Where the individual is to be reimbursed, the ICB will make an ex-gratia
payment to the individual as set out in the Managing Public Money® guidance
especially in relation to an individual who may have suffered hardship or

injustice.

19.14 The refund should be made unless the ICB can demonstrate that the delay is
reasonable as it is due to circumstances beyond the ICB’s control which

include:

e Evidence (such as assessments or care records) essential for reaching a
decision on eligibility has been requested from a third party and there has
been delay in receiving the records from them.

e The individual or their representatives have been asked for essential
information or evidence or for participation in the process and there has
been a delay in receiving a response from them.

e There has been a delay in convening a multidisciplinary team due to the
lack of availability of a non-ICB practitioner whose attendance is key to
determining eligibility and it is not practicable for them to give their input

by alternative means such as written communication or by telephone.

2 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/managing-public-money




NHS

North East London
C
Where, as a result of an individual disputing an CHC eligibility decision, the
ICB has revised its decision.
19.15 The process for the management of an individual review of eligibility is set

out in NHS NEL’s CHC Standard Operating Procedures as reflected in the

National Framework

19.16 Where NHS NEL is required to reimburse the individual, this will be done via
an ex-gratia payment to the individual following the guidance set out within
Managing Public Money? especially in relation to an individual who may have

suffered hardship or injustice.

19.17 Where this has resulted in the LA or the individual paying for care that they
should not have been, the ICB agrees to reimburse any the care costs
incurred as per 19.16 above.

3 https://lwww.gov.uk/government/publications/managing-public-money




NHS

North East London

20 Appendix A - Inter-Agency Dispute Flow Chart

Interagency Dispute Flow Chart — V2

* Case
retums to

standard
- N igibili
Motification of dispute E"g:g
received by CCG &
\_ .
CCG acknowledge
receipt of dispute
h "
~ N e ™
-— &=
A " A
| 4
-
v il 'L - \j

- 2 =

. r
Dispute escalated to Informal discussion between Dispute’closed
formal CCG and LA
Meeting held between Dispute withdrawn
CCG and LA Managers
PSS e
——_ —_—
Original decision upheld Agreement not reached
S—
I

COutcome recorded on dispute > )
resolution form External review required

.

Dispute closed

Dutput from External
Review

e -

{




NHS

North East London

21 Appendix B - Inter-Agency Dispute Time Line

Inter-Agency Disputes Resolution Policy Time Line

Notification 11.1 Local Authority raises a dispute 5 days
after formal notification of CCG
eligibility decision

CCG to acknowledge dispute 2 days
Informal Stage 12.1 Peer review meeting 10
days
12.2 If peer review meeting upholds 2 days

decision notice of outcome and
closure of dispute

12.3 If peer review is asking MDT to 5 Days
review their decision to hold
further MDT

12.6 Once case has been back to 2 Days

MDT Local authority to decide to
close case or escalate

Formal Stage 12.8 Escalation to formal stage to be 5 days
undertaken after agreed outcome
from informal stage

13.2 Managers meet either accept 5 days
decision or overturn
13.6 If referred back to MDT 5 days

managers write up rational for
overturning decision

External Review 14.3 External Review meeting 10-30
days
14.5 If still in dispute referral for 5 days
external review and pack
compiled
14.8 External Reviewer report sentto | 5 days

CCG




NHS

North East London
22 Appendix C - Inter-Agency Dispute Form (Informal Stage)

Individual’s Name

Address

NHS Number CHC Reference Number

Date of NHS NEL
Decision letter
Please note: - Disputes must be received by NHS NEL within 5 working days of receipt of
the decision letter by the Local Authority. The date of receipt will be classed as two working
days after the date of the decision letter.

Date decision Letter received

The ICB has failed to follow proper procedure and/or that the decision
was not compliant with the National Framework.

(i.e., The DST is not fully completed, The MDT was not properly constituted, there L]
was a failure by the CCG to consult with the LA, where the recommendation would
result in either authority acting unlawfully)
The ICB reached a decision that, given the same evidence, another MDT
would have made a different recommendation.
[]

(i.e., Where there are significant gaps in the evidence to support the
recommendation, where there is an obvious mismatch between the evidence
provided and the recommendation.)

The following are the details as to why we are raising this dispute providing a clear rationale
based on the areas identified above.

Name of Local Authority

Job
Title

Phone Email

Officers Name




NHS

North East London

Date Request Received

Is the dispute accepted Yes L] No ]

An informal discussion has been set
with the LA rep for:

Agreed that the original CHC eligibility decision was correct ]

Date Time

Agreed to refer to MDT for a review of recommendation []

If referred back to the MDT what are the areas for them to review or consider?

Was an agreement reached to resolve
the dispute? ves L] No L]
Proceed to formal stage. Yes ] No ]

Reasons for not being able to resolve the issues at informal stage.

Date Referred to Formal Dispute

It should be noted that failure to successfully resolve dispute at the informal stage is
monitored at Executive level of both CCG and Local Authority.

NHS NEL

Name: Signature: Date:

Local Authority

Name: Signature: Date:




NHS

North East London

23 Appendix D — Inter-Agency Dispute Outcomes Form (Informal

Stage)
Individual’s Name
Address
NHS Number CHC Reference Number
Following the informal review discussion of this case held on the (date) By NHS
NEL and (LA)

The reviewers agreed the eligibility Decision and the case was closed. []

The reviewers agreed to refer back to MDT ]

Reasons referred back to MDT

No agreement was reached so will proceed to formal stage ]

Reasons for not being able to resolve issues at informal stage

The following are the details as to why we are raising this dispute providing a clear rationale
based on the areas identified above.

NHS NEL

Name: Signature: Date:

Local Authority

Name: Signature: Date:




NHS

North East London

24 Appendix E — Inter-Agency Dispute Form (Formal Stage)

Individual’s Name

Address

NHS Number CHC Reference Number

Date of NHS NEL
Decision letter
Please note: - Request for formal disputes must be received by the CCG within 5 working
days of receipt of the Notice of the outcome of Informal disputes by the Local Authority.
The date of receipt will be classed as two working days after the date of the notice.

Date decision Letter received

The ICB has failed to follow proper procedure and/or that the decision was
not compliant with the National Framework.

(i.e., The DST is not fully completed, The MDT was not properly constituted, there [
was a failure by the CCG to consult with the LA, where the recommendation would
result in either authority acting unlawfully)

The ICB reached a decision that, given the same evidence, another MDT
would have made a different recommendation.

(i.e., Where there are significant gaps in the evidence to support the
recommendation, where there is an obvious mismatch between the evidence
provided and the recommendation.)

The following are the details as to why we are raising this dispute providing a clear rationale
based on the areas identified above.

Name of Local Authority

Job
Title

Phone Email

Officers Name




NHS

North East London

Date Request Received

Is the dispute accepted Yes L] No ]

An informal discussion has been set
with the LA rep for:

Agreed that the original CHC eligibility decision was correct and upheld ]

Date Time

Agreed that the original CHC eligibility decision is overturned ]

Reason for the outcome decision

Was an agreement reached to resolve
the dispute? ves L] No L]
Proceed to External Review. Yes ] No ]

Reasons for not being able to resolve the issues at formal stage.

Date Referred to External Review

It should be noted that failure to successfully resolve dispute at the informal stage is
monitored at Executive level of both CCG and Local Authority.

NHS NEL

Name: Signature: Date:

Local Authority

Name: Signature: Date:




NHS

North East London

25 Appendix F — Inter-agency Dispute Outcomes Form (Formal
Stage)

Individual’s Name

Address

NHS Number CHC Reference Number

Following the informal review discussion of this case held on the (date) By NHS
NEL and (LA)

The reviewers agreed the eligibility decision and the case was closed. []

The reviewers did not agree and could not resolve the dispute ]

Reasons for not being able to resolve the dispute at formal stage

No agreement was reached so will proceed to External Review ]

Reasons for referring to External Review

The following are the details as to why we are raising this dispute providing a clear rationale
based on the areas identified above.

NHS NEL

Name: Signature: Date:

Local Authority

Name: Signature: Date:




NHS

North East London

26 Appendix G — Inter-Agency Dispute Outcomes Form (External
Review)

Individual’s Name

Address

NHS Number CHC Reference Number

ICB decision upheld W

ICB decision overturned

Reasons for the decision

Additional Comments and recommendations

Reasons for referring to External Review

The following are the details as to why we are raising this dispute providing a clear rationale
based on the areas identified above.

Reviewer Organisation

Name: Signature: Date:




This page is intentionally left blank



NHS

North East London

NHS North East London and Partners
Continuing Healthcare Joint Care Package Arrangements
and Funding Policy

FINAL DRAFT for publication




NHS

North East London
Table of Contents

1 AIMS @GN VAIUES....eiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii bbb 3
2 INEFOAUCTION e 3
T Yo 0 o 1P PPTI 4
A PIINCIPIES e 5
D PI O CES S e e et a s 6
LT VAT L R 8
7 JOINT FUNAING PrOCESS ..o 9

Appendix 1 - Inter-Agency Joint Care Package Request FOrm...........ccccvvviieiineeenccennns 10




NHS

North East London

1 Aims and Values

1.1 The North East London Integrated Care Board (NHS NEL) have a vision to
create a simpler more joined up health and social care system; one where the
people of North East London have a consistently high-quality experience of
health and social care and do not see organisational boundaries. Instead, they
experience a ‘system’ where they see familiar faces that are clearly connected
to each other regardless of where people are seen; be that in hospital, the
community or at home.

1.2 NHS NEL will achieve this vision by working collaboratively and in partnership
with their local authorities (LAs) and other health colleagues to ensure that they
are providing the people of North East London with fair access to joint
packages of care which ensures better outcomes, better experiences, and
better use of resources.

1.3 In order to standardise the delivery of services including joint packages of care,
NHS NEL, with its partner organisations have developed a single standard
operating procedure (SOP) for CHC which will include this policy. This is to
ensure that all organisations and staff involved in the arrangements for joint
packages of care and joint funding, understand and agree to follow this process
and put the individual and their needs at the centre of the process and deliver
care consistently and fairly.

2 Introduction

2.1 The joint funding process is advisory. Its purpose is to provide guidance on the
arrangements for joint packages of care and joint funding to ensure that the
approach is used consistently across the North East London area.

2.2 Individuals who will be considered for joint funding can come from a number of
care pathways. One example is individuals who have already been considered
for funding through The National Framework for NHS Continuing Healthcare &
Funded Nursing Care July 2022 (National Framework).

2.3 The National Framework states that “If a person is not eligible for NHS CHC,
they may potentially receive a joint package of health and social care”. This is
where an individual’s care or support package is funded by both the NHS and
the Local Authority (LA). This may apply where specific needs have been
identified through the Decision Support Tool (DST) that are beyond the powers
of the LA to provide services to meet these needs on its own. (See also
sections 18-20 of the Care Act 2014)

2.4 The National Framework indicates that joint funding can be provided in any
setting e.qg.

o an individual in their own home or supported living where they have
both health and social care needs.

o an individual in a care home (with nursing) who has nursing or other
health needs, that are beyond the scope of the FNC contribution




NHS

North East London

o an individual in a care home (without nursing) who has some specific
health needs requiring skilled intervention or support, that cannot be
met by community nursing services and are beyond the power of the
LA to meet.

3 Scope

3.1 The NHS NEL Joint Funding Policy applies to patients aged 18 or above or
patients who are in the transition process where no alternative funding stream
has been identified i.e., s117; s75 or s256 budgets; discharge to assess (D2A)

3.2 Those who have been through the CHC process. Health needs can be
identified at 2 stages in the CHC process:

e If anindividual has a negative checklist but has an identified health need
which cannot be delivered by the LA then a referral can be made for joint
funding.

e |If a DST has been completed and the individual has been found not eligible
for NHS CHC, the MDT should consider if the individual has health needs
which are NHS NELs responsibility.

In these cases, they can consider both FNC and joint funding as options to
meet the identified health needs.

3.3 A joint package of care with the LA will only involve joint funding where there is
an identified health need requiring an identified care intervention to be
commissioned.

3.4 Inthese circumstances NHS NEL will fund the care costs for the identified
health element of the package. This will be arranged through commissioned
NHS funding or through the provision of NHS services such as district nursing,
community physiotherapy etc.

3.5 Jointly coordinated NHS NEL and local authority reviews will be carried out for
all joint packages of care.

3.6 The National Framework is clear that neither the LA nor ICB should “unilaterally
withdraw from an existing funding arrangement” without consulting each other
or the individual. Funding for a specific care provision will therefore continue
through the existing statutory authority while a decision for joint funding is
made.

3.7 Inthe rare occasion that a joint care package cannot be agreed between NHS
NEL and the LAs the Dispute Resolution Policy and Protocol can be referred
to.




NHS

North East London

4 Principles

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

NHS NEL and LA partners will agree who the lead organisation is in
coordinating joint packages of care and ongoing reviews.

Lead coordination will normally be determined by the percentage of the split
however individual organisations will have their own responsibilities within care
planning, depending on complexities.

NHS North East London are responsible for the care planning for the health
funded element of any joint package of care.

When the LA are the lead co-ordinators for joint funded packages of care NHS
North East London will work collaboratively with them to broker and
commission services, when necessary. This will be agreed by the Joint Care
Package Panel on a case-by-case basis.

Clinicians will also support the LA by recommending appropriate care
packages based on the assessment and care plans.




NHS

North East London

5 Process
5.1 Referral Criteria

5.1.1 Prior to consideration for a jointly funded package of care, including FNC, the
following criteria must be met.

e The person must first have completed the CHC process and a final
decision on eligibility made.
v This could include a negative checklist where the individual has
identified health needs. In these cases, a Nursing Needs Assessment
/Joint Funding Request Form must be completed and sent to NHS NEL
on confirmation of the negative checklist.
v" A non-eligible decision has been made and verified by NHS NEL.
or
e The person has identified health need that has not been addressed
through the universal services outlined in 5.2
and
e The person is ordinarily resident or is registered as a patient with a
General Practitioner within NHS North East London at the point the
health need was identified.
e NHS North East London is the responsible commissioner.
e Or If the person is registered with a GP outside of the NHS North East
London footprint, then the rules set out in the ‘Who Pays? Determining
which NHS commissioner is responsible for making payment to a
provider’ (June 2022) should be referred to for determination of
responsible commissioner. (Paragraph 10.2)

5.1.2 The patient must have assessed health needs that are:

Above the contracted universal health service provision in North East London
including, but is not limited to:

v primary healthcare.

v/ assessment involving doctors and registered nurses.

v rehabilitation/reablement and recovery (where this forms part of an
overall package of NHS care, as distinct from intermediate care).
respite healthcare.
community health services.
specialist support for healthcare needs.
palliative care and end of life healthcare.

ANENENEN

5.1.3 Above what the LA can provide as outlined in the Care Act 2014, i.e., needs
are more than incidental or ancillary to the provision of service or facility
above the nature of what the LA should be expected to provide.




NHS

North East London
5.2 Referrals

Referrals, where possible, should be made at key points by both NHS NEL and
the LAs. e.g., post checklist, during an MDT discussion, following non eligible
decision, post inter-agency dispute, post review of eligibility decision etc.

5.3 Joint Care Package Panel

5.3.11f the above conditions are met a request will be submitted to NHS NEL by
either the LA or NHS NEL using the Joint Care Package Request Form. (See
Appendix 1).-

NHS NEL will coordinate the Joint Care Package Panel.

5.3.2 All joint care package requests will be considered by the Joint Care Package
Panel which will have a representative from NHS NEL and the relevant LA.

5.3.3The Joint Care Package Panel will meet at least monthly to discuss all cases
that have been submitted.

5.3.4The panel will complete the relevant sections of the Inter-Agency Joint Care
package Request Form.

5.3.5The clinical lead or care coordinator for the case will also be present while their
case is being considered. This will enable NHS NEL and the LA staff to work together
to discuss the individuals needs and come to an appropriate conclusion. It will also
allow the health and social care panel members to ask any additional questions.

5.3.6 If the panel agrees that there are health needs which are more than incidental
or ancillary to the provision of services or facility and above the nature of what
the LA should be expected to provide, then they will complete the remaining
sections of the Joint Funding Request Form.

5.3.7 The Joint Care Package Panel will agree the nature of the joint arrangements
including if any universal services, telecare/telehealth or one-off services that
health can provide that meet the individuals assessed health needs.

5.3.8 The Joint Care Package Panel will also agree if there is to be a financial
contribution made by NHS NEL. They will use the care funding calculator to
calculate the share as a percentage and a financial cost. This will be recorded
on the Inter-Agency Joint Care package Request Form.

5.3.90nce approval has been received to agree a joint package of care NHS NEL
and the LA will agree who will be the lead coordinator/commissioner.

5.3.10 The lead organisation will have responsibility for case planning, management
and setting the reviews.

5.4 Disagreements

5.4.11f the Joint Funding Panel is not able to make a decision regarding the joint
care package and funding arrangements then the case can be referred to NHS




NHS

North East London

NEL for consideration using the NHS NEL and Partners Dispute Resolution
Policy and Protocol (section 11).

5.4.21t is expected that disagreements will be rare and occasional, and it expected
that all steps will be taken by the partnership to agree where a joint care
package is appropriate and required.

5.4.3The referral should be made to NHS NEL in writing within 5 days of the panel
meeting and can be made by either the LA or NHS NEL.

5.5 Care Planning

5.5.1 An initial draft care plan will be drawn up by both organisations to agree the
services that are required to meet the individual’'s needs. Each organisation will
be familiar with the ICBs Choice and Equity Policy when considering the
available options

5.5.20nce the initial care plan has been agreed the lead organisation will take
responsibility to work with the individual, their family and brokerage to put in
place the appropriate services to meet their needs.

5.6 Ongoing Support and Case Management

5.6.1NHS NEL and the LA will open a case on their digital system stating that the
case is being jointly funded and who the lead organisation is for coordination.

5.6.2 Reviews will be undertaken on at least an annual basis, although some
individuals will require more frequent review in line with MDT judgement and
changing needs.

5.7 Contracting and Finances

5.7.1 Contracting, invoicing, and payments to the lead organisation will be made
following the existing processes set at borough level.

6 Reviews

6.1 Itis essential that all joint funded care packages are subject to scheduled
reviews between NHS NEL and the LA, with the lead organisation maintaining
the care co-ordination role.

6.2 The lead practitioner will lead on case management and is therefore
responsible for coordinating the scheduled reviews and inviting their
counterpart from the partner organisation. The initial review date will be agreed
as part of the joint funding agreement and then scheduled on both internal
digital systems.

6.3 Annual reviews should be completed by both NHS NEL and LA practitioners.
There may be instances (e.g., less complex cases) where both parties may
agree that the review can be carried out by the lead coordinator only on the
basis that the other party will be consulted if issues arise that need to be
discussed. The lead coordinator will also provide the other party with the review
notes.




NHS

North East London

6.4 The joint funding agreement will be reviewed at the annual review or earlier if
the person’s needs have changed.

6.5 Where a component of care provision is time limited, the review will be
coordinated at least 2 weeks prior to the end of the contract. This will allow the
care provision to be extended or alternative arrangements made.

6.6 If an individual with an existing jointly funded support plan moves from their
home into a Care Home or vice versa, it cannot be assumed that the joint
funding arrangements will follow an individual. These cases will be sent to the
Joint Care Packages Panel for review. The panel will be expected to make a
decision on whether the joint care package arrangement will continue.

6.7 If a person with an existing joint care package moves out of borough, it cannot
be assumed that the joint care package arrangements will follow the individual.

6.8 Consideration will be given to the Who Pays? Determining which NHS

commissioner is responsible for commissioning healthcare services and
making payments to providers (June 2022).

7  Joint Funding Process

4 N\ ( N\ 4 N\ ( N\ ( ) 4 \
Joint and Care
Funding Disagreem ;
Réa:erral — entsg and Planning Contracting
age ane .
Disputes and
NS EL NHS NEL Case Finance
NI—‘I&SLI\AEL S LA NHS NEL & LA Mantagedme
) - Agree and LA
- Negative - The Joint Referral lead
Checklist El;?ngllnvgill to NEL ICB organisatio NHS NEL )
- CHC i & LA
e d consider to Contracting,
decision is D - commence - Draft an invoicin
not eligible cac the Dispute initial care . 9
fairly and p Joint and
- Via GP or equitibly Resolution plan T payments to
other health using the Policy and - Lead completed the lead
and social tests that Protocol. organisatio in timely organisation
care are - Following n meets manner. at will be made
practitioner available to the with least 2 following the
them. decision, individual weeks prior current
Social care the case and family to agreed processes
test, will be to review expiring set at
requires a referred care and date. borough
Al registered bapk to the support If extension level.
Tl nurse etc Joint options. e, g
must be - The Funding - Once additional
made using individal will Panel to plan is request
the Joint be continue as place pass form
Funding represented per policy to sl
Request by the care brokerage
Form coordinator to arrange
(either from care with
health or provider
LA)




NHS

North East London

Appendix 1 - Inter-Agency Joint Care Package Request
Form

Individual’s Name:

Address:
NHS Number: Date Request Made:
Date of MDT: Date of Outcome Decision:

Is the individual currently receiving any health or social
: y g any Yes | [] No | []
care services?

Please provide a brief description of services. (E.g., residential/domiciliary care/
community/district nursing)

Does the individual have needs which are health
related? Yes u No N

Please provide a brief summary and evidence of the care needs, input required,
duration etc.

Do you believe that these needs are more than
incidental or ancillary to the provision of service or
facility above the nature of what the LA should be
expected to provide?

Yes | [] No | []

Please provide a brief explanation of why the needs should met jointly between NHS
NEL and the LA

Name(s)
organisation

Officers Name Job Title

Phone Email

Name(s)
organisation




NHS

North East London

Officers Name

Job Title

Phone

Date Request Received:

Email

Date Request Reviewed:

Does the panel agree that there is evidence to support
a joint care package between NHS NEL and the LA?

Yes

[

No

If yes complete the Joint Care Package Agreement.

If the decision is no, please explain why this decision has been made.

Name of local authority partner

Step 1

services?

Can the health needs be met through universal

Yes

[

No

Please explain the services to be provided and the needs that are being met.

Need

Universal Service to be commissioned

Details:

Details:

Details:

Details:




NHS

North East London

Step 2

Can telehealth, telecare or equipment be used to meet
any of the individual’s needs? Yes | [J | No | [

Need Telecare / Telehealth or Equipment
Detalils:
Detalils:
Detalls:
Step 3

Are there any ‘one-off cost’s to be used to meet any of
the individual’s needs? (i.e., Transport, Physio, OT.)

Yes | [] | No | []

Need Service or one-off cost
Details:
Details:

Step 4

Does the individual’s health needs require a financial
contribution? ves L | No | T

If yes, please use the care funding calculator to agree the percentage and the
financial share.

Health Social care
Percentage: Percentage:
£E: £:

Please specify what aspects of the care plan the contribution is for.
Details:




NHS

North East London

In no, please confirm that all health needs are met

through services provided in steps 1-3. Yes 1] No

[

Details:

Was an agreement reached to agree joint care
package?

Yes [] No

If Yes provide details:

Who is the lead organisation for care
planning, management, and NHS NEL [] | Local Authority
coordination?

[

If No agreement was reached, please refer to NHS NEL Inter-agency Disputes
Policy

Date referred to NHS NEL Inter-agency Disputes Policy

NHS NEL

Name: Signature: Date:

Local Authority

Name: Signature: Date:




This page is intentionally left blank



NHS

North East London

North East London Integrated Care Board
Continuing Healthcare Placement Policy

FINAL DRAFT for publication




NHS

North East London

Table of Contents

T AiMS ANA VAIUES................ccoooeeeeei ettt 3
2 INEFOAUCTION e 3
3 National POHCY CONEXE ... 4
4 KEY PriNCIPIES .ot e e 4
5  Commissioning ArrangemENTS ... i iiiiieiiiiiie e e ee e et e e e e et e e e e e e a e e 5
B AP ACITY 7
7 FUNdiNG CHC PlaCemMENTS ... 7
S T (o] =Y o 4 o] o K= PP 9
9 Personal Health BUAQELS ......coooiiiiiiii it e e e e 10
10 Paying for care and for additional private SErviCes .......ccceevvieviiieiiiiiiini e, 10
B Y= 11
12 Disagreements and DISPULES ......cuuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiieis et e e e e e e e e earraa s 12




NHS

North East London

1 Aims and Values

1.1 The North East London Integrated Care Board (NEL ICB) have a vision to
create a simpler more joined up health and social care system; one where the
people of North East London have a consistently high-quality experience of
Continuing Healthcare (CHC) and do not see organisational boundaries.
Instead, they experience CHC where they see familiar faces that are clearly
connected to each other regardless of where people are seen; be that in
hospital, the community or at home.

1.2 The ICB will achieve this vision by working collaboratively and in partnership
with their local authority (LA) and health colleagues to ensure that they are
providing the people of north east London with fair access to CHC which
ensures better outcomes, better experiences, and better use of resources.

1.3 The National Framework for NHS Continuing Healthcare and NHS Funded-
Nursing Care July 2022 (Revised) (National Framework) (paragraph 231)
states that all ICBs must cooperate with the other organisations within their
footprint. ICBs are encouraged to establish joint working arrangements with
these organisations which embed collaboration, to meet the health needs of the
local population, including CHC. This includes collaborative working with
relevant local authorities with statutory social care responsibility whose area
falls wholly or partly within the area of the ICB (this is reinforced in the Practice
Guidance 48).

1.4 In order to ensure good practice by putting the individual at the heart of the
process NEL ICB, with its partner organisations have developed a single
standard operating procedure (SOP) for CHC.

2 Introduction

2.1 This policy sets out the principles that NEL ICB will work to when
commissioning individual packages of care for individuals eligible for NHS
Continuing Healthcare (CHC) as determined by the National Framework

2.2 This policy will explain how NEL ICB and its LA Partners will commission care
in accordance with the National Framework ensuring that equity and choice are
central to the delivery of care.

2.3 This policy applies to all new individuals when they have been confirmed
eligible for CHC. It will also include existing individuals where their care needs
have changed significantly since their last review and require a different care
package.

2.4 1t does not apply to:

e Children under the age of 18.
e Individuals who are assessed as needing ‘fast-track’ CHC.
¢ Individuals subject to Section 117 aftercare under the Mental Health Act.




NHS

North East London

2.5 The policy has been developed to ensure that:

e NEL ICB maintain the ICBs vision on the delivery of CHC as set out in Section
1 - Aims and Values.

e A person-centred approach is taken by NEL ICB in making decisions about a
care package and that the individual or their representative is at the centre of
all discussions, ensuring that their care preferences and wishes are at the
heart of the placement process.

e All CHC packages of care which are offered to an CHC eligible individual are
sufficient to meet the individual’s needs.

e Decisions about placements are made in a way that is fair, balancing NEL
ICB’s duties to the individual and to all the other patients for whom NEL ICB
has financial responsibility.

3 National Policy Context

The strategic, legal, and operational responsibilities of this placements policy is set
out in the following document’s:

e The National Framework for NHS Continuing Healthcare & NHS Funded
Nursing Care (July 2022)
e Care Act (2022).

4 Key Principles

4.1 Where an individual is eligible for CHC, NEL ICB has a duty to provide a
package of care to meet the individual’s assessed needs.

4.2 NEL ICB and their LA partners will work with the individual and/or their family/
representative/advocate to identify a range of potential locations and care
options which are appropriate to meet the individual’s assessed needs. NEL
ICB will share and discuss the potential options with the individual and their
representative.

4.3 In selecting a provider NEL ICB will firstly assess home care, care or nursing
home providers that are on the Any Qualified Provider (AQP) Framework,
which is the NEL ICB preferred provider list.

4.4 On the occasion that an AQP Framework provider cannot be found that meets
the needs of an individual, an alternate provider will be sought.

4.5 When looking at the suitability of a care option, information that was recorded in
the Decision Support Tool (DST) alongside the individuals and representative’s
care preferences and wishes will be considered.




NHS

North East London

4.6 For all placements, NEL ICB will need to satisfy itself that any packages of care
that are to be commissioned for an individual will be provided by a provider who
are:

e Able to provide an appropriate package of care which meets the needs of
the individual through a skilled and trained workforce.

e Able to provide a safe and sustainable package of care.

e Offer value for money.

4.7  Atall times NEL ICB will ensure:

e That the decision-making process for selecting the placement will always
include the individual and their representative.

e The placement meets the individual's needs.

e Where they do not have capacity to make decisions about their care, NEL
ICB will always act in the individuals’ best interests.

e Where a deprivation of liberty may result in a care package NEL ICB will
provide a Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) assessment and
ensure that this is part of the commissioning agreement.

e That the process is robust, fair, consistent, and transparent.

5 Commissioning Arrangements

5.1 How we decide on the most appropriate type of accommodation.

e The CHC team will take the following factors and guidance from the
National Framework into account when considering the type of care
package. (An individual’s home or a care or nursing home)

5.2 For those who wish to have care at home.

‘Where an individual is eligible for NHS Continuing Healthcare and
chooses to live in their own home, the ICB is financially responsible for
meeting all assessed health and associated social care needs.

This could include equipment provision (refer to Practice Guidance note
56), routine and incontinence laundry, daily domestic tasks such as food
preparation, shopping, washing up, bed-making and support to access
community facilities, etc. (including additional support needs for the
individual whilst the carer has a break). However, the NHS is not
responsible for funding rent, food, and normal utility bills. °

(National Framework 315).

5.3 NEL ICB will consider the following factors when looking at a care package in
the persons own home:

e The individual’s views and those of their family or representative will be at
the centre of the assessment and decision.




NHS

North East London

e Consideration of the individual remaining or returning to home.

e If anindividual was in receipt of a care package from the LA is it
appropriate to continue in this living situation and build the care package
around them, avoiding a move to a new facility.

e Whether there be a significant impact in moving the individual?

e The extent to which care can be delivered safely at home and without
undue risk to the person, the staff, or other members of the household
(including children).

e The availability of contingency or replacement services if the care
package at home breaks down.

e Is the current or new living situation close to family members who will

have an active role in the individual’'s care.

The cultural or linguistic needs of the individual.

The suitability of accommodation.

The individual’s GP’s ability to provide primary care medical support.

The ability to provide the services within a best value context. l.e., the cost

of care at home compared to a care home.

5.4  When a care home may be more appropriate than care at home.

There are a number of factors that NEL ICB will include when considering the
type of accommodation that is most relevant for the individual.

There will be circumstances where an individual care needs would not be able
to be delivered in their own home and a care home may be the most
appropriate option.

These include:

e A care or nursing home may be more appropriate for people who have
complex and high levels of need because they benefit from direct
oversight by registered professionals and the 24-hour monitoring of
people

e If there is the need for a registered nurse to directly provide supervision or
care then the care would be expected to be provided within a care or
nursing home.

e There may be specific conditions or interventions that it would not
generally be appropriate to manage in a person’s home. Eg. challenging
and/or unpredictable behaviour.

e The need for waking night care may indicate a high level of support. It
may also be difficult to provide waking night staff in the individual’'s home.

e If there is a preference for care at home then these would be carefully
considered on a case-by-case basis and based on the availability of
trained staff in the home care providers.

5.5 A detailed consideration and costing of the person’s needs and how those
needs can be met in different settings will be considered and a cost-benefit
analysis will be conducted.




NHS

North East London

6 Capacity

6.1 If a person is assessed as lacking capacity, as defined in the Mental Capacity
Act 2005, to decide about the location of their CHC package, the CHC team
will commission the most cost effective and safest care available based on an
assessment of the person’s best interests. This will be carried out in
consultation with the following:

e Any appointed advocate.

e Any attorney under a Lasting Power of Attorney, which does not authorise
the attorney to decide by themselves as to where the person should live.

e A Court Appointed Deputy whose terms of appointment do not authorise
them to decide by themselves as to where the person should live.

e Family members.

e Any other person who should be consulted under the terms of the Mental
Capacity Act 2005 Code of Practice.

6.2 If there is a significant dispute between NEL ICB and the individual and their
family/representative about where the person should live, NEL ICB will take
advice about whether the matter is referred to the Court of Protection.

6.3 Alternatively, if the terms of a Lasting Power of Attorney or Deputyship grants
authority for the Attorney or Deputy to make decisions about where an
individual lives, NEL ICB will advise the Attorney or Deputy on what they
consider to be the most appropriate placement. The Attorney or Deputy will
then decide whether to accept that placement as being in the person’s best
interests.

6.4  Appropriate processes will be followed regarding a DoLS, which may be the
result of a placement. The National Framework states what is required when a
package of care or a placement will deprive someone of their liberty.
(paragraph 344 and 345). This will be updated when the Liberty Protection
Safeguards (LPS) process becomes live.

7 Funding CHC Placements

7.1 NEL ICB has a statutory duty to provide value for money when making
decisions about commissioning services. NEL ICB must balance a range of
factors including individual choice and preferences, quality, safety, and value
for money.

7.2  Throughout the placement process, NEL ICB will recognise the need to
achieve best value in its use of financial resources in order that it can share
the finite NHS resources equitably across all individuals for whom it has
commissioning responsibility.

7.3  NEL ICB will consider the services from a variety of care settings, which may
include an individual’s own home or a residential or nursing home. NEL ICB




NHS

North East London

has a duty to make a reasonable offer of care to the individual that will meet
their assessed care needs.

7.4  NEL ICB will consider the comparative costs and value for money when
determining the model of support to be provided to an individual.

They will not however set arbitrary limits on care packages based purely on
the notional costs of caring for an individual in a home.

Such arbitrary limits are incompatible with the National Framework and
personal health budgets which have been developed to enable people to live
independently and work or participate in society. For more detail, please see
below and Practice Guidance note 45. (National Framework 317).

7.5 Where more than one suitable care option is available (such as a residential
or nursing home package and a home care package) the total cost of each
package will be identified and assessed against the best outcomes for the
individual.

While there is no set upper limit on the cost of care, each case will be
considered on its own merits with the expectation being that the most cost-
effective option that meets the individual's assessed needs will be
commissioned.

7.6  NEL ICB will consider the views of the individual and their family or
representative regarding the preferred placement and will ensure that the
process is inclusive and transparent.

7.7  NEL ICB will make the final decision regarding the individual CHC care
package.

7.8 NEL ICB recognises that some individuals who are eligible for CHC and who
choose to live in their own home may be entitled to other services provided by
the LA. This will be for the LA to address subject to the Care Act 2014.

These services include assistance and advice regarding property adaptation

(refer to Practice Guidance note 56), support with essential parenting activities,
deputyship or appointeeship services, safeguarding concerns, carer support or
services required to enable the carer to maintain his/her caring responsibilities.

In these circumstances NEL ICB and its LA partners may have potentially
overlapping powers and responsibilities. When this occurs NEL ICB and the LA
will discuss these areas of needs and agree how these needs will be met on a
case-by-case basis.




NHS

North East London

8 Exceptions

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

Where an individual has been assessed as needing a placement in a
residential or nursing home, NEL ICB use the London-wide Any Qualified
Provider (AQP) list. This is a list of providers who have met the commissioning
requirements of NEL ICB.

The expectation is that all residential and nursing placements will have their
needs met in one of these preferred provider homes.

However, some individuals who are eligible for CHC may have a complexity,
intensity, frequency, and unpredictability in their needs which cannot be met
by the providers on the AQP list.

In these situations, NEL ICB will consider, on a case-by-case basis, and in
consultation with the individual and/or their families, the needs of the
individual and commission the most appropriate care option available that
provide the safe delivery of care.

The expectation is that when there is more than one option the placement that
provides best value for money for NEL ICB will be the one that is
commissioned.

An individual or their family / representative has the right to request that an
individual’s care is provided in a residential or nursing home that is not on
NEL ICB’s preferred provider list.

NEL ICB will consider all requests on a case-by-case basis and take into
account the needs of the individual and the benefits this placement would
have on them.

When these situations occur, NEL ICB will expect to review the provider to
ensure it complies with its commissioning requirements and is able to meet
the patient’s assessed needs.

In some circumstances there may be no available placements on the
preferred provider list that meets the individual's needs.

In these circumstances NEL ICB can offer a placement outside of the AQP
list. When these situations occur NEL ICB will ensure that the preferred
placement provides best value for money and is able to meet the needs of the
individual.




NHS

North East London
9 Personal Health Budgets

9.1 NEL ICB can offer individuals the opportunity to have their own Personal
Health Budget (PHB). A PHB is an amount of money to support someone’s
health and wellbeing needs, which is planned and agreed between the
individual or their representative, and NEL ICB.

Individuals eligible for NHS CHC have the right to request a PHB if their care
is to be provided in a community setting, including in their home.

Individuals placed in a care or nursing home will receive a PHB but this will be
notional and be held within NEL ICB.

10 Paying for care and for additional private services

10.1 The principle that NHS services remain free at the point of delivery has not
changed and remains the statutory position under the NHS Act 2006. This
includes CHC packages of care.

10.2 Access to NHS services depends upon an individual’s clinical need and not
their ability to pay. NEL ICB will not charge a fee or require a co-payment from
any NHS patient in relation to their assessed needs.

10.3 The NHS does not allow personal top-up payments to an NHS funded CHC
package, where the additional payment relates to services assessed as
meeting the needs of the individual and covered by the fee negotiated with the
service provider.

10.4 The level of care for CHC care packages is determined by a comprehensive,
multi-disciplinary assessment of an individual's health and social care needs.
An individual or their family or representative cannot make a financial
contribution to the cost of the care identified by NEL ICB when it is part pf the
CHC assessment process, and the care package meets the individuals
assessed care needs.

10.5 However, an individual has the right to decline NHS services and make their
own private arrangements.

10.6 Where providers offer additional services which are unrelated to the
individual's CHC assessed needs, the person may choose to pay for these
additional services themselves. Examples of services that are likely to fall
outside NHS provision include hairdressing, aromatherapy, beauty treatments
and entertainment services.

If an individual wishes to pay for additional private, the individual will be
advised by NEL ICB about the options available to voluntarily enter into a
separate agreement with the care provider for the provision of the services.




10.7

NHS

North East London

If the patient enters into a voluntary agreement for the private provision of
additional services, the provider will invoice the client separately for these.

If the provider refuses to invoice separately it could be considered unfair
under Consumer Law and NEL ICB will not be able to purchase care at this
home.

The Individual or their family or representative will be advised that they need
to consider other homes, including those on NEL ICB preferred provider list.

In all cases the authorisation for the commissioning and funding of packages
of care lies with NEL ICB. Packages of care which have not been authorised
will not be paid for.

11 Reviews

111

11.2

11.3

114

The care package will be reviewed after the first three months of its
commencement and then annually as a minimum thereafter to ensure that it
continues to meet the person’s needs.

The purpose of the review is not to reassess eligibility for CHC.

Where there is clear evidence of a change in needs to such an extent that it
may impact on the individual’s eligibility for NHS Continuing Healthcare, then
the ICB will arrange a full reassessment of eligibility for NHS Continuing
Healthcare

Where care is being provided at home, Individuals and their family or
representative should be aware that there may be times where it is no longer
appropriate to continue to provide care at home. This will be part of the review
process for those having care at home.

For example, where deterioration in the person’s condition may result in the
need for clinical oversight and 24-hour monitoring that can only be provided in
a care or nursing home. Or of the individual presents an increased risk that
would prevent them from remaining at home.

If the review identifies that the individual’'s needs have changed to an extent
that their care package may need a significant adjustment, the care package
will be reviewed and all options will be explored.

This will not apply to increases in need or cost during a single period of up to
two weeks that are required to cover either an acute episode of ill health or for
end-of-life care to prevent a hospital admission

If the change in need requires a change to the location of care this will be
discussed with the individual and their family or representative and the




NHS

North East London

principles set out in this policy will be followed, including the consideration of
exceptional circumstances.

12 Disagreements and Disputes

12.1 If an individual, family member or representative disagrees with the package
of care which has been offered and wishes to raise a complaint, they should
make this in writing and submit any supporting evidence within 28 days of
receiving the decision.

The process should follow the NEL ICB Complaints procedure.

12.2 When a dispute is received, it will be formally acknowledged by a letter that
explains the dispute process and timescales.

12.3 Disputes will be heard by a panel consisting of clinicians and lay members of
NEL ICB joint committee or relevant committees.

12.4 The Disputes Panel will only consider whether NEL ICB’s offer was not
reasonable considering all the circumstances including the individual’s wishes
and preferences.




	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	Minutes

	5 COMMUNITY COLLABORATIVE HIGHLIGHT OVERVIEW
	1. Community Collaborative Highlight Overview - ONEL JHOSC July 2023
	1. Mental Health Learning Disability and Autism Collaborative - ONEL JHOSC July 2023 (002)

	6 ONEL HEALTH UPDATES
	2. Health Update ONEL JOSC July 2023 final
	2. Joint Forward Plan Summary ONEL JOSC July 2023
	2. Joint Forward Plan vFINAL DRAFT ONEL JOSC July 2023

	7 CHC POLICIES
	3. CHC policies - ONEL JHOSC July 2023
	3. NEL CHC Care Planning and Respite Policy  - Final 2
	3. NEL CHC Disputes Resolution Policy and Protocol Final 3
	3. NEL CHC Joint Care Package Arrangements and Funding Policy - Final 2
	3. NEL CHC Placement Policy - Final 2


